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th57  Annual General Meeting

Day  : Wednesday
thDate : 29  September, 2021

Time : 11.45 a.m.

Mode: Video Conferencing ( VC) / Other Audio 

Visual  Means (OAVM)
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Hindustan Composites Limited
CIN: L29120MH1964PLC012955

thPeninsula Business Park, 'A' Tower, 8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013

Tel.:(022) 6688 0100, Fax: (022) 6688 0105, E-mail: hcl@hindcompo.com, Website: www.hindcompo.com

NOTICE

1

Notice is hereby given that the Fifty Seventh Annual General 
thMeeting (57  AGM) of the Members of Hindustan Composites 

thLimited will be held on Wednesday, 29  September, 2021 at 

11:45 a.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means (“OAVM”) without physical presence of the 

Members at a common venue, to transact the following 
thbusinesses. The proceedings of the 57  AGM shall be deemed to 

be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated 
that Peninsula Business Park, ‘A’ Tower, 8  Floor, Senapati Bapat 

Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013, which shall be the 

deemed Venue of the .

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt (a) the Standalone Audited 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
stended 31  March, 2021 together with the reports of the 

Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon; and (b) the Consolidated 

Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
stfinancial year ended 31  March, 2021 together with the 

report of Auditors’ thereon and in this regard, if thought fit, 

pass the following resolutions as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTIONS:

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the Standalone Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year 
stended 31  March, 2021 and the reports of the Board of 

Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon be and are hereby 

received, considered and adopted.”

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the Consolidated Audited 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
styear ended 31  March, 2021 together with the 

Auditors’ Report thereon be and are hereby received, 

considered and adopted.”

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year 
stended 31  March, 2021 and in this regard, if thought fit, 

pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of 

the Board of Directors of the Company, dividend @ 40 % 

i.e.  2/- (Rupees Two only) per share on Equity shares 

having face value of  5/- each fully paid up for the 

financial year 2020-21 be and is hereby declared out of the 

profits of the financial year 2020-21 and that the same be 

paid to those shareholders whose names appeared on the 

Company’s’ Register of Members / List of Beneficiaries as 

th57  AGM

`

`

ndon 22  September, 2021 and that the dividend be given 

only to those shareholders who are entitled to receive the 

same.”

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Raghu Mody, (DIN: 

00053329), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment as a director of the 

Company and in this regard, if thought fit, pass the 

following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Raghu Mody, (DIN: 

00053329), Director of the Company, who retired by 

rotation and being eligible, had offered himself for re-

appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director 

of the Company, who shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve the payment of commission to the Independent 

Directors of the Company and in this regard if thought fit, to 

pass, the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 

149, 197, 198, and all other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the 

Articles of Association of the Company, in addition to the 

sitting fees paid for attending the meetings of the Board of 

Directors of the Company and Committees thereof, the 

consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded for the payment of  2,00,000/- (Rupees Two 

Lakhs only) as commission to each Independent Director 

of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the 

Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to give 

effect to the above resolution.”

5. To ratify the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the 
stfinancial year ended 31  March, 2021 and, in this regard, if 

thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

`
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enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the 

remuneration, as approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company amounting to  35,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five 

Thousand Only) plus Goods and Service Tax (GST) as 

applicable and out of pocket expenses, payable to M/s. M. 

R. Pandit & Co., Cost Accountants, Aurangabad (Firm 

Registration No: 00268), the Cost Auditors who were 

appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to 

conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the 
stfinancial year ended 31  March, 2021, be and is hereby 

ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such 

acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required to 

carry on the purpose of the aforesaid resolution.”

6. To ratify the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the 
stfinancial year ending 31  March, 2022 and, in this regard, if 

thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the 

remuneration, as approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company amounting to  35,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five 

Thousand Only) plus Goods and Service Tax (GST) as 

applicable and out of pocket expenses, payable to M/s. M. 

R. Pandit & Co., Cost Accountants, Aurangabad (Firm 

Registration No: 00268), the Cost Auditors who were 

appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to 

conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the 
stfinancial year ending 31  March, 2022, be and is hereby 

ratified.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such 

acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required to 

carry on the purpose of the aforesaid resolution.”

`

`

Place: Mumbai 
thDate: 26  May, 2021  

Regd. Office:         
Peninsula Business Park, ‘A’ Tower, 

th8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013

By Order of the Board of Directors

Vikram Soni
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

of Hindustan Composites Limited 

NOTES:

1. The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“Act”) in respect of special business is annexed 

hereto and forms part of this notice. The Board of Directors 

of the Company have considered and decided to include 

the Item Nos. 4 to 6 given above as Special Business in the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting ("AGM"), as they are 

unavoidable in nature.

2. In view of continuing lockdown situation due to Covid-19 

global pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) 
thhas vide its General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13  

January, 2021 read with General Circular No. 14/2020 
th thdated 8  April, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 13  April, 

th2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5  May, 2020 

(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Securities 

and Exchange Board of India vide its Circular No. SEBI/ 
thHO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15  January, 2021 

read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/P/ 
th2020/79 dated 12  May, 2020 (collectively referred to as 

“SEBI Circulars”) have permitted holding of Annual 

General Meetings through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / 

Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), without physical 

presence of the Members at a common venue. In 

compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
thRegulations”) and MCA & SEBI Circulars, the 57  AGM of 

the Company will be conducted through VC / OAVM 

without physical presence of the members at a common 

venue. The Company has engaged services of Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited ("CDSL") for 

facilitating conducting of AGM and voting through 

electronic means i.e., remote e-voting and voting during 

the AGM. 

3. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard -2 on General 

Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 
thof India ("ICSI") read with Guidance/Clarification dated 15  
thApril, 2020 issued by ICSI, the proceedings of the 57  

AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the registered 

office of the Company situated at Peninsula Business 
thPark, ‘A’ Tower, 8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower 

Parel, Mumbai 400013. Keeping in view the guidelines to 

fight Covid-19 pandemic, the Members are requested to 
thattend the 57  AGM from their respective locations through 

VC / OAVM and do not visit the registered office to attend 

the AGM.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to 

attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 
thbe a Member of the Company. However, since this 57  

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



3

nd22  September, 2021 and in respect of the shares held in 

dematerialized form, the dividend will be paid to members 

whose names are furnished by National Securities 

Depository Limited / Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited as beneficial owners as on that date. In case the 

Company is unable to pay the dividend to any member by 

the electronic mode due to non-availability of the details of 

the bank account the Company shall dispatch the dividend 

warrant/demand draft by post. However, in case of any 

disruption the postal services due to pandemic or any 

other reasons the same will be sent upon restoration of 

normalcy of postal services.

11. Members may note that the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT 

Act”), as amended by the Finance Act, 2020, mandates 

that dividend paid or distributed by a company after 
st1  April, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of members. 

The Company shall therefore be required to deduct tax at 

source ("TDS") at the time of making the payment of final 

dividend. In order to enable us to determine the 

appropriate TDS rate as applicable, members are 

requested to submit Form 15G/Form 15H or any other 

documents as applicable, if any, in accordance with the 

provisions of the IT Act.

For resident shareholders, taxes shall be deducted at 

source under Section 194 of the IT Act as follows-

However, no tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable 

to a resident individual if the total dividend to be received 

by him during Financial Year 2021-22 does not exceed 

` 5,000 and also in cases where members have provided 

Form 15G / Form 15H (applicable to individuals aged 60 

years or more), subject to conditions specified in the IT Act. 

Resident shareholders may also submit any other 

document as prescribed under the IT Act to claim a lower / 

Nil withholding tax. Registered members may also submit 

any other document as prescribed under the IT Act to claim 

a lower / Nil withholding tax. PAN is mandatory for 

members providing Form 15G / 15H or any other 

document as applicable, if any, in accordance with the 

provisions of the IT Act.

For non-resident shareholders, taxes are required to be 

withheld in accordance with the provisions of Section 195 

and other applicable sections of the IT Act, at the rates in 

force. The withholding tax shall be at the rate of 20% (plus 

applicable surcharge and cess) or as notified by the 

Government of India on the amount of dividend payable. 

However, as per Section 90 of the IT Act, non-resident 

AGM is being conducted pursuant to the MCA and SEBI 

Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of 

Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the 

facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not 
thbe available for this 57  AGM and hence the Proxy Form, 

Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this 

Notice.

th5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13  January, 
th2021 read with Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8  April, 2020, 

the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 
thmembers is not available for this 57  AGM. However, in 

pursuance of Section 112 and 113 of the Act, 

representatives of the members such as the President of 

India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
thattend the 57  AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their 

votes through e-voting.

6. Institutional/ Corporate members intending to represent 

through their authorised representatives in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM and to vote through remote e-voting or 

vote at the AGM are requested to send to the Company 

a certified copy of the board resolution authorising their 

representative to the Company at its registered office 

by post/hand delivery or through email at designated 

e - m a i l  a d d r e s s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  i . e .  

investor@hindcompo.com or at the Scrutinizer’s email 

address i.e.  manish @ csmanishb.in.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such 

joint holder who is higher in order of names will be entitled 

to vote.

8. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of 

the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in 

which the directors are interested, maintained under 

Section 189 of the Act and all documents referred to in the 
thnotice of 57  AGM, will be available for inspection by the 

Members on request by sending an e-mail to 

investor@hindcompo.com.

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 

the Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of 
rdthe Company will remain closed from Thursday, 23  

thSeptember, 2021 to Wednesday, 29  September, 2021 

(both days inclusive) for determining the name of 

members eligible for dividend on Equity Shares, if 
thapproved by the members at the ensuing 57  AGM.

10. The dividend on Equity shares as recommended by the 
stBoard of Directors for the financial year ended 31  March, 

th2021, if approved by the members at the ensuing 57  

AGM, will be paid to those members whose names stand 

registered in the Register of Members as on Wednesday, 

Members having valid PAN 10% or as notified by the 

Government of India

Members not having PAN / 20% or as notified by the 
Invalid PAN Government of India
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shareholders have the option to be governed by the 

provisions of the Double Tax Avoidance Agreement 

(DTAA) read with Multilateral Instrument (“MLI”) between 

India and the country of tax residence of the member, if 

they are more beneficial to them. For this purpose, i.e. to 

avail the benefits under the DTAA read with MLI, non-

resident shareholders will have to provide the following:

• Copy of the PAN card allotted by the Indian Income 

Tax authorities duly attested by the member or details 

as prescribed under rule 37BC of Income-tax Rules, 

1962

• Copy of Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) for the FY 

2021-22 obtained from the revenue authorities of the 

country of tax residence, duly attested by member

• Self-declaration in Form 10F

• Self-declaration by the shareholder of having no 

permanent establishment in India in accordance with 

the applicable tax treaty

• Self-declaration of beneficial ownership by the non-

resident shareholder

• Any other documents as prescribed under the IT Act 

for lower withholding of taxes if applicable, duly 

attested by member

In case of Foreign Institutional Investors / Foreign Portfolio 

Investors, tax will be deducted under Section 196D of the 

IT Act @ 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) or the 

rate provided in relevant DTAA, read with MLI, whichever 

is more beneficial, subject to the submission of the above 

documents.

The aforementioned documents are required to be 

submitted by sending email at investor@hindcompo.com 

during the period commencing before 23.59 hrs IST on 
nd22  September, 2021.

12. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as 

amended, securities of listed companies can be 

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from,
st1  April, 2019, except in case of request received for 

transmission or transposition and re-lodged transfers of 

securities. Further, SEBI vide its circular no. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/RTAMB/CIR/P/2020/236 dated 
nd st 2  December, 2020 had fixed 31 March, 2021 as the cut-

off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares 

that are re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in 

demat mode. Hence members, who hold shares in 

physical form, are requested to dematerialize their shares, 

so they can transfer their shares in future, if so desire.  

However, members can continue to hold shares in 

physical form.

13. SEBI Listing Regulations in terms of Schedule I mandates 

to all listed companies to use the Reserve Bank of India’s 

approved electronic mode of payment such as National 

Automated Clearing House ("NACH"), National Electronic 

Fund Transfer (NEFT), Real Time Gross Settlement 

(RTGS) for making payments like dividend to the 

shareholders. Accordingly, members who have not 

updated their bank account details and wish to avail such 

facility in future are requested to update their bank account 

details by furnishing requisite documents with the 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ("RTA") of the 

Company.

14. The cut-off date for the purpose of determining eligibility of 
thmembers for voting in connection with the 57  AGM and 

payment of final dividend for the financial year 2020-21 
ndhas been fixed as Wednesday, 22  September, 2021 

(“Cut-off date”).

15. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

notify immediately any change in their address or bank 

details to the Company / RTA quoting their Folio Number. 

Members holding shares in the demat form are requested 

to update such details with their respective Depository 

Participants.

16. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed 

dividend declared upto financial years 2012-13, from time 

to time, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

("IEPF") established by the Central Government. The 

unclaimed dividend in respect of the financial year ended 
st31  March, 2014 is due for transfer to the IEPF in month of 

October, 2021. The shareholders whose dividend 

remained unclaimed for the financial year 2013-14 and for 

subsequent financial years are requested to claim it 

immediately from the Company. The Company has 

uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend 
stamounts lying with the Company as on 31  March, 2021 

under “Investor Relations” section on the website of the 

Company www.hindcompo.com. The details of unpaid and 

unclaimed dividend amounts lying with the company can 

be also accessed through on the website of Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs viz. www.mca.gov.in and on the website 

of IEPF viz. www.iepf.gov.in. Attention of the members is 

drawn to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act, which 

requires a company to transfer in the name of IEPF 

Authority all shares in respect of which dividend has not 

been paid or claimed for 7 (seven) consecutive years or 

more. 

In accordance with the aforesaid provisions of Section 

124(6) of the Act read with the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 

Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, the Company has 

transferred 22,005 shares in respect of which dividend 
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declared for the financial year 2012-13 or earlier financial 

years remained unpaid or unclaimed by the members for 7 

(seven) consecutive years or more to the Investor 

Education and Protection fund via corporate action 

through Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 

A member desirous to claim back his shares from IEPF 

Authority can do so by following prescribed procedure 

under the said rules. The said details are available on the 

website of the Company at www.hindcompo.com and 

have also been uploaded on the website of the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs and the same can be accessed through 

the link: www.mca.gov.in and on the website of IEPF viz. 

www.iepf.gov.in.

Further, the Company has initiated necessary action for 

transfer of all shares in respect of which dividend declared 

for the financial year 2013-14 has remained unpaid or 

unclaimed by the members for 7 (seven) consecutive 

years or more.

th17. Members can join the 57  AGM through the VC/OAVM 

mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 

the commencement of the Meeting by following the 

procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 
thparticipation at the 57  AGM through VC/OAVM will be 

made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first 

serve basis; however this limit does not include large 

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 

shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of 

the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 

Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first serve basis.

th18. The attendance of the Members attending the 57  AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 

mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested 

to submit their PAN details to their respective Depository 

Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 

accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 

submit their PAN to the Company / RTA.

20. To comply with the provision of Section 88 of the Act, read 

with Rule 3 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rule 2014, the Company is required to 

update its database by incorporating some additional 

details of its members.

Members are requested to submit their e-mail ID and other 

details vide the e-mail updation form available on 

Company’s website viz. www.hindcompo.com. The same 

could be done by filling up and signing at the appropriate 

place in the said form and by sending the same to the RTA.

The e-mail ID provided shall be updated subject to 

successful verification of your signatures as per record 

available with the RTA of the Company.

21. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars, 
thNotice of the 57  AGM along with the Annual Report 2021 

is being sent only through electronic mode to those 

Members whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the 

Notice and Annual Report 2021 will also be available on 

the Company’s website www.hindcompo.com, websites of 

the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and 

www.nseindia.com respectively and on the website of 

CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

22. Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform to 

the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, 

immediately of any change in their residential status on 

return to India for permanent settlement, their bank 

account maintained in India with complete name, branch, 

account type, account number and address of the bank 

with pin code, if the details are not furnished earlier.

23. Members holding shares in identical order of names in 

more than one folio are requested to write to the Company 

/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) enclosing 

their Share Certificates to enable the Company to 

consolidate their holdings in one folio for better services.

24. Members are requested to forward all Share Transfers and 

other communications to the RTA of the Company and are 

further requested to always quote their Folio Number / 

DPID-Client ID in all correspondences with the Company.

25. Members holding shares in single name and physical form 

are advised to make nomination in respect of their 

shareholding in the Company.

26. Brief resume of director proposed to be re-appointed at the 

ensuing AGM in terms of Regulations 26(4) & 36(3) of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations and SS-2 Secretarial Standard 

on “General Meetings” is annexed to the Notice. 

27. The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Listing fees for 

the financial year 2021-22 has been paid to both the stock 

exchanges.

th28. Members may also note that 57  Annual Report for the 

year 2020-21 is also available on the website of the 

company at www.hindcompo.com. 
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29. To support the Green Initiative, members who have not 

registered their email addresses are requested to register 

the same with the Company’s RTA/their Depository 

Participants, in respect of shares held in physical/ 

electronic mode, respectively.

30. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Act, 

read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General 

Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI, the Company is 

pleased to provide e-voting facility to its members to 

exercise their right to vote electronically on the resolutions 
th thmentioned in the notice of 57  AGM dated 26  May, 2021. 

The members may cast their votes using electronic voting 

system from a place other than the venue of the meeting 

(“remote e-voting”). 

(a) The facility of casting the votes by the members/ 

shareholders using an electronic voting system from a 

place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) 

and e-voting during the meeting will be provided by 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL e-

voting System). 

(b) A person, whose name is recorded in the register of 

members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date 

only shall be entitled to avail the facility of “remote e-

voting” or e-voting during the AGM.

(c) The “remote e-voting” period commences on Sunday, 
th26  September, 2021 (9:00 hrs) and ends on Tuesday, 
th28  September, 2021 (17:00 hrs). During this period, 

members/shareholders of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 

form, as on the cut-off date, may cast their vote by 

“remote e-voting”. The “remote e-voting” module shall 

be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the 

vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member 

shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

(d) The voting rights of members/shareholders shall be in 

proportion to their share of the paid up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date.

Any person who becomes a member of the Company 

after dispatch of the Notice of the meeting and holding 

shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the User ID 

and password by sending a request at  

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or rnt. helpdesk 

@linkintime.co.in. However, if the member is already 

registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then he can 

use his exiting user ID and password for casting the 

vote through e-voting. If you forgot your password, 

you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 

D e t a i l s / P a s s w o r d ”  o p t i o n  a v a i l a b l e  o n  

www.evotingindia.com. 

(e) The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed 

CS Manish Baldeva, Proprietor of M/s. M Baldeva 

Associates, Company Secretaries, Thane (FCS No.: 

6180/CP No.: 11062) as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 

voting through remote e-voting process and e-voting 
thduring the 57  AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer shall within 2 working days from the 

conclusion of the AGM unblock the votes in the 

presence of at least two witnesses not in employment 

of the Company and make a scrutinizers’ report of the 

votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the 

Chairman or a person authorized by him who shall 

countersign the same and declare the result of the 

voting.

(f) The Results declared along with the report of the 

Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 

Company www.hindcompo.com and on the website of 

CDSL www.evotingindia.com immediately after the 

declaration of result by the Chairman or a person 

authorized by him in writing. The results shall 

simultaneously be communicated to the stock 

exchanges.

(g) Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 

resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date 
thof the Meeting i.e. Wednesday, 29  September, 2021.

THE PROCEDURE/ INSTRUCTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS 
THFOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING 57  AGM 

AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

th(I) The voting period begins on Sunday, 26  September, 2021 
th(9:00) hrs.) and ends on Tuesday, 28  September, 2021 

(17:00 hrs.). During this period shareholders’ of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date may cast their 

vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled 

by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ 
thCIR/P/2020/242 dated 9  December, 2020, under 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, listed 

entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 

its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ 

resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/ 

retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers 

("ESPs") providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 

India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
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maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 

shareholders. 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, 

pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 

enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by 

way of a single login credential, through their demat 

accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 

Participants. Demat account holders would be able to 

cast their vote without having to register again with the 

ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience 

of participating in e-voting process. 

(iii) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD/ CIR/ 
thP/2020/242 dated 9  December, 2020 on e-voting facility 

provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories 

and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 

update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-voting facility.

Pursuant to the said SEBI Circular, Login method for 

e-voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode is 

given below:

 

4) If the user is not registered for 
Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at https://web.cdslindia. 
com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegi
stration

5) Alternatively, the user can directly 
access e-voting page by providing 
demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-voting option where the 
e-voting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all 
e-voting Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for 
NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 
the e-Services website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://eservices. 
nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful  
authentication, you will be able to 
see e-voting services. Click on 
“Access to e-voting” under e-voting 
services and you will be able to see 
e-voting page. Click on company 
name or e-voting service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to 
e-voting service provider website 
for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for 
IDeAS e-Services, option to 
r e g i s t e r  i s  a v a i l a b l e  a t  
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal 
or click   at https:// eservices.nsdl. 
com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.
jsp 

3) Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the 
fo l low ing  URL:h t tps : / /www.  
evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-voting 
system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member ’ 
section. A new screen will open. 
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1) Users who have opted for CDSL 
Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and 
password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-voting page 
without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia 
.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on 
Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi/ 
Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-vot ing opt ion for el igible 
companies where the is 
in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking 
the e-voting option, the user will be 
able to see e-voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote 
e-voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the 
meeting. Additionally, there is also 
link provided to access the system 
of all e-voting Service Providers 
i . e .  C D S L / N S D L / K A R V Y /  
LINKINTIME, so that the user can 
visit the e-voting service providers’ 
website directly.

e-voting 

Type of 
shareholders

Login Method

I n d i v i d u a l  
Shareholders 
h o l d i n g  
securit ies in 
demat mode 
w i t h  C D S L

I n d i v i d u a l  
Shareholders 
h o l d i n g  
securit ies in 
demat mode 
w i t h  N S D L



• Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric 
PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both 
demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders)

• Members who have not updated their 
PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the 
sequence number which is printed on 
Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN 
field.

PAN

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and
Physical Form

• Enter the Dividend Bank Details or 
Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 
as recorded in your demat account or 
in the company records in order to 
login.

• If both the details are not recorded 
with the depository or company 
please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details 
field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

Dividend Bank 
Details
Date of Birth 
(DOB) 
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(iv) Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for 

shareholders other than individual shareholders holding in 

demat form & physical shareholders.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 

www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 

Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form 

should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and 

Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged 

on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-

voting of any company, then your existing password is 

to be used. 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

(v) After entering these details appropriately, click on 

“SUBMIT” tab.

(vi) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then 

directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 

You will have to enter your User ID 
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will 
be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-voting 
page. Click on company name or 
e-voting service provider name and 
you will be redirected to e-voting 
service provider website for casting 
your vote during the remote 
e-voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the 
meeting

You can also login using the login 
credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-voting facility. After Successful login, 
you will be able to see e-voting option. 
Once you click on e-voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see 
e-voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-voting service provider 
name and you will be redirected to 
e-voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote 
e-voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve 

User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned 

website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Members facing any technical 
issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting 
@cdslindia.comor contact 
at  022- 23058738 and 
22-23058542-43.
 

Members facing any technical 
issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL
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I n d i v i d u a l  
Shareholders 
( h o l d i n g  
s e c u r i t i e s  
in demat mode) 
login through 
t h e i r  
D e p o s i t o r y  
P a r t i c i p a n t s



‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new 

password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also 

used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any 

other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It 

is strongly recommended not to share your password with 

any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential.

(vii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the 

details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 

contained in this Notice.

(viii) Click on the EVSN for HINDUSTAN COMPOSITES 

LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

(ix) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 

DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 

desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 

Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 

Resolution.

(x) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 

view the entire Resolution details.

(xi) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, 

click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 

you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 

change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 

modify your vote.

(xii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will 

not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 

“Click here to print” option on the voting page.

(xiv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password 

then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 

click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted 

by the system.

(xv) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and 

Custodians:

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and 

register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the 

stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User 

should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link 

the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 

of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 

Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in 

the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required 

to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 

etc. together with attested specimen signature of the 

duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, 

to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email 

address viz; investor@hindcompo.com, if they have 

voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 

CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 

same.
  
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE 

AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING 

ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-voting on the day 

of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 

for Remote e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available 

where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 

successful login as per the instructions mentioned above 

for remote e-voting.
 
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-voting 

will also be eligible attend the meeting. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through 

Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and 

use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 

Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 2 

(two) days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

9
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investor@hindcompo.com. The shareholders who do not 

wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send 

their queries in advance 7 (Seven) days prior to meeting 

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 

n u m b e r ,  e m a i l  i d ,  m o b i l e  n u m b e r  a t  

investor@hindcompo.com. These queries will be replied 

by the company during the AGM. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a 

speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the 

right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 

availability of time for the AGM on first come first serve 

basis.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 

on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 

vote through e-voting system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are casted by the shareholders through e-

voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 

VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 

shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of 

e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 4. 

Considering the rich experience and expertise brought to the 
Board by Independent Directors of the Company, it is proposed to 
pay a commission of ` 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs only) to 
each of the Independent Directors for the financial year 2020-21. 
Such payment will be in addition to the sitting fees for attending 
Board/Committee meetings.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary 
Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for your approval.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or any of their 
relatives, except all of the Independent Directors of the Company 
to whom the resolution relates are concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Item Nos. 5 & 6: 

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, appointed M/s. M. R. Pandit & Co., Cost 
Accountants, Aurangabad (Firm Registration No: 00268) as the 
Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records 

stmaintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31  
st March, 2021 and the financial year ending 31 March 2022 at a 

remuneration of 35,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Thousand Only) 
plus Goods and Service Tax (GST) as applicable and out of 
pocket expenses incurred for the purpose of the above audit for 
the aforesaid each financial year.

M/s. M. R. Pandit & Co., Cost Accountants have confirmed that 
they hold a valid certificate of practice under Sub-section (1) of 
Section 6 of the Cost and Works Accountants Act, 1959.

In accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by 
the Members of the Company.

Accordingly, ratification by the members is sought to the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for conducting the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 

st st ended 31  March, 2021 and the financial year ending 31 March, 
2022.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Ordinary 
Resolutions as set out at Item Nos. 5 and 6 of the Notice for your 
approval.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or any of their relatives, is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolutions.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 

EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary 

details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to the Company 

i.e. investor@hindcompo.com or to RTAs’ email id 

rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

2. For demat shareholders – Please update your email id & 

mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 

(DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 

meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM 

& e-voting from the CDSL e-voting System, you can write 

an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 

electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 

Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) 
thLimited, A Wing, 25  Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 

Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), 

M u m b a i  -  4 0 0 0 1 3  o r  s e n d  a n  e m a i l  t o  

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-

23058542/43.
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INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS BEING PROPOSED TO BE RE-APPOINTEDAS PER REGULATION 26(4) AND 36(3) OF SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD – 2 ON 
“GENERAL MEETINGS” IS GIVEN BELOW:

Particulars

Name of Director

Age 

Qualifications

Experience (including expertise 
in specific functional area) / Brief 
Resume

Terms and Condit ions of  
Reappointment

Remunerat ion last  drawn 
( i n c l u d i n g  S i t t i n g  f e e s ,  
Commission if any)

Remuneration proposed to be 
paid

Date of first Appointment on the 
Board

Shareholding in the Company as 
ston 31  March, 2021

Relationship with other Directors 
/ Key Managerial Personnel

Number of meetings of the Board
attended during the financial 
year (2020-21)

Directorships of other Boards as 
on March 31, 2021

Membership / Chairmanship of
Committees of other Boards as 

ston 31  March, 2021

Summary of Performance 
Evaluation / Justification for 
choosing the appointees for 
appointment as Independent 
Directors

ANNEXURE - 1
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Name of the Director 

Mr. Raghu Mody
(DIN.: 00053329)

82 years

Graduate from  Cambridge University

He has over 58 years of experience as a leading industrialist with several decades of extensive 
and varied experience in setting up businesses in different kinds of industrial products.

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Raghu Mody is liable to retire by 
rotation.

 144.56 Lakhs 

As per existing terms.

th29  December, 1987

Nil

He is not related inter-se to any Director(s) /Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the Company within 
the meaning of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013

4 (Four) 

1) J. L. Morison (India) Ltd. 
2) Rasoi Ltd.
3) Prabhukripa Overseas Limited

J. L. Morison (India) Ltd. – Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Not  Applicable 

`

Place: Mumbai                             
thDate: 26  May, 2021                

Registered Office:         
Peninsula Business Park, ‘A’ Tower, 

th8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013

By order of the Board of Directors
of Hindustan Composites Limited 

 Vikram Soni
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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2. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The company has achieved total revenue of ` 18,458.75 

Lakhs during the financial year 2020-21 compared to 

`17,805.19 Lakhs in the previous year. The net 

manufacturing revenue was higher by 4 % from ̀  14,489.55 

Lakhs to ` 15,006.48 Lakhs, despite losing production and 

sales in first quarter of the financial year on account of 

Covid-19 lockdown.

Investment income during the financial year was also higher 

at ` 3452.27 Lakhs compared to ` 3315.64 Lakhs in the 

previous financial year. It was achieved with judicious 

deployment of funds in various assets, despite volatile 

market conditions and falling interest rates.

The gross profit of the company was substantially higher at 

` 3385.63 lakhs as against ` 2004.09 Lakhs in the previous 

financial year, mainly on account of higher income and 

several cost rationalisation initiatives taken during the 

financial year. After considering interest of ̀  19.59 lakhs and 

depreciation of ` 886.69 Lakhs, Profit before tax was ` 

2479.35 Lakhs. With a tax provision of ̀  380.19 Lakhs, profit 

after tax was ̀  2099.16 Lakhs as against ̀ 1203.50 Lakhs in 

the previous financial year. The other comprehensive 

income, net of tax during the financial year was ` 2938.68 

Lakhs and the total comprehensive income was ` 5037.84 

Lakhs, a huge increase against previous figure of ̀  1235.91 

Lakhs.

3. COVID -19

In view of lockdown across the country due to the Covid-19 

pandemic, manufacturing operations of the company were 

suspended temporarily for few weeks during first quarter of 

the financial year in compliance with directives issued by the 

relevant authorities. The financial results for 2020-21 were 

impacted by disruptions owing to this pandemic situation. 

The company has made an assessment of the recoverability 

and carrying values of its assets comprising property, plant 

and equipment, inventories, receivables and other assets as 
ston 31  March,21 and on the basis of evaluation, no material 

adjustments were required to be made in the financial 

results. The company has taken all necessary steps and 

precautionary measures to ensure smooth functioning of its 

operations and ensure the safety and well-being of all its 

employees. Considering the risks associated with nature, 

condition and duration of Covid-19, the impact assessment 

on the company’s financial statements will be continuously 

monitored.

Against the backdrop of a challenging macro environment, in 

the beginning of the financial year, all automotive plants 

were shut down, transport industry came to a grinding halt, 

markets were closed and our several bulk orders were 

cancelled. Similarly, the automobile industry’s nascent 

recovery at the beginning of FY 2020-21 was derailed due to 

tepid consumer sentiment and disrupted supply chain.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,
Hindustan Composites Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Fifty Seventh Annual Report together with the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial 
stStatements of the Company for the financial year ended 31  March, 2021.

1.  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

stThe Companys' financial performance for the financial year ended 31  March, 2021 is summarized below: 
(  in Lakhs)`

Standalone 

2019-20

Consolidated 

2020-21 2019-202020-21

Revenue from Operations 18,458.75 17,805.19 18,458.75 17,805.19

Other Income 618.44 49.49 618.44 49.49

Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Taxes 3,385.63 2,004.09 3,258.83 1,848.00

Less:  Interest 19.59 22.31 19.59 22.31

Less:  Depreciation (Net) 886.69 950.30 886.69 950.30

Profit Before Tax 2,479.35 1,031.48 2,352.55 875.39

Less:  Provision for Tax 380.19 -172.02 380.19 -172.02

Profit After Tax 2,099.16 1,203.50 1,972.36 1,047.41

Other Comprehensive Income / Loss (Net of Tax) 2,938.68 32.41 3,918.68 32.41

Total Comprehensive Income 5,037.84 1,235.91 5,891.04 1,079.82

Particulars
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However towards the second half of the financial year under 

review, the scenario improved significantly. Manufacturing 

plants started opening up in a phased manner and 

consumer sentiment improved which helped to create new 

opportunities in the value chain.

Besides a resurgent automotive demand, our own cost 

rationalisation drive, growing share of value added 

products, improved quality through R & D efforts and better 

work efficiency across all functions facilitated our comeback 

journey and improved both revenue and profitability.

Though auto segment revived in the later part of the financial 

year but pain remained in Railway and State Transport 

segment as their movement remained very restrictive which 

resulted into poor demand of our product.

The investment segment also faced the similar challenges in 

the beginning of the financial year due to liquidity crisis, fear 

of higher NPAs, falling interest rate and volatile stock market 

conditions. However Government announced several 

stimulus packages to ease liquidity and boost the economy 

which improved the consumer sentiments and restored the 

faith. It also provided some opportunities which helped us in 

increasing the investment income. However company will 

continue to maintain its conservative approach towards 

investment.

The working of Company’s joint venture- Compo Advics 

Private Limited, remained under pressure due to depressed 

market conditions as mentioned above. However several 

initiatives have been taken towards enlarging dealers 

network, introduction of new references and cost reduction 

measures.

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company 

during the financial year under review.

4. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END 

OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments 

affecting the financial position of the Company between the 

end of the Company’s financial year to which the financial 

statements relate and upto the date of this report, except 

impact of Covid-19 generated situation, quantification of 

which cannot be done at this point of time.

5.  SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

During the financial year under review, there was no change 

in paid up share capital of the Company. The paid up equity 
stshare capital of your Company as on 31  March, 2021 was 

`7,38,45,000/- (Rupees Seven Crore Thirty Eight Lakhs 

Forty Five Thousand only) divided into 1,47,69,000 equity 

shares of the face value of ̀  5/- (Rupees Five only) each fully 

paid up.

6.  DIVIDEND & DIVIDEND POLICY

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of 

` 2  per share (previous financial year ` 2 per share), of ` 5 

each, being 40% (previous financial year 40%) on equity 
stshare capital for the financial year ended 31  March, 2021. 

This will absorb total cash outflow of ` 295.38 Lakhs. The 

dividend, if approved, will be paid to those members whose 

names shall appear on the Register of Members / List of 
nd  Beneficiaries as on Wednesday, 22 September, 2021

Pursuant to the revised provisions of Regulation 43A of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations"),the 

Company has adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy 
thw.e.f. 26  May, 2021. The policy can be accessed on the 

Company’s website at https://www.hindcompo.com/ 

investor-relations/documents/dividend-distribution-

policy.pdf  

7. RESERVES  

During the financial year under review ` 1,000 Lakhs 

(previous financial year 1,000 Lakhs) were transferred to the 

General Reserve.

8. SUBIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 

COMPANIES

Your Company has a Joint Venture Company namely 

“Compo Advics (India) Private Limited”. The Company had 

no subsidiary or associate company during the financial year 

under review.  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), a statement containing 

salient features of the financial statements of the Joint 

Venture Company in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial 

statements of the Company forming part of this Annual 

Report.

9. CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 129 and 133 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and as 

required under Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, the Company has prepared Consolidated 

Audited Financial Statements consolidating financial 

statements of its Joint Venture Company namely “Compo 

Advics (India) Private Limited” with its financial statements in 

accordance with the applicable provisions of Indian 

Accounting Standards (“IndAS”). 

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



14

The Consolidated Audited Financial Statements along with 

the Independent Auditors’ Report thereon are annexed and 

form part of this Report.

The summarized consolidated financial position is provided 

above in point no. 1 of this Report.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT AND AREAS OF CONCERN

The Company has laid down a well-defined Risk 

Management Policy covering the risk mapping, trend 

analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation 

process. A detailed exercise is being carried out from time to 

time to identify, evaluate, manage and monitoring of both 

business and non-business risk. The Board periodically 

reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken to control 

and mitigate the same through a properly defined 

framework. 

Currently, the most significant emerging risk is the ongoing 

outbreak of the novel coronavirus (Covid-19). These are 

challenging times for the world at large. The outbreak of 

Covid-19 and its rapid acceleration across the globe are 

concerning. While the human impact of the virus takes 

precedence for all of us, we continue to monitor the 

developments closely and are wary of the adverse impact on 

our business.

Pursuant to the revised provisions of Regulation 21 of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted a 

Risk Management Committee comprising of Mr. Raghu 

Mody, Executive Chairman, Mr. P. K. Choudhry, Managing 

Director, Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia and Mrs. Preeti Agrawal, 
thIndependent Directors as its members w.e.f. 26  May, 2021.  

Mr. Raghu Mody is Chairman of Risk Management 

Committee and the Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of the Company acts as the Secretary of the 

Committee.

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board of 

Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard 

to enterprise risk management. The Committee shall review 

the risk management practices and actions deployed by the 

Management with respect to identification, impact 

assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting of key 

risks while at the same time trying to achieve its business 

objectives. Further, the Committee shall endeavour to assist 

the Board in framing, implementing and monitoring the risk 

management plan for the Company and reviewing and 

guiding the risk policy.

This Committee shall have the primary responsibility of 

implementing the Risk Management Policy of the Company 

and achieving the stated objective of developing a risk 

mitigated culture that supports decision making and helps 

improve the Company’s performance. The role and terms of 

reference of the Risk Management Committee are in 

conformity with the requirements of the Act and Regulation 

21 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

11. ANNUAL RETURN

stAnnual Return of the Company as on 31  March, 2021 in 

accordance with Section 92 (3) read with the section 134 

(3)(a) of the Act will be placed on the website of the Company 

and can be accessed at the link https://www.hindcompo. 

com/investor-relations/annual-reports.htm

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

(KMP)

stAs on 31  March, 2021, the Board comprised of seven 

directors including one independent women director. The 

Board has an appropriate mix of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors, which is in 

compliance with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI 

Listing Regulations  and is also aligned with the best 

practices of Corporate Governance.

a)  Retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the 

Act read with Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association 

of the Company, Mr. Raghu Mody, (DIN: 00053329) 

Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director of the 

Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting ("AGM") and being eligible, has 

offered himself for re-appointment and your Board 

recommends his re-appointment.

b) Appointment and reappointment

thThe Members, in their 56  Annual General Meeting held 
thon 29  September, 2020 had approved the appointment 

of Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia (DIN 00204670) and 

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agrawal (DIN 08693668) as 

Independent Non - Executive Directors  of the Company 
thfor a period of five years both w.e.f. 13  February, 2020 .  

Further, Mr. Raghu Mody (DIN:00053329) was 

re-appointed as an Executive Chairman and Whole 

Time Director of the Company for a further period of 
st ththree years to hold office from 1  October, 2020 to 30  

September, 2023.
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c) Cessation 

There was no cessation from the Board of the Company 

during the period under review.

d)  Declaration from Independent Directors 

The Company has received declaration from all the 

Independent Directors of the Company confirming that 

they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed 

both under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 

16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations  and pursuant 

to Regulation 25 of the said Regulations that they are 

not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist 

or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or 

impact their ability to discharge their duties with an 

objective independent judgment and without any 

external influence. The Independent Directors have 

also confirmed that they have complied with Schedule 

IV of the Act and the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

Further, the Independent Directors have also submitted 

their declarations in compliance with the provision of 

Rule 6(3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification 

of Directors) Rules, 2014, which mandated the inclusion 

of an Independent Director’s name in the data bank of 

Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (“IICA”) till they 

continue to hold the office of an independent director.

None of the directors of your Company are disqualified 

under the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act. Your 

directors have made necessary disclosures, as 

required under various provisions of the Act and the 

SEBI Listing Regulations. 

In the opinion of the Board, all the independent directors 

are persons of integrity and possesses relevant 

expertise and experience.

e) Annual Performance and Board Evaluation 

The Board has devised a policy pursuant to the 

provisions of the Act  and the SEBI Listing Regulations  

for performance evaluation of the chairman, board, 

individual directors (including independent directors) 

and committees which includes criteria for performance 

evaluation of non-executive directors and executive 

directors. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 

Company has specified the manner of effective 

evaluation of the performance of Board, its committees 

and individual directors of the Company and has 

authorized the Board to carry out their evaluation based 

on the manner specified by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.  The Board has devised 

questionnaire to evaluate its performances and 

performance of its Committees and individual directors 

and the chairperson. The performance of each 

committee was evaluated by the Board, based on report 

on evaluation received from respective Board 

committees. The reports on performance evaluation of 

the individual directors were reviewed by the Chairman 

of the Board.

The evaluation framework for assessing the 

performance of directors comprises of the following key 

areas:

i. Attendance at Board Meetings and Committee 

Meetings;

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations;

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future 

growth of Company and its performance;

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond 

information provided by the management.

The details of the programmes for familiarization of 

Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, 

rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 

industry in which the Company operates, business 

model of the Company and related matters are put up on 

the website of the Company at the link: https: //www. 

hindcompo.com/investor-relat ions/documents/ 

familiarisation-programes-for-independent-director.pdf

f) Key managerial Personnel (KMP)

The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as 

follows:

13. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as 

required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in this 

Report as “Annexure –A” and forms a part of this Report.

Sr.  Name  Designation 
No. 

1. Mr. Raghu Mody Executive Director & 
Chairman (Promoter)

2. Mr. P. K. Choudhary Managing Director

3. Mr. Sunil Jindal Chief Financial Officer 

4. Mr. Vikram Soni Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 
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The statement containing particulars of employees as 

required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 

5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 

provided in a separate annexure forming part of this Report. 

Further in terms of Section 136 of the Act, the report and 

accounts are being sent to the members excluding the 

aforesaid annexure. The said annexure is available for 

inspection at the registered office of the Company during the 

working hours and any member interested in obtaining a 

copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer of the Company and the same will be 

furnished on request.

14. REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 

Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations  and on the 

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, the Board of Directors have adopted a policy for 

selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel (‘KMPs’), Senior Management Personnel 

(‘SMPs’) and their remuneration including criteria for 

determining qual i f icat ions, posi t ive at t r ibutes,  

independence of a director and other related matters. 

The Remuneration Policy is placed on the website of the 

Company viz. www.hindcompo.com.   

15. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met four times during the financial year under 

review, the details of which are given in the Corporate 

Governance Report. The intervening gap between the two 

consecutive meetings was within the period prescribed 

under the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations .

16. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Details of the Committees constituted by the Board under 

the  Act and SEBI Listing Regulations  along with their 

composition and changes, if any, during the financial year, 

and the number and dates of meetings held during the 

financial year under review are provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

17. AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS COMPOSITION

stAs on 31  March, 2021, the Audit Committee comprised of 

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia, Mr. A. B. Vaidya, Mr. Deepak Sethi, 

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar and Mr. Raghu Mody. 

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia is Chairman of Audit Committee of 

the Company. The Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of the Company acts as the Secretary of the Audit 

Committee. All the recommendations made by the Audit 

Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors of the 

Company. Other details with respect to Audit Committee are 

given in Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the reports to 

be submitted to the Board of Directors with respect to 

auditing and accounting matters. It also supervises the 

Company’s internal control, financial reporting process and 

vigil mechanism.

18. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and 

according to the information and explanations obtained by 

them and as required under Section 134(3) (c) read with 

Section 134(5) of the  Act  state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if 

any;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies 

and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 

Company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 

going concern basis; 

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to 

be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively; and
(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively.

19. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the financial year under review, the Company has not 

accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Sections 

73 and 76 of the Act read with Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
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20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 

WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN    SECTION 

188(1) OF THE  ACT.

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the 

Company during the financial year under review with related 

parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 

length basis and are entered into based on considerations of 

various business exigencies, such as synergy in operations, 

their specializations etc. and to further the Company’s 

interests.  

During the financial year under review, none of the 

transactions had with related parties fall under the scope of 

Section 188(1) of the Act.  Hence, the Company is not 

required to furnish disclosure of related party transactions 

as required under Section134 (3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-

2 for the financial year 2020-21.

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 23 of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has adopted the 

policy on related party transactions and the same is 

available on the Company’s website at https://www. 

hindcompo.com/investor-relations/documents/related-

party-transaction-policy.pdf.

21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 

INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The details of loans, guarantee or investments made by the 

Company under Section 186 of the Act are given under 

notes to accounts on financial statements forming part of 

this Annual Report.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 read with 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, 

the Company has formed Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee and a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility 

(‘CSR’).  As part of its initiatives under CSR, taking into 

account the current Covid-19 pandemic situation across the 

world and in order to support and assist the Central 

Government to cater the public health emergency, including 

the creation or upgradation of healthcare or medical facilities 

and other necessary infrastructure, during the financial year 

under review, the Company contributed a sum of ̀  70 Lakhs 

to the PM CARES fund towards its CSR obligations. The 

policy on Corporate Social Responsibility has been placed 

on the website of the Company i.e. www.hindcompo.com.

The details as per the provisions of Rule 8 of Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 are annexed 

to this report as “Annexure - B” and forms a part of this 

Report.

23. WHISTLE BLOWER/ VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy 

to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. 

The mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards 

against victimization of directors and employees who avails 

of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee in the exceptional cases. 

The details of the Vigil Mechanism Policy is explained in the 

Corporate Governance Report and the policy has been 

p laced on the websi te  of  the company v iz .  

www.hindcompo.com.
 

We affirm that during the financial year 2020-21, no 

employee or director was denied access to the Audit 

Committee.

24. STATUTORY AUDITORS

As per provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Members 
rdof the Company in their  53   Annual General Meeting held 

thon 12  September, 2017 appointed M/s. Bagaria & Co. LLP, 

Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Firm Registration No. 

113447W), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 

term of consecutive 5 years i.e. to hold office from the 
rdconclusion of 53  Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 

thof 58  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for 
stthe financial year ending 31  March, 2022, subject to the 

ratification by members of the Company every year. 

However, after the amendment in Section 139 of the Act, 
theffective 7  May, 2018, ratification by shareholders every 

year for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors is no 

longer required; accordingly they will hold office upto the 
thconclusion of 58  Annual General Meeting of the Company 

stto be held for the financial year ending on 31  March, 2022.

M/s. Bagaria & Co. LLP, has furnished written confirmation to 

the effect that they are not disqualified from acting as the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions 

of Sections 139 and 141 of the Act and the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules 2014. 
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25. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Act read 

with the  Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has 

appointed M/s. M Baldeva Associates, Company 

Secretaries, Thane to undertake Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for the financial year 2020-21.  The Secretarial 

Audit Report is annexed to this report as “Annexure – C” 

and forms a part of this Report.

26. INTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act, read 

with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board on 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, re-appointed 

M/s. S M M P & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 

Mumbai, as Company’s Internal Auditors. The Internal 

Auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of 

internal control system in the Company, its compliances with 

operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at 

all locations of the Company and reports are presented to 

the Audit Committee periodically.

27. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS 

As required under Section 148(1) of the Act, the Company 

has prepared and maintained cost accounts and cost 

records in the prescribed manner.

As per the provisions of Section 148(2) & (3) of the  Act read 

with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 

Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. M. R. 

Pandit & Co., Cost Accountants, Aurangabad (Firm 

Registration No: 00268) as Cost Auditors of the Company to 

conduct audit of cost records for the financial years 2020-21 

and 2021-22. A resolution seeking ratification of the 

members for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 

for financial years 2020-21 and 2021-22 is provided in the 
thNotice of the ensuing 57  AGM.

28. COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION BY STATUTORY 

AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

There is no qualification / observation/adverse remark in 

Statutory Auditors’ Report.

With respect to observations made by the Secretarial 

Auditors in their report, your directors would like to state that: 

During the period under review, due to imposition of 

lockdown to contain spread of Covid-19 pandemic, there 

were several circulars and notifications issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) and Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), as a special measure 

under the Act and various SEBI Regulations by extending 

the timelines of various compliances and by not charging 

additional fees for late filing of various forms, any document, 

return, statement etc., required to be filed in the MCA-21 

Registry and corporate announcements required to be field 

with the Stock Exchanges during the moratorium period and 

during the extended period of such moratorium by MCA and 

SEBI, the company appropriated the relaxations in 

compliance with the provisions of such circulars and 

notifications and field some e-forms during the moratorium 

period and during such extended moratorium period.

Further, none of the Auditors of the Company have reported 

any fraud as specified under the second proviso of Section 

143(12) of the Act.

29. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBIL ITY REPORT AND 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulations 34(2) & (3) and Schedule V of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations the following have been made part 

of the Annual Report and are attached to this Report:

• Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

• Business Responsibility Report 

• Corporate Governance Report

• Declaration on compliance with Code of Conduct

• Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary that 

none of the directors on the Board of the Company has 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as directors of companies

• Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions 

of Corporate Governance

30. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 

PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR  

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN 

STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There was no significant or material order passed by any 

regulator or court or tribunal, which impacts the going 

concern status of the Company or will have bearing on 

Company's operations in future.

31. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE 

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has in place proper and adequate internal 

control systems commensurate with the nature of its 
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business, size and complexity of its business operations. 

Internal control systems comprising of policies and 

procedures are designed to ensure reliability of financial 

reporting, compliance with policies, procedures, applicable 

laws and regulations and that all assets and resources are 

acquired economically used efficiently and adequately 

protected.

32. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

(“IEPF”)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125 of the Act, read 

with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 

Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’), all unpaid or unclaimed 

dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to 

the IEPF established by the Government of India after the 

completion of seven years. Further, according to the said 

Rules, the shares on which dividend remained unpaid or 

unclaimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years 

or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of the 

IEPF Authority.  Accordingly, during the financial year 2020-

21, the Company transferred 22,005 equity shares to the 

demat account of the IEPF Authority as per the requirements 

of the IEPF Rules for the dividend remained unclaimed / 

unpaid upto financial years 2012-13. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 125 of the Act and said 

Rules, during the financial year 2020-21, an amount of 

` 4,56,226/- being remained unpaid / unclaimed dividend for 

the financial year 2012-13 was transferred to the IEPF.

Further the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount lying 

with the Company for financial year 2013 - 14 is due to 

transfer to the IEPF in the month of October, 2021. The 

details of the same are available on the Company’s website 

viz. www.hindcompo.com. 

Mr. Vikram Soni, Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer of the Company is appointed as the Nodal officer to 

ensure compliance with the IEPF Rules.

33. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act 

read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

details regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology 

Absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo are 

annexed to this report as “Annexure - D” and forms a part of 

this Report.

34. CREDIT RATINGS:

Acuite Ratings & Research Limited has reaffirmed the 

following credit ratings for Company’s long term and short 

term instruments: 

35. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial 

Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India and your directors confirm compliance of the same 

during the financial year under review.

36. INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 

WOMEN AT WORKPLACE  

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to 

the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee and 

has constituted an internal complaint committee under 

Section 4 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. During the financial year under review, there was no 

complaint filed before the said Committee and there was no 

complaint pending at the beginning or end of the financial 

year under review. 

37. DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 

AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the financial year under review, no applications was 

made or proceeding initiated  against the Company under 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016  nor any such 

proceeding was pending at the end of the financial year 

under review.

38. VALUATION OF ASSETS

During the financial year under review, there was no instance 

of one-time settlement of loans / financial assistance taken 

from Banks or Financial Institutions, hence the Company 

was not required to carry out valuation of its assets for the 

said purpose.
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Scale Amount 
(  Cr)`

Rating 

Long Term Instruments 
(fund based) /Stable 

Short Term Instruments 
(fund based + non fund based)

Total 25.00

9.00 ACUITE A-

16.00 ACUITE A2+
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39. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO UNCLAIMED 

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT OF THE COMPANY

During the financial year under review, the company has 

transferred shares to the unclaimed suspense account in 

compliance with the with the procedural requirements as 

specified in Schedule VI  of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

the details of the number of shares transferred to the 

Unclaimed suspense account are provided in the Corporate 

Governance report which forms a part of this annual report.

40. APPRECIATIONS

Your Directors would like to place on record their sincere 

appreciation for the continued co-operation, guidance, 

support and assistance extended during the financial year 

under report by our bankers, customers, suppliers and 

Government agencies. The Board of Directors wishes to 

express its appreciation for the valuable contribution made 

by the employees at all levels during the financial year under 

report.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
of Hindustan Composites Limited

Raghu Mody
Chairman

DIN: 00053329
Place: Mumbai

thDate: 26  May, 2021
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ANNEXURE A

A. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 

2020-21 are as under:

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial year 

2020-21, are as under:

 

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 13.84%;

st 4. There were 529 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31 March, 2021;

5. Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year i.e. 

2020-21 was 1.61% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year was Nil.

6. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior 

Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

21

1 Mr. Raghu Mody Whole Time Director and Executive Chairman (7.50)

2 Mr. P. K. Choudhary Managing Director (7.27)

3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Jindal Chief Financial Officer (2.10)

4 Mr. Vikram Soni Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 4.95

Sr. 
No.  

Name of Director/KMP 
and Designation 

Designation % increase in Remuneration in 
the Financial Year 2020-21

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors
of Hindustan Composites Limited

Raghu Mody
Chairman

DIN : 00053329

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 26  May, 2021

Ratio of the remuneration to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the financial year 2020-21

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director  

1 Mr. Raghu Mody 
    

Whole -Time Director 33:1

        2 Mr. P.  K. Choudhary     Managing Director  19:1

Designation

and  Executive Chairman
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ANNEXURE B

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”) ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The Company aims at spending a defined portion of its net profit for the betterment of society through:

Ø Providing financial and other assistance to students who belong to socially economical weaker sections.

Supporting efforts for community health in slums and areas inhabited by weaker sections.

Supporting the programs and efforts for environment protection and enhancement.

Promoting, encouraging and supporting the social and cultural heritage and traditions of our society.

Taking proactive measures for the well-being of society, as per needs.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:  

3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are 

disclosed on the website of the Company:

(i) The Composition of CSR Committee of the Company can be viewed at: https://www.hindcompo.com/investor-relations/ 

committees-of-board.htm 

(ii) The CSR Policy of the Company can be viewed at: https://www.hindcompo.com/investor-relations/documents/csr-policy.pdf 

(iii) The CSR projects approved by the Board of the Company can be viewed at: https://www.hindcompo.com/investor-relations/ 

documents/csr-annual-actionplan-2021-22.pdf 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):

The Company is not required to carry out the Impact Assessment of CSR projects in pursuance of sub-Rule (3) of Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as the said rule is not applicable to Company.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any.

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):  2716.24 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):  54.32 Lakhs

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

`

`

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of
Directorship

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the year

1. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar Chairman / Independent Director 2 2

2. Mr. P. K. Choudhary Member / Managing Director 2 2

3. Mr. Raghu Mody Member / Executive Chairman 2 2
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Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (  in Lakhs)`

Amount required to be set-off for the
 financial year, if any (  In Lakhs)`

Nil

Sr 
No.
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(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c):  54.32 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: There was no CSR amount spent against 

ongoing projects during the financial year.

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):  70.00 Lakhs

`

`
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Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

Amount Unspent (Rs. in Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account 
as per section 135(6)

NA - Nil NA

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year

(` in Lakhs)

70.00 Nil

Item from the list of activities in 
Sch. VII to the Act.

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through 
Implementing 

Agency

Name CSR 
Registration 

number

Project 
duration

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No)

Location 
of the 

project

Amount 
spent 
for the 
project

(` In 
Lakhs)

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No).

State District

1 COVID 
support - 
PM CARES 
Fund

Contribution to the Prime Minister's 
National Relief Fund or Prime 
Minister's Citizen Assistance and 
Relief in Emergency Situations Fund 
(PM CARES Fund)] or any other fund 
set up by the central govt. for socio 
economic development and relief and
welfare of the schedule caste, tribes, 
other backward classes, minorities 
and women;

No PAN India 70.00 NA No PM 
CARES 
Fund

-

Name 
of the 

Project

Sr. 
No.
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Name 
of the 

Project

Item 
from 
the 

list of 
activities 
in Sch. 

VII to the 
Act.

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through 
Implementing 

Agency

Name CSR 
Registration 

number

Sr. 
No.

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

for the project 
as per Section 

135(6) (in `)

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No)

Location 
of the 

project

Project
duration

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in `)

Amount 
spent in 

the current 
financial 

Year (in `)

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No).

State District

Nil
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(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through 

CSR spent in the financial year: 

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : None 

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : Nil

c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their 

address etc. : Not Applicable

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital 

asset) : Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not 

Applicable

                   

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 26  May, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

of Hindustan Composites Limited

P. K. Choudhary

Managing Director 

DIN : 00535670

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar     

Chairman of the CSR committee

                                    DIN : 01146720

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1

Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount transferred
 to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(  in Lakhs)`

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 

( in Lakhs)` 

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII 
as per section 135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 

in succeeding 
financial years 

(  in Lakhs)`

Amount 
(  in 

Lakhs)
`

Date of 
transfer

Name
of the
Fund

Nil

Sr. 
No.

Project
ID.

Name of 
the Project

Financial
Year in

which the
project was
commenced

Cumulative
Amount spent
at the end of 

reporting
Financial Year
 (  in Lakhs)`

Total
amount

allocated
for the
project

(  in Lakhs)`

Amount spent 
on the project in

the reporting
Financial Year 

( in Lakhs)`

Project
duration

Status of the
project -

Completed
/Ongoing

Nil

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 54.32

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial year 70.00

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(I)] 15.68

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years,
if any NA

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]* 15.68

Sr. 
No.

Particular Amount 
(  in Lakhs)`



Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

STFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Hindustan Composites Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Hindustan Composites Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluation of the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 

st 31 March, 2021(‘Audit Period’) generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
stfinancial year ended on 31  March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(iv) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;(not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period);
(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period);
(vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 

the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(vii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period); 
(viii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the Company during 

the Audit Period);and
(ix) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi) As informed and certified by the management, there are no laws that are specifically applicable to the business activities carried on 
by the Company based on its section / industry.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards (SS – 1 and SS – 2) issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 
mentioned above, however, the Company filed some e-forms with Registrar of Companies (ROC),Mumbai, Maharashtra under 

thCompanies Fresh Start Scheme, 2020 introduced vide General Circular No. 12/2020 dated 30  March, 2020.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the 
Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there was no specific event or action having a major bearing on the company’s affairs.

1. This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-I and forms an integral part of this report.

2. In the wake of Covid-19 pandemic out break, the Company provided books, papers, minute books, registers, forms and returns and 
other records maintained by it by electronic means for my audit purpose and I could not verify the original documents physically.  
However, the management of the Company has confirmed that all documents provided by electronic means are true and correct 
copies of original documents.
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‘Annexure I’

To,
The Members,
Hindustan Composites Limited

My report of even date is to read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 

contents of the secretarial records.  The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 

records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of 

management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Thane
thDate   : 26  May, 2021

For M Baldeva Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Manish Baldeva 
Proprietor

         M. No. FCS 6180 
C.P. No. 11062

 UDIN: F006180C000376913 
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Place : Thane
thDate   : 26  May, 2021

For M Baldeva Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Manish Baldeva 
Proprietor

         M. No. FCS 6180 
C.P. No. 11062

 UDIN: F006180C000376913 



ANNEXURE D

1 Details of Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

A Conservation of energy

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy

(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing 
alternative sources of energy

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments

B Technology absorption

(i) the efforts made towards technology 
absorption

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during 
the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year):

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development

C Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

(i) The foreign exchange earned (actual 

(ii) The foreign exchange outgo (actual outflows)

 inflows)

1. Installation of high density thermal insulation for reduction of 
heat loss in presses and ovens.

2. Installation of protection relays in motor control circuit for 
controlling over current.

3. Installation of VFD control in higher capacity  electric motor. 

4. Supply voltage on LT side reduced from 440V to desirable     
415 V.

5. Phasewise installation of LED Lighting replacing old fittings.

6. Replacement of old roofing sheets with polycarbonate 
transparent sheets for better use of day light.

7. Machine layout / regrouping of machines  for better use of 
dust collection and material handling.

8. Phasewise replacement of  low efficient air conditioners with 
five star energy efficient units.

Discussion initiated with Power trading platform / private solar 
energy suppliers for procuring power at best price.

 18  Lakhs

1. Development of new grade of CV liners for OEM application

2 . Development of Disc Pad for railway application 

3. Introduction of new raw material for improved performance in 
existing CV liners

4. Introduction of high performance Random Woven Clutch 
Facing

5. Improvement in quality and process of clutch buttons 

6. Developement of Disc pad for CV application

Generation of additional Business

Not Applicable

Revenue  198.22 Lakhs (Previous financial year  223.99 Lakhs)

 898.82 Lakhs (Previous financial year 779.04  Lakhs)

 1013.61 Lakhs (Previous financial year  888.58 Lakhs)

`

` ` 

` ` 

` ` 
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Place: Mumbai
thDate: 26  May, 2021

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors

of Hindustan Composites Limited

Raghu Mody

Chairman 

DIN: 00053329
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1. Industry Structure and Development

The global economy was badly hit by the health crisis and

resultant complexities caused by Covid-19 in 2020. For

several months, uncertainties and panic paralysed

economic activities in both developed and developing

countries. Manufacturing, trade and tourism came to

standstill, while job and output losses caused enormous

hardship. Governments around the world responded rapidly

to curb the contagion and its economic impact through fiscal

and monetary stimulus packages.

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), US

GDP de-grew by 3.5% in C.Y. 20 as against a growth of 2.3%

in C.Y.19. Overall, Advanced Economies posted negative

growth of 4.7%, with sharpest contractions reported in

Spain, UK and France at 11%, 9.9% and 8.2% respectively.

Even the traditionally fast growing emerging market and

developing economies could not insulate themselves

against the Covid-19 impact, recording a 2.2% decline in

GDP. China was the only bright spot with a growth of 2.3%.

India is one of the countries most affected by this pandemic.

The fiscal year began with a nation-wide 42 days lockdown

leading to multiple socio-economic challenges, such as

mass exodus of the migrant labour population, subdued

demand as consumers became cautious, job losses and

reduced income. This led to a GDP contraction of 23% in the

first quarter of the year. As the lockdown gradually eased,

with aggressive government policies to spur the economy,

industries saw some demand returning. The Indian

economy demonstrated resilience and recovery in Quarter 2

was ahead of the estimates with a 7% GDP decline instead

of the estimated 11% decline. The Q3 & Q4 saw the GDP

return to positive territory, posting gains of 0.5% and 1.6%

bringing the full year to a 7.5% decline.

Global automobile industries were severally impacted by the

pandemic in 2020. With restricted mobility throughout the

year and only partial recovery in the later part of the year,

auto industry faced depressed demand across all regions.

Automotive demand in North America declined by an

estimated 18% while the European market demand

decreased by an estimated 21%. Chinese economy’s

quicker recovery resulted in minimal impact on the auto

sales with lower de-growth of 3%. Facing lack of demand

from OEMs and a muted replacement segment, auto

component industry too suffered a decline globally.

Indian automobile industry which was already witnessing a

slowdown as the growth rate fell to 5.2% in F.Y. 2018-19. It

reported further negative growth with a fall of 14.2% in

F.Y. 2019-20 owing to overall economic slowdown, liquidity

crisis and poor consumer sentiments in the face of

pandemic. The auto industry experienced a considerably

poor Q 1 in F.Y. 2020-21 but found the tide turning with

steady increase in demand during the remaining quarters.

According to the Society of Indian Automobile Manufactures

(SIAM), the industry saw a huge decline of 79% in Q 1 

numbers. As the lockdown gradually lifted, demand made a 

comeback even as the production for Q 2 continued to be 

negative with a de-growth of 7%. Q 3 marked the beginning 

of the recovery phase, which can be largely attributed to the 

pent-up demand, positive agricultural economics and 

moderate shift from public to private transport.

The domestic sale of Automobiles during 2020-21 vis-a-vis 

2019-20 experienced a big drop across segments as under:

(Source – SIAM data)

Though Passenger Vehicle (PV) and Two Wheeler (2W) 

segments gained momentum in later part of the year, the 

Commercial vehicle (CV) and Three Wheeler (3W) 

segments remained in a big negative zone. Overall the 

automobile industry declined by 13.6% in F.Y. 2020-21 over 

F.Y. 2019-20.

2. Opportunities and threats

The RBI’s Monetary Policy Committee has projected the

GDP growth at 10.5% in F.Y. 2021-22, given the low level of

activity last year.

The Government has been working on a series of calibrated

reforms including liberal FDI policy, Production Linked

Incentive (PLI) scheme, investment facilitation and ease of

doing business, reaffirming a recovery path.

The second wave of Covid-19 infections presents a risk to

India’s growth forecast as the re-imposition of measures to

curb the spread of the virus will hit economic activity.

However, adequate importance and fillip is being given to

economic activity by the policy makers and regulators. The

measured approach followed so far and the recent

announcements of vaccination drive across the country will

be of a great benefit to the industry. Companies are optimistic

about the future but are concerned about the evolving Covid-

19 scenario across the country.

At HCL we have felt the impact of this situation with the

closure of our plants for several weeks in the beginning of the

year. We have chosen to focus on areas of opportunity within

the larger framework of the current challenges. With

commitment to our growth plans, we have moved swiftly to

tackle the roadblocks, to safe guard our business and to do

our bit towards relief and support measures. As a result,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Segment    2020-21 2019-20 Variance

Nos. Nos.

Passenger Vehicle 27,11,457 27,75,679 -2.31%

M & H Commercial vehicle 1,60,688 2,24,806 -28,52%

Light Commercial vehicle 4,07,871 4,92,882 -17.25%

3 wheelers 2,16,197 6,36,569 -66.04%

2 Wheelers 1,51,19,387 1,74,17,616 -13.20%

(  in Lakhs)`
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despite adverse market conditions, the company was able to 

improve its position both in its OEM and aftermarket 

businesses and reported a Sales growth of 4% over the last 

year. 

In the short to medium term, on account of a low base, the 

auto segment is expected to come back to a strong double-

digit growth. Increase in industrial activity, the need for 

personal mobility and an improved availability of funds will 

drive the growth of the domestic auto industry. Accordingly, 

our company is gearing up to meet the increased demand by 

way of new product development and improvement in plant 

efficiencies. The Company has also taken a lead in 

digitalization of its business processes that would enable it 

to retain its competitive advantage.

On the raw material front, during later part of the year, there 

was a sharp rise in the cost of metals, petroleum based 

products, rubber and many other items. The Indian Rupee 

also weakened by 5% during the fiscal year. This resulted 

into a huge increase in the cost of major raw materials. In 

view of intense competition, it is difficult to seek major price 

increases to compensate the effects of inflation thus bringing 

margins under severe pressure.

 In the investment segment, the company’s fund is invested in 

various asset classes including debt and equity. The 

volatility in the market may adversely affect returns due to 

Mark to Market losses. To overcome this risk, the Investment 

committee reviews the investments on a regular basis and 

takes appropriate decisions. The portfolio is managed with 

the advice of professional financial managers.

The recent second wave of Covid-19 is expected to have an 

adverse impact especially in the domestic automotive 

industry. We could clearly see the demand contraction of our 

products due to state-wise lockdowns in April and early May 

2021. However, the vaccination drive of the Government of 

India has increased optimism in the recovery process.

3. Segment – wise or product-wise performance

The Company operates in two segments viz. composite 

products and investment. During the year under review, the 

revenue from composite products stood at `15,006.48 

Lakhs (previous F.Y. ` 14,489.55 Lakhs) and from the 

investment segment this stood at ` 3,452.27 Lakhs 

(previous F.Y. ̀  3,315.64 Lakhs). The segment result before 

unallocable expenses, interest and tax from Composite 

products was ̀  618.53 Lakhs (previous F.Y. ̀  133.49 Lakhs) 

and Investment was ` 2,532.94 Lakhs (previous F.Y. 

`  2,293.74 Lakhs).

4. Outlook

The Indian auto component industry is expected to become 

the third largest in the world by 2025 and component exports 

are expected to grow by five times in 10 years. Keeping pace 

with the automotive industry, India’s auto component 

industry has been flourishing and some favorable trends are 

as under:

- Growing working population and expanding middle 

class are expected to remain key driver.

- Reduction in excise duties in motor vehicles will spur the 

demand. 

- 100% FDI allowed under automatic route for auto 

component sector.

- PLI scheme in Automotive and Auto component with a 

financial outlay over five years of ̀  57,042 Crores.

- Announcement of incentive based vehicle scrappage 

policy.

- Shift from BS-IV to BS- VI norms have placed the 

industry on par with international regulations on safety 

and emissions in the long term.

- A cost effective manufacturing base keeps cost lower 

relative to developed countries.

The above factors will spur the demand for the Company’s 

product used in segments like Heavy Vehicles, tractor, 

railroad and industry. Our company has commenced its 

actions to be a part of this change with appropriate products 

and solutions for customers. The Company will continue to 

put a thrust on new product development to meet the 

changed requirement of customers, provide better customer 

service and continue to work towards up-gradation of 

technology, improvement in quality, cost rationalization, 

cash preservation and digitalization. Besides the company 

will aggressively pursue opportunities for new OEM 

approvals, improved market share in OE and Aftermarket, 

export opportunities and additional business from the rail 

and industrial segment.

5. Risks and concerns

The Company has laid down a well-defined Risk 

Management Policy covering risk mapping, trend analysis, 

risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A 

detailed exercise is carried out from time to time to identify, 

evaluate both business and non-business risk. The Board 

periodically reviews the risks and suggests steps to be taken 

to control and mitigate the same through a properly defined 

framework.

An increase in cases of Coronavirus infection and the 

consequent restrictive measures may derail growth 

prospects of the industry. 

6. Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has in place proper and adequate internal 

control systems commensurate with the nature of its 

business, size and complexity of its business operations. 

Internal control systems comprising of policies and 

procedures are designed to ensure reliability of financial 

reporting, compliance with policies, procedures, applicable 

laws and regulations and that all assets and resources are 
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acquired economically, used efficiently and are adequately 

protected.

7. Discussion on financial performance with respect to 

operational performance

The Company’s financial performance with respect to 

operational performance is already discussed in the 

Director’s Report which forms a part of the Annual Report. 

8. Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial 

Relations front, including number of people employed

The thrust of the Company’s human resource development 

is to create a responsive and market-driven organization 

with emphasis on performance. Continuous appraisal of 

personnel competence in line with job requirements, are 

carried out to provide for necessary training to personnel 

thereby facilitating higher levels of output and productivity. 

The industrial relations at Paithan and Bhandara plants 

remain satisfactory.  The Company entered into a Long-term 

settlement with its workmen at its Bhandara Plant for a 

period of 3 years effective from August, 2020.  As on 
st31  March, 2021, 529 employees were employed in the 

Company.

9. Details of significant changes in key financial ratios / 

Return on net worth
10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report cannot be construed as holding out any forecasts, 

projections, expectations, invitations, offers, etc. within the 

meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. This 

Report basically seeks to furnish information, as laid down 

within the different headings to meet the requirements of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015.
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Standalone 

2019-20

Consolidated 

2020-21 2019-202020-21

Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.15 4.23 4.20 4.24

Inventory Turnover Ratio 8.16 8.61 8.16 8.61

Interest Coverage Ratio 127.56 47.23 121.09 40.24

Current Ratio 3.64 3.07 3.50 3.02

Debt Equity Ratio 0.000 0.007 0.000 0.007

Operating Margin Ratio 13.10% 5.90% 12.43% 5.03%

Net Profit Margin 11.00% 6.74% 10.34% 5.87%

Return on Net Worth 2.56% 1.56% 2.41% 1.38%

(  in Lakhs)`
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Hindustan Composites Limited

Raghu Mody
Chairman
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Place: Mumbai
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1. A brief statement on Company’s philosophy on code of 

governance:

The Company believes in transparency, professionalism 

and accountability, which are basic principles of corporate 

governance and would constantly endeavor to improve on 

these aspects.

2.   Corporate Ethics:

The Company adheres to the highest standards of business 

ethics, transparency in all its dealings and timely compliance 

with statutory and legal requirements.

2.1 Code of Conduct of Board Members and Senior 

Management:

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted Code of 

Conduct for its Members and Senior Management and it is 

reviewed and modified periodically as per changes in 

applicable laws. The Code highlights Corporate 

Governance as the cornerstone for sustained management 

performance and for serving all the stakeholders and for 

instilling pride of association. The code has been posted on 

the website of the Company i.e. www.hindcompo.com.

2.2 Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading:

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, the Company has adopted Code of Practices and 

Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 

Sensitive Information and Code of Conduct for Regulating, 

Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders for its 

management, directors, designated employees and other 

connected persons. All the directors, designated persons 

and third parties such as auditors, consultants etc. who 

could have access to the unpublished price sensitive 

information of the Company are governed by this code. The 

trading window was closed as and when required and 

occurrence of any material events as per the applicable 

regulations. The Company Secretary has been appointed as 

the Compliance Officer and is responsible for adherence to 

the Code.

2.3 Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for 

employees, officers and directors, which encourage them to 

report any suspected violation promptly and intend to 

investigate any report of violations made in good faith.

2.4 Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) System:

The Company has adopted Safety, Health and Environment 

(SHE) System with a commitment to provide a safe and 

healthy working environment.

3. Secretary’s Responsibility Statement:

The Company Secretary confirms that the Company has 
stduring the financial year ended 31  March, 2021:

§ Maintained all the Statutory Registers required to be 

maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 

the rules made thereunder.

Filed all the forms and returns and furnished necessary 

particulars in time, with the Registrar of Companies ( “ROC”), 

Mumbai, Maharashtra, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ( “MCA”) 

and/or Authorities as required under the Act except some 

e-forms, which were filed under Companies Fresh Start 

Scheme,2020 introduced vide General Circular No. 12/2020 
thdated 30  March, 2020.

Issued all notices as required to be given for convening the 

meetings of the Board of Directors, Committees thereof and 

General Meetings of the shareholders within the time limit 

prescribed by law.

Conducted the meetings of the Board of Directors, 

Committees thereof and Annual General Meeting as per the 

provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing 

Regulations").

Complied with all the requirements relating to the minutes of 

the proceedings of the meetings of the Board of Directors, 

Committees thereof and Shareholders. 

Made due disclosures under the requirements of the Act 

including the requirements in pursuance to the disclosures 

made by the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

Obtained necessary approvals of the Board of Directors, 

Committees thereof, Shareholders and other authorities as 

per the statutory requirements.

Given loans and made investments in accordance with the 

requirements of the Act.

Not exceeded the borrowing powers of the Company.

Registered all the particulars relating to the creation, 

modification and satisfaction of the charges with the ROC, 

Mumbai, Maharashtra.

§

§

§

§

§

§

§

§

§

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
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§ The directorship held by directors as mentioned above does not include Directorships of Private Companies/Section 8 
stCompanies/Foreign Companies as on 31  March, 2021.

§ Membership/Chairmanship of only the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of all public companies / 

subsidiary of public companies has been considered.

§

§

Effected share transfers and dispatched the certificates within the time prescribed under the Act and the rules made thereunder. 

Please refer to point no 11 (m) of this report for more details.

Complied with all the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has also complied with the requirements prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and other 

statutory authorities and also the requirements under the Act and related statutes in force to the extent applicable to the Company 

from time to time.

4. Board of Directors:

• Composition:
 

stAs on 31  March, 2021, the Board of Directors comprised of seven directors. The composition of the Board, attendance at Board 

meetings held during the financial year and at the last Annual General Meeting, number of directorships in other companies and 

Chairmanship / Membership in Committees are given below: 

Mr. Raghu Mody Executive Chairman,  
Promoter

Mr. P. K. Choudhary Managing Director 4 4 Yes 1 - -

Mr. A. B. Vaidya Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

Mr. Deepak Sethi Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agrawal Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

4 4 No 3 2 -

4 4 Yes - 2 1

4 4 Yes - 1 -

4 4 Yes - 2 -

4 1 Yes 1 3 2

4 4 Yes - - -

Positions 

Company) 

Name of 
Director 

Category No. of 
Board 

Meetings 
held 

Attendance 
particulars 

No. of 
other

Director-
ship(s) 

Committee 

(including 

Board 
Meeting 

Member 
ships 

ChairmanLast 
AGM 
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• Directorship details including the category of 
stdirectorships as on 31  March, 2021

• Number and date of Board Meetings held:

Four Board Meetings were held during the financial year 

2020-2021. The dates on which the meetings were held are 

as follows:

• Disclosure of relationship between directors inter se:

None of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se to 

any other director on the Board within the meaning of Section 

2(77) of the  Act.

 

• Number of shares and convertible instruments held by 

Non-Executive Directors:

stAs on 31  March, 2021, no Non-Executive Director was 

holding any share/convertible instruments in the Company. 

• Weblink where details of familiarization programmes 

imparted to Independent Directors is disclosed:

The details of the programmes for familiarization of 

Independent Directors with the Company their roles, rights, 

responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in 

which the Company operates, business model of the 

Company are put up on the website of the Company at the 

l ink:https://www.hindcompo.com/investor-relations/ 

documents/familiarisation-programes-for-independent-

directors.pdf

• Matrix of Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board of 

Directors:

The Company has two segments viz. manufacturing and 

investment activities. Company’s core business includes 

manufacturing, distribution and marketing of Friction 

Materials in India and abroad comprising of Brake Lining, 

Clutch Facing, Disc Brake Pad, Roll Lining, Brake Block etc. 

The Company also through its investment activities invests in 

various equity instruments, Government Securities and 

debentures and bonds.
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th29  June, 2020 7 6
th14  August, 2020 7 6

th7  November, 2020 7 6
th9  February, 2021 7 7

Date of Board Meeting Strength of 
the Board

No. of Directors
present

1. Mr. Raghu Mody Hindustan Composites 
Limited Chairperson,  

Promoter

J L Morison (India) 
Limited Non-Independent 

Director, 
Chairperson related 
to Promoter

2. Mr. P. K. 
Choudhary Limited  Director

3. Mr. A. B. Vaidya Hindustan Composites 
Limited Independent 

Director 

4. Mr. Deepak Sethi Hindustan Composites 
Limited Independent 

Director 

5. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
K. S. Brar Limited Independent 

Director 

6. Mr. Lalit Kumar 
Bararia  Limited Independent 

Director 

J L Morison (India) 
Limited Independent 

Director

7. Mrs. Preeti Vimal 
Agrawal  Limited Independent 

Director 

Executive 

Non-Executive,

Hindustan Composites Managing

Non-Executive,

Non-Executive,

Hindustan Composites Non-Executive,

Hindustan Composites Non-Executive,

Non-Executive,

Hindustan Composites Non-Executive, 

Name of the 
Listed Entity

Sr. 
No.

Name of 
the Director

Directorship 
Details
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The following are the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of 

the Company’s aforesaid business for it to function effectively, efficiently and those available with the Board as a whole and the 

specific areas of focus or expertise of individual board members have been highlighted hereunder:

Sales & Marketing: 
Experience in developing strategies to grow sales and market share and 
marketing management based on understanding of the auto components 
goods industry.

Global Business experience:
Experience in leading businesses in different geographies/markets around the 
world with an understanding of diverse business environments, economic 
conditions, cultures, and regulatory frameworks, and a broad perspective on 
global market opportunities.

General Management / Governance: 
Strategic thinking, decision making and protect interest of all stakeholders;

Financial skills: 
Understanding the financial statements, financial controls, risk management, 
mergers and acquisition, etc.

Technical Skills: 
Technical skills and professional skills and knowledge including legal and 
regulatory aspects.

Core skills / competencies /
Expertise and Description

Name of Directors

Mr. Raghu 
Mody

Mr. P. K. 
Choudhary

Mr. A. B. 
Vaidya

Mr. Deepak 
Sethi

Lt. Gen. 
(Retd.) 
K. S. Brar

Mr. Lalit 
Kumar 
Bararia 

Mrs. Preeti 
Vimal
Agrawal

• Declaration by the Board: 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the 

Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in 

Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulations 16(1)(b) and  

25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and they are 

Independent of the management.

Further, all the Independent Directors of the Company have 

affirmed compliance with Rule 6(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, 

regarding enrollment in the Data Bank for Independent 
ndDirectors as required under Notification dated 22  October, 

2019 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in this 

regard.

None of the Independent Director serve as Independent 

Director in more than 7 listed companies.

• Resignation of Independent Director:

None of the Independent Director has resigned during the 

financial year 2020-21.

5. Audit Committee:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the  Act and 

Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of 

Directors has duly constituted the Audit Committee. 

Majority of the members of the Committee are Independent 

Directors including the Chairman of the Committee.

• Brief description of terms of reference:

The Broad terms and reference of Audit Committee are to 

review the financial statements before submission to 

Board, to review reports of the Internal Auditors and to 

review the weakness in internal controls reported by 

Internal and Statutory Auditors and to review the 

remuneration of Internal and Statutory Auditors. In addition, 

the powers and role of the Audit Committee are as laid down 

under Regulation 18 read with and Schedule II Part C of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the  Act.

• Composition:

st As on 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee comprised of 

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia, Mr. A. B. Vaidya, Mr. Deepak Sethi, 

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar and Mr. Raghu Mody as its 

members. Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia is the Chairman of the 
thCommittee and he was present at the  56  Annual General 

thMeeting of Company held on 29  September, 2020. All 

members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and 

have related financial management expertise by virtue of 

their comparable experience and background. The 

partners / authorised representatives of Statutory Auditors 

and Internal Auditors are invited to the meetings of the Audit 

Committee, as and when required. 
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The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

• Meetings and attendance during the financial year:

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Audit Committee 
th thmet four times on 29  June, 2020, 14  August, 2020, 

th th7  November, 2020 and 9  February, 2021. The attendance 

at the Committee meetings was as follows:

6.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 

Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of 

Directors has duly constituted the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, inter alia, recommends for 

appointment / reappointment of executive directors, key 

managerial personnel (KMPs) and senior management 

personnel (SMPs) of the Company and for the 

remuneration payable to them.

• Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of this committee are wide enough 

covering the matters specified for appointment / 

reappointment and remuneration to the Directors and 

Senior Management under the provisions of Section 178 of 

the Act,  read with Regulation 19 and Schedule II Part D (A) 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

•    Composition:

st As on 31 March 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee comprised of Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia, Mr. A. B. 

Vaidya, Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar as its members. Mr. Lalit 

Kumar Bararia is the Chairman of the Committee and he 
thwas present at the 56  Annual General Meeting of 

thCompany held on 29  September, 2020.
 

The Company Secretary and Compliance Office of the 

Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

•    Meetings and attendance during the financial year:

During the financial year 2020-2021 the Nomination and 
thRemuneration Committee met once on 29  June, 2020. 

The attendance at the Committee meeting was as follows:

• Performance evaluation criteria for Independent 

Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(2) of the Act,  

read with Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has 

evaluated the performance of each Independent Director 

and fulfilment of the independence criteria as specified in 

SEBI Listing Regulations and their independence from the 

management. The questionnaires are prepared 

considering the business of the Company. The evaluation 

framework for assessing the performance of Independent 

Directors comprises of the following key areas:

1. Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings;

2. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations;

3. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future 

growth of the Company and its performances;

4. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond 

information provided by the management.

7. Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and 

Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations the Board of 

Directors has duly constituted the Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee. 

• Brief description of terms of reference:

The Committee is empowered to oversee the redressal of 

investors’ complaints pertaining to share transfers, non-

receipt of annual reports, dividend payments, issue of 

duplicate certificates, transfer/transmission /demat / remat 

of shares and other miscellaneous complaints. The 

Committee is also responsible for the satisfactory redressal 

of investors’ complaints and recommends measures for 

overall improvement in the quality of investor services. In 

addition the terms of reference of this committee includes 
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Category  Status No. of 
meetings
 attended

1 Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia Non-Executive, 
ndependent Director

2. Mr. Deepak Sethi Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

3. Mr. A. B. Vaidya Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

4. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

5. Mr. Raghu Mody Executive Chairperson,  
Promoter

Chairman 1
I

Member 4

Member 4

Member 4
K.S. Brar 

Member 4

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors

Category  Status No. of 
meetings
 attended

1. Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

2. Mr. A. B. Vaidya Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

3. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
K. S. Brar Independent Director

Chairman -

Member 1

Non-Executive, Member 1

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors
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   ( in Lakhs)` 

Name Salary Perquisites 
or  
Allowances

Contribution 
to PF and 
others

Commission Sitting
fees

Total

Mr. Raghu Mody 144.28 0.29 - - - 144.57

Mr. P. K. Choudhary 69.45 10.38 4.33 - - 84.18

Mr. A. B. Vaidya - - - 2.00 1.20 3.20

Mr. Deepak Sethi - - - 2.00 0.80 2.80

Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K.S. Brar - - - 2.00 1.20 3.20

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia - - - 2.00 0.20 2.20

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agrawal - - - 2.00 0.40 2.40

 

the provisions of Regulation 20 and Schedule II Part D (B) 

of SEBI Listing Regulations.

• Composition:

stAs on 31  March 2021, the Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee comprised of Mr. A. B. Vaidya, Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 

K. S. Brar and Mr. Raghu Mody as its members. 

Mr. A. B. Vaidya, Non-Executive, Independent Director of 

the Company is the Chairman of the Committee and he was 
thpresent at the 56  Annual General Meeting of Company 

thheld on 29  September, 2020. 

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

• Status of investors’ complaints/services requests:
  

Opening balance at the beginning of the year   : Nil
Received during the year   : 02
Disposed during the year   : 02
Closing balance at the end of the year    : Nil

8. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act the 

Board of Directors has duly constituted the Corporate 

Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

• Brief description of terms of reference:

I. To frame the CSR Policy and CSR Annual Plan and its 

review from time-to-time.

II. To ensure effective implementation and monitoring of the 

CSR activities as per the approved policy, plans and 

budget.

III. To ensure compliance with the laws, rules and regulations 

governing the CSR and to periodically report to the Board of 

Directors.

• Composition:

stAs on 31  March 2021, the Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee comprised of Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar, Mr. P. 

K. Choudhary and Mr. Raghu Mody as its members. Lt. 

Gen. (Retd.) K. S. Brar Non-Executive, Independent 

Director of the Company is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

•    Meetings and attendance during the financial year:

During the financial year 2020-2021 the CSR Committee 
th thmet twice on 29  June, 2020 and 9  February, 2021. The 

attendance at the Committee meeting was as follows:
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9. Risk Management Committee:

 

10. Remuneration to Directors:

a. The Non-Executive Directors had no pecuniary 

relationship or transactions with the Company during 

the financial year 2020-2021.

b. Non-Executive Directors did not draw any 

remuneration from the Company. Sitting fees to Non-

executive Directors is being paid at the rate of Rs. 

10,000/- for each meeting of the Board and 

Committees (excluding CSR Committee meetings) 

attended by them. Within the ceiling of the Act, 

Independent Directors are also paid a commission, 

the amount whereof is determined by the Board.

Details of remuneration / fees paid /payable to the 

Directors are as under:

(i) The above details of remuneration or fees paid 

include all elements of remuneration package of 

individual director summarized under major groups.

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Company was not 

required to constitute Risk Management Committee under 

Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

However, the Company has constituted a Risk 
thManagement Committee effective from 26  May, 2021 and 

has also adopted the revised Risk Management Policy and 

has framed a Risk Management Committee Charter, in 

accordance with the amended provisions of the SEBI 
thListing Regulations effective from 5  May, 2021.  The 

details of composition of the committee are provided in 

Directors Report forming a part of this annual report.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1

Category  Status No. of 
meetings
 attended

1. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
K. S. Brar Independent Director

2. Mr. P. K. Choudhary Managing Director Member 2

3. Mr. Raghu Mody Executive Chairperson,  
Promoter

Non-Executive, Chairman 2

Member 2

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors



Postal Ballot:

During the financial year under review, no resolution was 

passed through Postal Ballot process.

None of the business proposed to be transacted at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting is required to be 

transacted through postal ballot.

12. Means of communication:

•  The Company has published its results as per the details 

mentioned below:

*SEBI has granted relaxation from publication of 

advertisements of quarterly results in the newspapers vide 
thcircular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12  

May, 2020.

W e b s i t e :  T h e  C o m p a n y ’ s  w e b s i t e  v i z .  

www.hindcompo.com  contains a separate dedicated 

section ‘Investor Relations’ where shareholders’ 

information is available. The Company’s Annual Report is 

also available in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

News Papers Date of
Board Meeting

Date of
Publication

Not required to publish* 29-06-2020 NA*

Financial Express 
(English - All India Edition) 
Mumbai Laksyadeep (Marathi) 14-08-2020 16-08-2020

Financial Express 
(English - All India Edition) 
Mumbai Laksyadeep (Marathi) 07-11-2020 08-11-2020

Financial Express 
(English - All India Edition) 
Mumbai Laksyadeep (Marathi) 09-02-2021 10-02-2021
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(ii) Apart from the above mentioned remuneration or fees 

paid, there are no other fixed component and 

performance linked incentives based on the 

performance criteria;

(iii) There are no separate service contracts with any of 

the directors. The tenure of office of the Managing 

Director is for five years and Whole Time / Executive 

Directors is for three years from their respective dates 

of appointment, and can be terminated by either party 

by giving one month’s notice in writing.  There is no 

separate provision for payment of severance fees.

(iv) No stock options are offered to any of the Directors of 

the Company.

11. General Body Meetings:

• Location and time, where last three Annual General 

Meetings held:

• Special resolutions passed at last three AGMs:

th30  August, 
2018

Hall of Harmony, Nehru 
Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 
Road, Worli, 
Mumbai – 400 018

th29  August, 
2019

Hall of Harmony, Nehru 
Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 
Road, Worli, 
Mumbai – 400 018

Date Location

th 29
September, 
2020

Conducted throughVideo 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 
Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”).

2017-18 11.30
a.m.

2018-19 11.30
a.m.

 Time Financial
year

2019-20 11.45
a.m.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1

th30  August, 
2018

1. S p e c i a l  R e s o l u t i o n  f o r  
re-appointment of Mr. A. B. Vaidya 
(DIN: 00246208) as an Independent, 
Non – Executive Director of the 
Company, for another term of five 

stconsecutive years w.e.f. 1  April, 
st2019 to 31  March, 2024.

2. S p e c i a l  R e s o l u t i o n  f o r  
re-appointment of Lt. Gen. (Retd.) K. 
S. Brar (DIN: 01146720) as an 
Independent ,  Non–Execut ive  
Director of the Company, for another 
term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 

st st1  April, 2019 to 31  March, 2024.

Particulars of Special ResolutionsAGM

th 29 August, 
2019

1. S p e c i a l  R e s o l u t i o n  f o r  r e -
appointment of Mr. Deepak Sethi 
(DIN: 07165462) as an Independent 
Non–Executive Director of the 
Company, for a second term of five 

rdconsecutive years w.e.f. 23  April, 
nd2020 to 22  April, 2025.

2. Special Resolution for revision in 
remuneration payable to Mr. Raghu 
Mody, (DIN: 00053329), Executive 
Chairman and Whole Time Director of 

stthe Company, w.e.f. 1  April, 2019 for 
the remaining period of his tenure.

1. Special Resolution for the re-
appointment of Mr. Raghu Mody 
(DIN: 00053329) as Executive 
Chairman and Whole Time Director of 
the Company for a further period of 3 

st thyears w.e.f. 1  October, 2020 till 30  
September, 2023.

2. Special Resolution the waiver of 
excess remuneration paid to Mr. 
Raghu Mody (DIN: 00053329), 
Executive Chairman and Whole Time 
Director of the Company during the 

stfinancial year ended 31  March, 
2020.

Particulars of Special ResolutionsAGM

th29  
September,
2020



h) Stock Code: 

         BSE:509635
 NSE:HINDCOMPOS
       ISIN: INE310C01029

i) Stock Market Price Data and performance in 

comparison to BSE Sensex/NSE NIFTY 50: 

The monthly high / low quotations of shares traded on the 

BSE Limited during each month in last financial year and 

performance in comparison to BSE Sensex are as follows:

*Source: www.bseindia.com

The monthly high / low quotations of shares traded on the 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited during each 

month in last financial year and performance in comparison 

to NSE Sensex are as follows:

*Source: www.nseindia.com

j) Stock Performance in comparison to broad based 

indices:

The chart below shows the comparison of the Company’s 

share price movement on BSE vis-à-vis the movement of 
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News releases, presentations, among others: All Corporate 

Announcements made to the Stock Exchanges during the 

financial year 2020-2021 are available on the website of the 

Company. 

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Company has not 

made any presentations to institutional investors or 

analysts.

13. General Shareholder information:

tha) Annual General Meeting: Wednesday, 29  September, 

2021 at 11:45 a.m. via. Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other 

Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

b) Financial Year: April 1 to March 31;

c) Dividend Payment Date: The dividend of ` 2/- per equity 

share of ` 5/- each, as recommended by the Board, if 

declared at the Annual General Meeting, will be credited / 

paid directly in their bank accounts, subject to deduction of 

income-tax at source wherever applicable, between 
th thThursday, 7  October, 2021 to  Wednesday, 20  October, 

2021.  

d) Book Closure: The Register of Members and the Share 

Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 
rd thThursday, 23  September, 2021 to Wednesday, 29  

September, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

e) Cut-off date for remote e-voting: The remote e-

voting/voting rights of the shareholders/beneficial owners 

shall be reckoned on the equity shares held by them as on 
ndthe cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, 22  September, 2021. 

thRemote e-voting shall remain open from Sunday, 26  
thSeptember, 2021 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on Tuesday, 28  

September, 2021 (5.00 p.m.). For the members who have 

not updated their bank account details, the Company shall 

dispatch dividend warrants. 

f) Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Equity Shares 

a) BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 

400 001

b) National Stock Exchange of India Limited
thExchange Plaza, 5  Floor, ‘G’ Block, Bandra Kurla 

Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051

g) Listing Fees:

The Company has paid the listing fees for the financial year 

2021-2022 to all the stock exchanges where the shares are 

listed.

Month 
Share price of the 

Company on BSE (`)*
BSE Sensex 

(Points)* 
High Low High Low 

April, 2020 156.00 100.65 33887.25 27500.79

May, 2020 141.00 115.25 32845.48 29968.45

June, 2020 180.00 126.00 35706.55 32348.10

July, 2020 197.95 151.35 38617.03 34927.20

August, 2020 229.95 161.70 40010.17 36911.23

September, 2020 202.00 175.00 39359.51 36495.98

October, 2020 208.95 175.15 41048.05 38410.20

November, 2020 243.50 174.70 44825.37 39334.92

December, 2020 246.20 203.05 47896.97 44118.10

January, 2021 387.45 221.35 50184.01 46160.46

February, 2021 338.00 283.00 52516.76 46433.65

March, 2021 310.00 261.10 51821.84 48236.35

Month 

High Low High Low 

April, 2020 158.00 98.25 9889.05 8055.80

May, 2020 138.95 113.70 9598.85 8806.75

June, 2020 195.60 123.00 10553.15 9544.35

July, 2020 195.00 152.60 11341.40 10562.90

August, 2020 229.85 160.00 11794.25 11111.45

September, 2020 204.05 175.00 11618.10 10790.20

October, 2020 209.00 175.40 12025.45 11535.45

November, 2020 243.00 174.10 13145.85 11756.40

December, 2020 247.05 200.50 14024.85 13131.45

January, 2021 387.80 221.45 14753.55 13596.75

February, 2021 338.45 272.65 15431.75 14467.75

March, 2021 310.60 267.00 15336.30 14264.40

Share price of 
the Company on 

NSE ( )*`

NSE NIFTY 50
(Index)*

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



Shares having 
nominal value of `

From T o

No. of 
holders

%
No. of 

Shares
%

1 – 500

501 – 1000

1001 – 2000

2001 – 3000

3001 – 4000

4001 – 5000

5001 – 10000

10001 and above

TOTAL

13472

406

155

49

19

10

13

34

14158

95.15

2.87

1.09

0.35

0.13

0.07

0.09

0.24

100.00

1136179

288851

221619

126251

64143

44583

88750

12798624

14769000

7.69

1.96

1.50

0.85

0.43

0.30

0.60

86.66

100.00

the BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty for the financial year ended 
st31  March, 2021. 

k) Trading of Securities: The securities of the Company 

were not suspended from trading during the financial year 

2020-2021.

l) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: Link Intime India 

Pvt. Ltd, C-101, 247, Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, 

Mumbai 400 083, Phone: (022) – 4918 6000 / 270, Fax: 

(022)- 4918 6060, e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

m) Share Transfer System:

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, as amended from time to time, securities of 

the Company can be transferred only in dematerialized 
st from with effect from 1 April, 2019, except in case of 

transmission or transposition of securities. Further, SEBI 
st has fixed 31 March, 2021 as the cut-off date for re-

lodgment of transfer deeds and the shares that are re-

lodged for transfer shall be issued only in DEMAT mode. 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 

Transfers of equity shares in electronic form are affected 

through the depositories with no involvement of the 

Company. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is 

authorized by the Board to approve the transfers, which are 

noted at subsequent Board Meetings.

39

n) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021:

o) Dematerialization of Shares:

stAs on 31  March, 2021, 97.04% of the total shares of the 

Company were in dematerialized form. 

p) Convertible instruments:

The Company has not issued any Global Depository 

Receipts (GDRs)/American Depository Receipts 

(ADRs)/warrants or any convertible instrument, which is 

likely to have impact on the Company’s Equity.

q) Commodity Price risk or foreign exchange risk and 

hedging activities:

The Company is exposed to the risk of Price fluctuations of 

raw material, which are proactively managed by forward 

booking of materials, inventory management and vendor 

development practices.

As regards, foreign exchange risk, there is natural hedging 

of risk as our import and export generally remains at the 

same level.

r) Plant Locations :

Paithan: D-2/1, MIDC Industrial Area, Paithan, Dist. 

Aurangabad–431107

Bhandara: C-10/1, Bhandara Industrial Area, Gadegaon, 

Dist. Bhandara–441904  

s) Regd. Office & Address for Correspondence:

Hindustan Composites Limited, 
Peninsula Business Park, ‘A’ Tower, 

th8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013
Telephone: 022 66880100; Fax: 022 66880105 
E-mail: investor@hindcompo.com

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1
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t) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along 

with revisions (if any): 

14. Other Disclosures:

i. Related Party Transactions:

During the financial year, the Company had no transactions 

with its promoters, directors or with their relatives etc. which 

may have conflict with the interest of the Company. Details 

on materially significant related party transactions are 

given in the appended financial statements under notes to 

the accounts. The policy on dealing with Related Party 

Transactions is available on Company’s website at 

h t tps: / /www.hindcompo.com/ investor- re la t ions/  

documents/related-party-transaction-policy.pdf

ii. Compliance by the Company:

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations as well as the regulations and 

guidelines of SEBI. Consequently there were no strictures 

or penalties imposed by either SEBI or Stock Exchanges or 

any other statutory authorities for non-compliance of any 

matter related to the capital markets during the last three 

years, except imposition of fine by the BSE Ltd. for non-

submission of the financial results (consolidated) for the 
thquarter ended 30  June, 2019 within specified time, 

however the BSE vide its circular no LIST/COMP/30/2019-
th20 dated 26  September, 2019 clarified that the Company 

was required to submit consolidated financial results from 
ththe quarter ending 30  September, 2019, and not from the 

thquarter ended 30  June, 2019, accordingly the Company 

was not required to pay any fine as imposed.

iii. Whistle Blower policy /Vigil Mechanism and 

affirmation that no personnel have been denied access 

to the Audit Committee:

The Company has established a mechanism for 

employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, 

actual or suspected fraud, or violation of code of conduct or 

ethics policy. The mechanism also provides for adequate 

safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of 

the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 

Chairman of the audit committee in the exceptional cases. 

We affirm that during the financial year 2020-2021, no 

employee was denied access to the Audit Committee.

iv. Adoption of mandatory and non-mandatory 

requirements of Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing  

Regulations :

The Company has complied with all mandatory 

requirements of Regulation 27 and Schedule V of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations. The Company has adopted following 

non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 and Part E 

of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations.

(a)  Audit Qualification - The Company is in the regime of 

unmodified audit opinion on financial statements.

(b) Separate posts of Chairman and CEO – The 

Company has separate Chairman and Managing 

Director or Chief Executive Officer.   

(c) Reporting of Internal Auditor – The Internal Auditors 

directly reports to the Audit Committee.

v. Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries:

The Company does not have any subsidiary, hence is not 

required to frame policy on Material Subsidiaries.

vi. Details of utilization of funds raised through 

preferential allotment or qualified institutions 

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of the 

SEBI Listing Regulation:

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Company has not 

raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement. 

vii. Certificate from Company Secretary:

A certificate received from M/s. M Baldeva Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries, Thane is attached in this 

report stating that none of the directors on the Board of the 

company have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 

authority.

viii. Recommendation by Committee:

The Board has accepted all recommendations from all the 

committees of the Board which is mandatorily required, 

during the financial year under review. 
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A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1

Sr.
 No.

Name of the 
Credit Rating 

Agency

Acuite Ratings & 
Research Limited 
(formerly known 
as SMERA 
Ratings Limited)

1

Details of Credit Ratings 
obtained including revisions

Scale Amount 
(` Cr)

Rating 

Long Term 
Instruments (fund 
based)

Short Term 
Instruments (fund 
based + non fund 
based)

9.00 ACUITE A- / 
Stable 

16.00 ACUITE  A2+

25.00Total 
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19. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account / 

unclaimed suspense account

The voting rights on outstanding shares lying at the 

suspense account will remain frozen till the rightful owner of 

such shares claims the shares.

19. Compliance Certificate for Code of Conduct:

A declaration by Managing Director of the Company 

affirming compliance by the Board members and Senior 

Management Personnel to the Code of Conduct is also 

annexed herewith and forms part of Annual Report as per 

Schedule V of the SEBI Listing  Regulations.

20. Compliance Certificate by Statutory Auditors:

The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory 

Auditors regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in Schedule V of the SEBI  

Listing Regulations  which is annexed herewith and forming 

part of Annual Report.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
of Hindustan Composites Limited

Raghu Mody
Chairman

DIN: 00053329

ix. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its 

subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

auditor and all entities in the network firm/network 

entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are 

given in Note 32 to the Standalone Financial Statements 

and to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

x. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013:

15. Compliance of the requirement of Corporate 

Governance Report: 

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has 

complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance 

Report of sub paras (2) to (10) of the Point C of Schedule V 

of the SEBI  Listing Regulations.

16. Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate 

Governance 

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Company has 

complied with the Regulations 17-20, 22-23, 24A, 25-27 

and Clauses (b) and (i) sub-regulations 46 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations. Regulations 21 and 24 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations  are not applicable to the Company.

17. Disclosure of accounting treatment:

In the preparation of financial statements, the Company has 

followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent 

applicable.

18. Related Party Disclosures:

The disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 

(Ind AS - 24) on “Related Party” are given in appended in 

Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements under 

Notes to Accounts.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1

Sr. Particulars                              No. of  

a. Complaints filed during the financial 
year 0

b. Complaints disposed of during the 
financial year 0

c. Complaints pending as on end of the
 financial year 0

No.            Complaints

Particulars Number 
of 

shareholders

Number 
of Equity 
Shares

A g g r e g a t e  n u m b e r  o f  
s h a r e h o l d e r s  a n d  t h e  
outstanding shares in the 
suspense account lying as on 

st 1 April, 2020

Transfer red dur ing the 
financial year

S h a r e h o l d e r s  w h o  
approached the Company for 
transfer of shares from 
suspense account during the 
financial year

Shareholders to whom shares 
were transferred from the 
suspense account during the 

year

Shareholders whose shares 
are transferred to the demat 
account of the IEPF Authority 
as per Section 124 of the Act

A g g r e g a t e  n u m b e r  o f  
s h a r e h o l d e r s  a n d  t h e  
outstanding shares in the 
suspense account lying as on 

st31  March, 2021

financial 

-

2126

-

-

-

2126

-

123652

-

-

-

123652

Place: Mumbai
thDate: 26  May, 2021
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DECLARATION – CODE OF CONDUCT

As per Regulation 17 and Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  I, P. K. Choudhary, Managing Director of the Company do 

hereby declare that all the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct 
stduring the financial year ended 31  March, 2021.

For Hindustan Composites Limited 

P. K. Choudhary
Managing Director

DIN: 00535670

Place: Mumbai 
thDate: 26  May, 2021

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HINDUSTAN COMPOSITES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by HINDUSTAN COMPOSITES LIMITED (‘the Company’) 

for the year ended March 31, 2021 as stipulated in Regulations 17-27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 

paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations 

The compliance of the conditions contained in the corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility 

includes the designing, implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure compliance with the 

conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations of the Company including the preparation and maintenance 

of all relevant supporting records and documents. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of 

providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), Standards 

on auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 

Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that 

Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion 

Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and 

representation made by the Management, in our opinion, we certify that the Company has complied, in all material respects, with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2021.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Restriction on Use 

The certificate is addressed to and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply 

with requirement of aforesaid Regulations, and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not 

accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into 

whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.
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For Bagaria and Co. LLP

FRN. – 113447W/W-100019

Chartered Accountants

Vinay Somani

Partner

Membership No. 143503

UDIN : 21143503AAAAIV5142

Place: Mumbai
thDate:  26  May, 2021

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1
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CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Part C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To 
The Members of 
Hindustan Composites Limited
Peninsula Business Park, ‘A’ Tower,

th8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the directors of Hindustan Composites 
thLimited (CIN: L29120MH1964PLC012955) and having registered office at Peninsula Business Park, ‘A’ Tower, 8  Floor, Senapati 

Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the 

purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Part C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status 

at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby 
st certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below during the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2021 have 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1. Mr. Raghu N. Mody 00053329 29/12/1987

2. Mr. Pawan Kumar Choudhary 00535670 18/03/2005

3. Mr. Ashok B. Vaidya 00246208 04/09/2006

4. Mr. Deepak Sethi 07165462 23/04/2015

5. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Kuldip Singh Brar 01146720 30/09/2008

6. Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia 00204670 13/02/2020

7. Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agrawal 08693668 13/02/2020

Place: Thane
thDate: 26  May, 2021

For M Baldeva Associates

Company Secretaries

CS Manish Baldeva

Proprietor

M. No. FCS: 6180 C.P. No. 11062

UDIN: F006180B000398297
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company

2. Name of the Company

3. Registered address

4. Website

5. E-mail id

6. Financial Year reported

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 
activity code-wise)

(a) Friction materials - Brake lining, Brake Block,
Clutch  facing and Button

(b) Investment and Treasury operations

8. List three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

9. Total number of locations where business activity is 
undertaken by the Company

(a) Number of International Locations (Provide details of 
major 5)

(b)  Number of National Locations

10. Markets served by the Company – Local/ State/ National/ 
International

L29120MH1964PLC012955

Hindustan Composites Limited
 

thPeninsula Business Park,"A" Tower 8  Floor, Senapati Bapat 
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013
 
www.hindcompo.com

investor@hindcompo.com

2020-2021

29301

643

1)  Brake Lining; 
2)  Brake Block; 
3)  Clutch Facing and Button
 

Internationl location - Nil

1) One Registered Office in Mumbai, Maharashtra,  
2) Two Manufacturing Units in Aurangabad & Bhandara in   

Maharashtra, 
3)  Four Branch Offices in Mumbai, Kolkata, Delhi & Chennai

The company’s  products are sold in both National & International 
Markets 

Sr. 
No. 

Financial details of the Company FY 2020-21 Standalone       
(  in Lakhs) `

FY 2020-21 Consolidated           

 (  in Lakhs) `

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Paid up Capital (INR) 738.45 738.45

2. Total Turnover (INR) 18,458.75 18,458.75

3. Total profit after taxes (INR) 2,099.16 1,972.36

4. Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
 as percentage of profit after tax (%)

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has

 

Please refer to 'Annexure B' of Board’s Report for CSR activities 
been incurred:- undertaken by the Company during the  financial year 2020-21

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
rules made thereunder, the Company is required to spend at 
least 2% of average net profit of last 3 financial years i.e. ̀  54.32 
Lakhs. The Company has spent ` 70.00 Lakhs i.e. 3.33% of 
Profit after tax on CSR activities for financial year 2020-21
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ 
Companies ?

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the 
BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate 
the number of such subsidiary  company(s)

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) 
that the Company does business with, participate in the BR 
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the 
percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-
60%, More than 60%]

The Company does not have any subsidiaries 

Not Applicable 

No

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1      Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

        (a)    Details of the Director/Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies

       

       (b)    Details of the BR head

1. DIN Number 00535670

2. Name Mr. Pawan Kumar Choudhary 

3. Designation Managing Director 

No. Particulars Details

1. DIN Number (if applicable) 00535670

2. Name Mr. Pawan Kumar Choudhary 

3. Designation Managing Director 

4. Telephone number (022) 6688 0100 

5. e-mail id pkc@hindcompo.com
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2 Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies

The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) released by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. Briefly these are as follows:

Principle Name of the Principle 

P 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

P 2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their 
life cycle.

P 3 Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

P 4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who 
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised.

P 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

P 6 Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

P 7 Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

P 8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

P 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

    No. 
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No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

(a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

1. Do you have a policy/ policies for.... Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y

2. Has the policy being formulated in consultation 
with the relevant stakeholders? Y Y Y Y Y Y N Y Y

3. Does the policy conform to any national / 
international standards? If yes, specify? 
(50 words)

4. Has the policy being approved by the Board?
Is yes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ 
appropriate Board Director?

5. Does the company have a specified committee 
of the Board/ Director/ Official to oversee the 
implementation of the policy?

6. Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed 
online?

7. Has the policy been formally communicated to 
all relevant internal and external stakeholders?

8. Does the company have in-house structure to 
implement the policy/ policies.

9. Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to 
address stakeholders’ grievances related to the
policy/ policies?

10. Has the company carried out independent 
audit/ evaluation of the working of this policy by
 an internal or external agency?

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

www.hindcompo.com

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

The policies are based on the ‘National Voluntary Guidelines 
on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of 
Business’, released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Companies Act and various SEBI Regulations. 

The policies have been communicated to key internal and 
external stakeholders through the Companys' website 
www.hindcompo.com

The policies are evaluated internally from time to time and 
updated whenever required.
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(b) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 
options)

No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. The company has not understood the Principles  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

2. The company is not at a stage where it finds 
itself in a position to formulate and implement
 the policies on specified principles  -  -  -  -  -  - Y  -  - 

3. The company does not have financial or 
manpower resources available for the task  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

4. It is planned to be done within next 6 months  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

5. It is planned to be done within the next 1 year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

6. Any other reason (please specify)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

3 Governance related to BR

(a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR performance of 
the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year - The Board of Directors of the Company shall review 
BR performace of the Company annually or whenever required.

(b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently it is 
published?

The BR is published as a part of the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 and is also available on website of the 
Company at www.hindcompo.com
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Ans. Yes, the company is certified under IATF-16949-2016. It 
has procedures in place to support the sustainable sourcing 
activities.

These procedures are followed during vendor evaluation 
and applicable for suppliers as per audit plan and 
procedure. Approx. 60 products / services (including 
transportation ) are sourced in a sustainable manner.

4 Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and 
services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work?

(a) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their 
capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

Ans. Yes, the company procures goods and services from 
MSMEs (Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises). The 
company assesses their capability on a regular basis and 
provides technical and financial support to improve their 
capability and capacity where ever required.

5 Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products 
and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of 
products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). 
Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Ans. (a) The company is having a culture of continuously 
recycling the waste.

(b) Drilling / Grinding dust is properly processed  and  re-
used as per the set formulation. Percentage of such 
waste may be >10 %.

(c) steel scrap is being sold to scrap dealers which is 
ultimately used in re-rolling industry. The value of such 
scrap is very low.

Principle 3 : Businesses should promote the well-being of all 
employees.

1 Please indicate the Total number of employees.

st Ans. There were 529 permanent employees as on 31 March, 
2021 in the Company.

2 Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on 
temporary/contractual/casual basis.

Ans. There were 672 employees hired on temporary/ 
stcontractual/casual basis as on 31  March, 2021 in the 

Company. 

3 Please indicate the Number of permanent women 
employees.

stAns. There were 6 permanent woman employees as on 31  
March, 2021 in the Company.

4 Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with 
disabilities

stAns. There were 14 employees with disabilities as on 31  March, 
2021 in the Company.

Principle 1 :  Businesses should conduct and govern 
themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

1 Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption 
cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the 
Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs 
/Others?

Ans. Yes, policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption covers 
only the Company. No, it does not extend to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others.

2 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in 
the past financial year and what percentage was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Ans. Total 2 complaints were received from shareholders during 
the financial year 2020-21 and all have been resolved. 
Complaints/grievances from other stakeholders are dealt 
with on an ongoing basis. No major complaints were 
received.  

Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services 
that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their lifecycle.

1 List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has 
incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or 
opportunities. 

Ans. The company continuously improves its products to meet 
customer requirements.
Following products and their designs have incorporated 
social or environmental concerns, risks and opportunities :
(a) Brake Blocks;
(b) Brake Linings;
(c) Clutch facings;

2 For each such product, provide the following details in 
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) 
per unit of product(optional):

(i) Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution 
achieved since the previous year throughout the value 
chain?

(II) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) 
has been achieved since the previous year?

Ans. (a) Brake Blocks - Usage of environmental friendly 
materials and  Improvement in process.

(b) Brake Linings - Efficient use of raw material and 
energy with manufacturing innovation. 

(c) Clutch facing - Usage of environmental friendly 
material, extraction of solvent and energy 
conservation.

3 Does the company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

(a) If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced 
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
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Principle 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human
rights.

1 Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only 
the  company or  ex tend to  the Group/Jo in t  
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

Ans. It covers the company.

2 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in 
the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily 
resolved by the management?

Ans. No complaints relating to violation of human rights were 
received during the financial year.

Principle 6 : Businesses should respect, protect, and make 
efforts to restore the environment.

1 Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/ 
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

Ans. Environmental Policy is applicable to all the business units 
of the company and it encourages all business partners 
including suppliers, vendors and contractors to follow this 
policy.

2 Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address 
global environmental issues such as climate change, global 
warming, etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for 
webpage etc.

Ans. No

3 Does the company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N

Ans. Yes

4 Does the company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any 
environmental compliance report is filed.

Ans. No

5 Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on – 
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. 
Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page 
etc.

Ans. Yes, the details are given under Director's Report.

6 Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within 
the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial 
year being reported?

Ans. Yes, the company ensures compliances with the applicable 
laws.

7 Number of show cause/ legal notices received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

Ans. Nil.

5 Do you have an employee association that is recognized by 
management.

Ans. The Company have employees association i.e. Union- 
Maharashtra Kamgar Vikas Sanghatna(Paithan) & Union- 
Hindustan Composites Employee union (Bhandara) 
recognised by the Company's management.

6 What percentage of your permanent employees is 
members of this recognized employee association?

Ans. The company has 317 (59.70%) permanent employees as 
members in the aforementioned recognised employee 
associations.

7 Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child 
labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as on the 
end of the financial year.

Ans. No complaint relating to child labour, forced labour, 
involuntary labour, sexual harassment was received in the 
financial year 2020-21.  No complaint was pending either at 
beginning or at the end of the financial year.

8 What percentage of your under mentioned employees were 
given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?

Ans. (a) Permanent Employees - > 92 %
(b) Permanent Women Employees - 100 %
(c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees - about 

75 % 
(d) Employees with Disabilities -100% 

4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be 
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those 
who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised.

1 Has the company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders? Yes/No

Ans. Yes.

2 Out of the above, has the company identified the 
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

Ans. Identification of the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalised stakeholders is an on-going process and the  
Company is committed to the welfare of marginalized and 
vulnerable sections of the society through its various CSR 
activities.

3 Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to 
engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so.

Ans. During the year, the Company has undertaken its CSR 
responsibilities through external agencies with a focus on 
the community development programs and upliftment of 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders 
the details of such programs are explained in more details 
in the ‘Annexure B’ of the Board Report.
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4 What is your company’s direct contribution to community 
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the 
projects undertaken?

Ans. The total amount spent on all CSR activities and projects 
during the F.Y. 2020- 2021 was ̀ 70 Lakhs and the details of 
the CSR projects and activities undertaken are provided in 
details in ‘Annexure B’ of the Directors' Report and forms a 
part of this Annual Report for  F.Y. 2020-2021.

5 Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

Ans. Yes,  the initiatives undertaken under CSR are tracked to 
determine the outcomes achieved and the benefits to the 
community. Internal tracking mechanisms are regularly 
carried out.

"Principle 9 : Businesses should engage with and provide 
value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner."

1 What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases 
are pending as on the end of financial year.

Ans. The Company has a robust system for addressing 
customer complaints. These complaints are properly dealt 
with and disposed off after verification. Pending complaints 
at the year end is negligible.

2 Does the company display product information on the 
product label, over and above what is mandated as per 
local laws? Yes/No/N.A. / Remarks (additional information)

Ans. Yes, the Company displays product information on the 
products label as per the mandated local laws.

3 Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the 
company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible 
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the 
last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so, 
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or 
so.

Ans. Nil.

4 Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends?

Ans. Yes, the company carry out consumer survey periodically. 
The company leverages this survey to understand 
customers' requirements and helps to provide the required 
solution.

Principle 7 :Businesses, when engaged in influencing public 
and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

1 Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or 
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your 
business deals with:

Ans. (a)  Automotive Component Manufacturers Association of 
India (“ACMA”).

(b) Federation of Chamber of Commerce & Industry 
(“FICCI”) 

(c) Bombay Chamber of Commerce & Industry 

(d) Indian Chamber of Commerce

(e) Indian Merchants Chamber

2 Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations 
for the advancement or improvement of public good? 
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: 
Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, 
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water, 
Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others) -

Ans. No.

Principle 8 :Businesses should support inclusive growth 
and equitable development

1 Does the company have specified programmes/ initiatives / 
projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If yes 
details thereof.

Ans. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company focuses 
on community development through its CSR activities. 
Details of our CSR activities are provided in ‘Annexure B’ 
to Directors' Report.  

2 Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house 
team/own foundation/external NGO/government 
structures/any other organization?

Ans. The Company undertakes its various CSR activities by 
contributing to the external NGOs and other organizations.

3 Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

Ans. The CSR programmes and their impacts are assessed, 
monitored and reviewed by the CSR Committee 
periodically.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Hindustan Composites Limited

Opinion

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Hindustan Composites Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

st Company as at 31 March 2021, its profits, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to note no 45(d) of the standalone financial statements with regard to Management’s assessment of realisability 
of assets including financial Investments due to recent surge in Covid -19 pandemic outbreak. The management apart from considering 
the internal and external information up to the date of approval of these standalone financial statements expects to recover the carrying 
amount of these assets, including financial investments. Considering the continuing uncertainties, the management will continue to 
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and does not anticipate any material financial or operational issues 
in the short term as well as on a long-term basis. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements 
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters:

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s response

Valuation and Impairment of unquoted equity instruments /Debt 
Investments:

We focused on the valuation of unquoted Equity/Debt Instruments 
due to the materiality of the investments and the nature of their 
valuation which involve the use of judgmental assumptions. As 
disclosed in Note no 40  and 41, as at 31 March 2021 the Company 
has unquoted equity /debt Investments of Rs. 26,208.17 Lakhs. 
These Investments are classified and measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income.

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed and tested the design and the operating 
effectiveness of the key controls that management has 
established to support the review and approval of the model 
design, key model inputs and valuation.

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation method 
used by management by verifying the key inputs used in 
determining the assumptions as also corroborating the 
information.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board report, Corporate 
Governance report and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the standalone financial statement and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Account) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and records.

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure “B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements. [Refer Note No. 33]

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

Place : Mumbai
thDate :  26  May, 2021 

For Bagaria & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 113447W/W-100019

Vinay Somani
Partner

Membership No: 143503
UDIN:21143503AAAAIT3682
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Annexure “A” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the Members of 
Hindustan Composites Limited of even date

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the 
course of our audit, we state that:

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.  

b) During the year, the Company has carried out physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The verification was in 
accordance with a phased programme which, in our opinion, is considered reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. As explained, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the 
management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted secured loans to a company covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. The terms and conditions of such loan are not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest and schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments are regular.    

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any transactions 
referred in Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of 186 of the Act with respect to the loans and 
investments made. 

v) No deposits within the meaning of directives issued by RBI (Reserve Bank of India) and Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder have been accepted by the Company.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government of India, regarding the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Cess, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company with the appropriate 
authorities. No undisputed amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the 
financial year for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
there  are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax and Duty of Customs, which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute. 

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of dues to the banks and government. The Company has not taken any loan from financial institution or debenture 
holders during the year or in the recent past.

ix) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loan 
during the year or in the recent past.

x) According to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance of material fraud by officers or 
employees of the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management. 

xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the records, the Company has paid / 
provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii) The provisions of Nidhi Company are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, Para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provision of Section 177 and 188 of Act, to the extent applicable, in 
respect of transactions with the related parties have been complied by the Company and the details have been disclosed in the Ind 
AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards in note no. 47 of the Standalone Financial 
Statements.

xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures. Therefore, Para 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him under Section 192 of the Act.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal  and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the members of 
Hindustan Composites Limited of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindustan Composites Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements and (4) also provide us  reasonable assurance by the internal auditors through their internal audit reports given to the 
Company from time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

Place : Mumbai
thDate :  26  May, 2021 

For Bagaria & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 113447W/W-100019

Vinay Somani
PartnerMembership No: 143503

UDIN:21143503AAAAIT3682
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has broadly, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential Component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place : Mumbai
thDate : 26  May, 2021 

For Bagaria & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 113447W/W-100019

Vinay Somani
Partner

Membership No: 143503
UDIN:21143503AAAAIT3682
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Particulars

 

  
 

 

 
 

Note No.

(  in Lakhs)`

 As at  
st31  March, 2021

I ASSETS

Non-current assets

  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1  11,590.47  12,226.49 

  (b) Other Intangible assets 2 18.82 16.99 

  (c) Intangible assets under deveploment 2.1  16.42  16.16 

  (d) Financial assets

       (i) Investments 3  65,355.18  59,696.08 

  (ii) Loans 4  -    1,750.00 

       (iii) Other financial assets 5  56.68  55.96 

  (e) Other non-current assets 6  37.92  10.81 

Total non-current assets  77,075.49  73,772.49 

Current assets

  (a) Inventories 7  1,186.44  1,256.65 

  (b) Financial assets

        (i) Investments 8  3,303.29  2,837.05 

        (ii) Trade receivables 9  3,783.55  3,420.49 

        (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10  144.52  656.67 

        (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 11  74.97  52.64 

        (v) Loans 12  4,490.02  2,714.80 

        (vi) Other financial assets 13  1,354.25  1,028.39 

  (c)  Other current assets 14  285.47  195.23 

  (d)  Current tax assets (Net) 15  163.65  190.78 

Total current assets 14,786.16  12,352.70 

Total Assets  91,861.65  86,125.19 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

  (a) Equity Share capital 16  738.45  738.45 

  (b) Other Equity 17 81,169.11 76,426.65 

Total equity 81,907.56  77,165.10 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

        (i) Borrowings 18  4.05  43.83 

  (b) Provisions 19  317.98  207.92 

  (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 44  5,486.73  4,599.55 

  (d) Other non current liabilities 20  87.51  79.12 

Total non-current liabilities  5,896.27  4,930.42 

Current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

        (i) Borrowings 21  -    477.29 

        (ii) Trade payables 22

        - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  56.73  48.24 

        - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  3,484.46  3,143.28 

        (iii) Other financial liabilities 23  149.00  205.50 

  (b) Other current liabilities 24  151.18  32.39 

  (c) Provisions 25  216.45  122.97 

Total current liabilities  4,057.82  4,029.67 

Total Equity and Liabilities  91,861.65  86,125.19 

Significant accounting policies A     

See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 51)
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I Revenue from operations 26  18,458.75  17,805.19 

II Other income 27  618.44  49.49 

III Total Income ( I + II)  19,077.19  17,854.68 

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 28  7,341.55  7,338.21 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29  185.56  (134.78)

Employee benefits expense 30  3,259.14  3,354.97 

Finance costs 31  19.59  22.31 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 & 2  886.69  950.30 

Other expenses 32  4,905.31  5,292.19 

Total Expenses  16,597.84  16,823.20 

V Profit before tax ( III - IV)  2,479.35  1,031.48 

VI Tax Expense: 44

Current tax  284.75  126.18 

Deferred tax  95.44  (298.20)

Total Tax Expense  380.19  (172.02)

VII Profit for the year  2,099.16  1,203.50 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

A. (i)   Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 43  3,221.98  (881.28)

    (ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 44  (786.44)  330.55 

B. (i)  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 43  709.85  822.72 

    (ii)  Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 44  (206.71)  (239.58)

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII + VIII)  5,037.84  1,235.91 

Earnings per equity share of  5 each (Basic and Diluted) 37  14.21  8.15 

Significant accounting policies A

See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 51)

`

STSTANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

58

Particulars Note No.

(  in Lakhs)`

Year Ended
st 31 March, 2021

Year Ended
st31  March, 2020
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A Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax  2,479.35  1,031.48 

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation  886.69  950.30 

Net gain on sale / fair valuation of investments through profit and loss  (1,676.93)  (1,357.32)

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  (599.33)  (16.16)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (144.58)  (100.28)

Interest expenses  19.60  22.31 

Operating profit before working capital changes  964.80  530.33 

Adjustment for

(Increase)Decrease in Trade and other receivable  (453.55) 302.52 

(Increase)Decrease in Inventories  70.21  (26.88)

(Decrease)Increase in Trade and other payables  795.15  (284.38)

Cash generated from operations  1,376.61  521.59 

Direct taxes paid (net)  (459.02)  (109.42)

Net cash generated from operating activities  917.59  412.17 

B Cash generated from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant, equipment and Intangible assets  (392.37)  (685.04)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  739.00  27.42 

Acquisition of investments (net)  (3,008.51)  (1,732.89)

(Increase)/decrease in inter- corporate deposits  (335.46)  600.00 

Income from Investment (net)  3,015.55  2,106.91 

Net cash flow (used in) from investing activities  18.21  316.40 

C Cash generated from financing activities

Proceeds/(repayment) from long-term borrowings (net)  (66.50)  (85.67)

Proceeds/(repayment) from short-term borrowings (net)  (477.29)  317.84 

Dividend paid (including corporate dividend tax)  (295.38)  (356.24)

Interest paid  (19.60)  (22.43)

Cash generated from financing activities  (858.77)  (146.50)

D Net Increase/ Decrease in cash and cash equivalent ( A+B+C)  77.03  582.07 

Cash and Cash equivalents

At the beginning of the year  656.67  74.60 

At the end of the year (Refer note below)  733.70  656.67 

Note :  The Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include investment in Liquid Mutual fund of  589.22 lakhs (Previous Year  Nil)

Significant accounting policies A

See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 51)
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Particulars

(  in Lakhs)`

Year Ended
st 31 March, 2021

Year Ended
st31  March, 2020
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stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  738.45 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  738.45 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  738.45 

stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  57.70  60,050.13  6,658.27  1,393.57  7,423.62  (36.31)  75,546.98 

Profit for the year  -    -    1,203.50  -    -    -    1,203.50 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year (Net)  -    -    -    583.14  (466.09)  (84.64)  32.41 

Amount transferred in respect of 
realised gain (Net)  -    -    396.45  -    -    (396.45)  -

Dividend paid during the year  -    -    (295.38)  -    -    -    (295.38)

Corporate dividend tax paid  -    -    (60.86)  -    -    -    (60.86)

Transfer to General reserve  -    1,000.00  (1,000.00)  -    -    -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  57.70  61,050.13  6,901.98  1,976.71  6,561.08  (120.95)  76,426.66 

Profit for the year  -    -    2,099.16  -    -    -    2,099.16 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year (Net)  -    -    -    503.14  2,554.87  (119.33)  2,938.68 

Amount transferred in respect of 
realised gain (Net)  -    -    1,191.31  -    -    (1,191.31)  -   

Dividend paid during the year  -    -    (295.38)  -    -    -    (295.38)

Transfer to General reserve  -    1,000.00  (1,000.00)  -    -    -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  57.70  62,050.13  8,897.07 2,479.85  7,924.64  (240.28)  81,169.11 

Refer note 17 for nature and purpose of the reserves.

STSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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(  in Lakhs)`

Amount

Reserves and surplus Items of other 
comprehensive income 

Total 
Capital 

redemption 
reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Debt 
instruments

Equity 
Instruments

Others - 
Acturial 

gain/ (loss)

Particulars

Particulars

 

(  in Lakhs)`
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NOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW:

Hindustan Composites Limited ("the Company") is a public 

limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the 

provision of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are 

listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock 

Exchange (NSE) of India.

The registered office of the Company is located at Peninsula 

Business Park, A Tower, 8th Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower 

Parel, Mumbai 400 013 (Maharastra).

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and 

marketing of fibre based friction material, consisting of Brake 

Liners, Roll Lining, Brake Block, Clutch Facing etc and 

investment of its surplus fund.

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES 

FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 

THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

a) Basis Of Preparation of Financial Statements :

These standalone financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as 

notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to 

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read 

with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

standards) Rules, 2015 and amendment rules issued 

there after. 

The financial statements of the Company are prepared 

on the accrual basis of accounting and historical cost 

convention except for the following material items that 

have been measured at fair value as required by the 

relevant Ind AS:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured 

at Fair value (refer note no. 43 financial instruments)

ii) Defined benefit employee plan (refer note no. 

42)

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or 

non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle 

and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 

Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products 

and the time between acquisition of assets for processing 

and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 

Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 

months for the purpose of current or non-current 

classification of assets and liabilities.

b) Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements requires the 

Management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 

and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the 

date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 

period. The recognition, measurement, classification or 

disclosure of an item or information in the financial 

statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of 

the financial statements are continuously evaluated by 

the Company and are based on historical experience and 

various other assumptions and factors (including 

expectations of future events) that the Company believes 

to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. 

Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any 

revision to accounting estimates is recognised 

prospectively in current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of 

estimation uncertainty

The Company is required to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets 

and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 

sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 

based on historical experience and other factors that are 

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 

revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 

period of the revision and future period, if the revision 

affects current and future periods.

(a) Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of 

property plant and equipment and intangible 

assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

are depreciated / amortised over their estimated 

useful lives, after taking into account its estimated 

residual value. Management reviews the estimated 

useful lives and residual values of the assets 

annually in order to determine the amount of 

depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any 

reporting period. The useful lives and residual values 

are based on the Company’s historical experience 

with similar assets and take into account anticipated 

technological changes. The depreciation / 

amortisation for future periods is revised if there are 

significant changes from previous estimates. 

Depreciation on the fixed assets added / disposed 

off/ discarded during the year is provided on pro-rata 

basis with reference to the month of addition / 

disposal / discarding.

(b) Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period 

when it becomes probable that there will be a future 

outflow of funds resulting from past operations or 

events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing 

of recognition requires application of judgement to 

existing facts and circumstances which may be 

subject to change. The amounts are determined by 

discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
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tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 

the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

liability.

(c) Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent 

liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 

against the Company. Potential liabilities that are 

possible but not probable of crystallising or are very 

difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent 

liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes 

but are not recognized in the financial statements.

(d) Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The present value of the defined benefit obligations 

depends on a number of factors that are determined 

on an actuarial basis. The assumptions used in 

determining the net interest cost/(income) for 

defined benefit plans include the discount rate. Any 

changes in these assumptions will impact the 

carrying amount of defined benefit obligations.

c)  Property, plant and equipment and Intangible 

assets

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of 

property, plant and equipment are measured at historical 

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses, if any. Costs include freight, import duties, non-

refundable GST and other expenses directly attributable 

to the acquisition of the asset. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the company 

and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 

carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 

separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other 

repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period 

in which they are incurred.

The cost of property, plant and equipment which are not 

ready for their intended use before such date, are 

disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date 

whether there is any indication that any asset may be 

impaired. If any, such indication exists, the carrying value 

of such asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and 

the impairment loss is charged to profit and loss account. 

If at the balance Sheet date there is any deduction that a 

previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, 

then such loss is reversed and the asset is restated to 

that effect. 

Intangible assets:

Technical Know How and Computer software are stated 

at cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairments, 

if any.

Depreciation/ amortisation methods, estimated 

useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a Straight Line Method, over 

the estimated useful lives of assets. Leasehold land is 

amortised over period of lease.  Leasehold improvements 

are amortised over the period of lease or estimated useful 

lives which ever is lower.  

The company depreciates its property, plant and 

equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and management 

believe that useful lives of assets are same as those 

prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company amortizes computer software with a useful 

life using the straight-line method over the period of 3 

years from the date of acquisition.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 

comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 

included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) As a lessee

Operating Lease

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use 

asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if 

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an 

identified asset and the Company has substantially all of 

the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right 

to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the 

right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the 

initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any 

lease payments made on or before the commencement 

date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use 

assets is subsequently measured at cost less any 

accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 

losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the 

lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using 

the straight-line method from the commencement date 

over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use 

asset. The Company measures the lease liability at the 

present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 

the commencement date of the lease. The lease 

payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 

the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate 

cannot be readily determined, the Company uses 

incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value 

leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as 

an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term.

e) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and 

deposits which are readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 

changes in value and have an original maturity of three 

months or less, including money market deposits, 

commercial paper and investments. Bank overdrafts are 
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shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the 

balance sheet.

f) Inventories:

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores 

and Spares and  Finished Goods are stated 'at cost or net 

realisable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all 

cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs 

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition.  Cost formula used is   'Weighted 

Average cost'.  Due allowance is estimated and made for 

defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary, 

based on the past experience of the Company.

g) Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. Financial assets other than trade 

receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus 

transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair 

value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at 

fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at 

fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the 

statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive 

income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of 

both (a) the entity’s business model for managing the 

financial assets and (b) the contractual cash flow 

characteristics of the financial asset.

(I) Measured at amortised cost: 

Financial assets are subsequently  measured at 

amortised cost, if these financial assets are  held 

within a business module whose  objective is to hold  

these assets in order to collect contractual cash 

flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset 

give rise on specified date to cash flows that are  

solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these 

financial assets are held within a business model 

whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

contractual cash flows that give rise on specified 

dates to solely  payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding and by selling 

financial assets.

(iii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL):

Financial assets other than equity instrument are 

measured at FVTPL  unless it is measured at 

amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. 

Such financial assets are measured at fair value with 

all changes in fair value, including interest income 

and dividend income if any, recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments:

The company subsequently measures all equity 

investments at fair value. Where the Company's 

management has elected to present fair value gains and 

losses on equity investments in other comprehensive 

income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair 

value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in 

the Statement of  Profit and Loss as other income when 

the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the 

expected credit losses associated with its financial 

assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt 

instruments. The impairment methodology applied 

depends on whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the 

simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 

Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to 

be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the 

contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash flows 

from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has 

retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 

neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 

risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of 

the asset, the Company continues to recognise the 

transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s 

continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 

recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset 

and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 

reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has 

retained.

On de-recognition of equity instruments measured at 

FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

reconised in other comprehensive income is reclassified 

from other equity to retain earning as a reclassification 

adjustment.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at 

fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities 

not carried at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are 

subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial 
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liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are 

measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 

from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 

the terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 

the derecognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 

net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a 

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments such as future contracts 

are initially recognised at fair value on the date a 

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 

re-measured at their fair value with changes in fair value 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 

period when they arise.

h) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, 

derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.Fair 

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 

or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 

takes place either:

ü In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ü In the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 

accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 

the assumptions that market participants would use 

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 

into account a market participant’s ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 

best use or by selling it to another market participant that 

would use the asset in its highest and best use. The 

Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 

in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement as a whole:

ü Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 

markets for identical assets or liabilities 

ü Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest 

level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

ü Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest 

level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 

financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between 

levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 

reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company 

has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 

or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 

explained above.

I)  Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at  net of transaction 

costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds 

(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the 

period of the borrowings using the effective interest 

method.

j) Borrowing costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 

of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 

time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for 

its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that 

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready 

for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 

which they are incurred.

k) Provisions and contingent liabilities:

Provisions for legal claims, volume discounts and returns 

are recognised when the Company has a present legal or 

constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future 

operating losses. The carrying amounts of provisions are 

reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

reflect the current best estimate.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the 

likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 

determined by considering the class of obligations as a 

whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of 

an outflow with respect to any one item included in the 

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of 

management's best estimate of the expenditure required 

to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 

period. The discount rate used to determine the present 

value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due 

to the passage of time is recognised as interest 

expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there 

is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 

probably not require an outflow of resources or an 

obligation for which the future outcome cannot be 

ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a 

possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of 

outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure 

is made.

l) Revenue recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue, whenever control 

over distinct goods or services is transferred to the 

customer i.e. when the customer is able to direct the use 

of the transferred goods or services and obtains 

substantially all of the remaining benefits, provided a 

contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists 

and amongst others collectability of consideration is 

probable  tak ing in to  account  customer  ’s  

creditworthiness. 

Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to 

be entitled to. In determining the transaction price, the 

Company considers effects of variable consideration, the 

existence of significant financing contracts, noncash 

consideration and consideration payable to the 

customer, if any. The Company considers whether there 

are other promises in the contract that are separate 

performance obligations to which the transaction price 

needs to be allocated (e.g. warranties etc.).

i) Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable 

amount, the company estimates the amount of 

consideration to which it will be entitled to in 

exchange for transferring goods to the customer. 

The variable consideration is estimated at contract 

inception and constrained until it is highly probable 

that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur 

once associated uncertainties are resolved.  Some 

contracts with the customers provide them with a 

right to return and volume rebates. The right to return 

and volume rebates gives rise to variable 

consideration.

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by 

either using the expected value or the most likely 

amount depending on which is expected to better 

predict the amount of variable consideration. 

Consideration is also adjusted for the time value of 

money if the period between the transfer of goods or 

services and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve 

months and there is a significant financing benefit 

either to the customer or the Company. If a contract 

contains more than one distinct good or service, the 

transaction price is allocated to each performance 

obligation based on relative stand-alone selling 

prices. If stand-alone selling prices are not 

observable, the Company reasonably estimates 

those. Revenue is recognized for each performance 

obligation either at a point in time or over time.

ii) Sale of goods:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when 

the control of the goods passes to the buyer either at 

the time of dispatch or delivery or when the risk of loss 

transfers. Export sales are recognized based on the 

shipped on board date as per bill of lading, which is 

when substantial risks and rewards of ownership are 

passed to the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and 

recovery of charges collected from customers like 

transport, packing etc. Provision is made for returns 

when appropriate. Revenue is measured at the fair 

value of consideration received or receivable and is 

net of price discounts, allowance for volume rebates 

and similar items.

Claims / Refunds not ascertainable with reasonable 

certainty are accounted for, on final settlement and 

are recognized as revenue.

iii) Rendering of services:

Revenue from sale of services are recognized when 

the services are rendered.

iv) Other Income: 

Dividend income on investments is recognised when 

the right to receive dividend is established.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate 

basis taking into account the amounts invested and 

the rate of interest. For all financial instruments 

measured at amortised cost, interest income is 

recorded using the Effective interest rate method to 

the net carrying amount of the financial assets

m) Employee Benefits:

The Company provides following post-employment 

plans:

(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity 

(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

a) Defined-benefit plan:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet 

in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the 
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present value of defined benefit obligations at the 

end of the reporting period less fair value of the plan 

assets. The defined benefit obligations is calculated 

annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit 

method.

The Company recognises the following changes in 

the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in 

the statement of profit and loss:

(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, 

past-service costs, gains and losses on 

curtailment and non-routine settlements; and 

(b) Net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 

discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 

obligation and fair value of the plan assets. This cost 

is included in employee benefit expenses in the 

statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and 

losses arising from experience adjustment and 

changes in actuarial assumptions, the effect of asset 

excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 

defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the 

net defined benefit liability) ceiling are recognised in 

the period in which they occur directly in Other 

comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not 

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

b) Defined-contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the 

Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate 

funds and does not have any legal or informal 

obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of 

contributions to the employees’ provident fund with 

the government, superannuation fund and certain 

state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and 

Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Company’s 

payments to the defined contribution plans are 

recognised as expenses during the period in which 

the employees perform the services that the 

payment covers.

c) Other employee benefit

Compensated absences which are not expected to 

occur within twelve months after the end of the 

period in which the employee renders the related 

services are recognised as a liability at the present 

value of the obligation as at the Balance sheet date 

based on an actuarial valuation.

n) Foreign Currency Transaction:

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee 

(INR), which is company's functional and presentation 

currency. Foreign exchange differences regarded as an 

adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the 

statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other 

foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the 
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statement of profit and loss as other income / 

miscellaneous expenses.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 

rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried 

at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies 

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when 

the fair value was determined.

o) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and 

the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during 

the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in 

Statement of Profit and Loss except when they relate to 

items that are recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity, in such case, the current and deferred 

tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to 

be payable on the taxable income for the year as 

determined in accordance with the provisions of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the Balance 

Sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and 

liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable 

temporary differences arising between the tax base of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except 

when the deferred income tax arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is 

not a business combination and affects neither 

accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 

transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 

it is probable that either future taxable profits or reversal 

of deferred tax liabilities will be available, against which 

the deductible temporary differences and the carry 

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 

be utilised.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be 

reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to 

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 

deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the 

tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period 

and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax 

asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is 

a legally enforceable right to off set current tax assets and 

liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 

same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as 

an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 

evidence that the Company will pay normal income-tax 

during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT 

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the 

said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 

profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each 

balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount 

of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer 

convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay 

normal income-tax during the specified period.

p) Segment Reporting:

The Company has identified its Managing Director as the 

Chief Operating Decision Maker. Operating segments 

are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 

reporting provided to managing director of the Company. 

The Managing Director evaluates the Company’s 

performance and allocates resources as a whole.

q) Research and Development:

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Product 

development costs are expensed as incurred unless 

technical and commercial feasibility of the project is 

demonstrated, further economic benefits are probable, 

the Company has an intention and ability to complete and 

use or sell the product and the costs can be measured 

reliably.

r) Earnings Per Share:

Basic EPS is arrived at based on net profit or (loss) after 

taxation available to equity shareholders to the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

year. The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as 

basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential 

dilutive equity shares unless impact is anti-dilutive.
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s) Contract balances:

i) Trade Receivables:

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an 

amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. 

only a passage of time is required to before payment 

of the consideration is due).

ii) Contract liabilities: 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods 

or services to a customer for which the company has 

received consideration (or an amount of 

consideration is due) from the customer. If a 

customer pays consideration before the company 

transfer goods and services to the customer, a 

contract liability is recognised when the payment is 

made or the payment is due, whichever is earlier. 

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when 

the company performs under the contract.

t) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(“MCA”) through its notification, amended Schedule III of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments in Division I, 

II and III of Schedule III are applicable from April 1, 2021.
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STNOTES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021STANDALONE 

69
 

Gross Carrying Amount :
stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  9.28  9.28 

Additions  16.80  16.80 

Adjustments / Disposals  -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  26.08  26.08 

Additions  5.55  5.55 

Adjustments / Disposals  0.06  0.06 

Balance as at  March, 2021  31.57  31.57 

Accumulated Depreciation :

Balance as at  March, 2019  5.88  5.88 

Amortisation for the year  3.21  3.21 

Adjustments / Disposals  -    -   

Balance as at  March, 2020  9.09  9.09 

Amortisation for the year  3.66  3.66 

Adjustments / Disposals  -    -   

Balance as at  March, 2021  12.75  12.75 

Net Carrying Amount :

Balance as at  March, 2020  16.99  16.99 

Balance as at  March, 2021  18.82  18.82 

st31

st31

st31

st31

st31
st31

Particulars

 2    Intangible assets  

(  in Lakhs)`

Computer 
Software  

Total 

2.1 Intangible assets under devlopment

Computer Software  16.42    

3 Non Current Investments  (Refer note no. 40)

Equities

Equity instruments  27,607.66  25,630.54

Debt

Debentures and bonds  23,768.68  20,354.91

Pass through certificates (PTC) 501.27  -

Preference shares  3,010.01  3,510.01

Government securities 3,670.75 3,677.07

Real estate and debt funds 6,796.81 6,523.55

Total  65,355.18  59,696.08

4 Non Current Loans

Secured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits to related party * (Refer note no. 47)  -    1,750.00

Total  -    1,750.00

* Secured against mortgage of a property valued of  35.52 crore valued by an International Property Consultant

16.16 

`

As at 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2020

(  in Lakhs)`
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(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

5 Non Current Other Financial Assets

Electricity deposits 19.34 19.37

Rent deposits 8.38 7.18

Other deposits* 27.46 27.31

Fixed Deposit with Bank 1.50 1.50

Margin money deposits with bank -    0.60

Total  56.68 55.96

* Includes water deposits, telephone deposits, gas deposits, MIDC and other deposits etc.

6 Other Non Current Assets

Capital advance 37.92 10.81

Total 37.92 10.81

7 Inventories * (Refer note no. A (f) for accounting policy on inventory)

(As taken, valued and certified by the management)  

Raw materials  627.35  471.30

Raw materials - Goods in transit  47.60  85.46

Work-in-progress  282.25 340.79

Finished goods  133.48 260.50

Stores and spares  95.76 98.60

Total  1,186.44 1,256.65

* Refer note no. 35(I)(a) for Inventories offered as securities

8 Current Investments (Refer note no. 41)

Debt

Debentures and bonds  2,714.07  1,337.05

Preference shares -    1,500.00

Mutual funds 589.22 -   

Total 3,303.29  2,837.05

9 Trade Receivables *

Unsecured, considered good

Joint venture 53.30 25.26

Other Trade Receivables 3,730.25 3,395.23

Total 3,783.55 3,420.49

* Refer note no. 45 (c) for credit risk and note no. 35(I)(a) for trade receivable offered as securities.

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks  141.91 651.02

Cash on hand  2.61 5.65

Total  144.52 656.67

11 Other Bank Balances

Other Balances

In Dividend Accounts  27.79 22.36

In Margin money  47.18 30.28

Total  74.97  52.64 

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



71

(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

Rasoi Ltd.  61,51,722 41.65%  61,51,722 41.65%

Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  24,75,582 16.76%  24,75,582 16.76%

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  11,07,702 7.50%  11,07,702 7.50%

st As at 31 March, 2021

%No. of Shares No. of Shares 

Particulars

%

stAs at 31  March, 2020

(  in Lakhs)`

(ii) Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  5 each (Previous Year  5 each). Each holder of 

equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the 

remaining assets of the Company after payments to secured and unsecured creditors, in proportion to their shareholding.

` `

12 Current Loans

Secured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits  130.00 150.00

Unsecured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits  3,350.00  2,550.00

Inter corporate deposits to related party * (Refer note no. 47) 1,750.00  - 

Deposit with LIC Housing Finance Ltd.  1,000.00 -

Loans and advances to employees  10.02 14.80

Total  4,490.02 2,714.80

* Secured against mortgage of a property valued of 35.52 crore valued by an International Property Consultant

13 Other Current Financial Assets

Interest accrued on investments  867.64 741.49

Interest accrued on inter corporate / other deposits  66.04 126.60

Receivable on sale / redemptions of current investments  379.33 73.86

Earnest Money Deposits  20.50 65.21

Other receivables*  20.74 21.23

Total  1,354.25 1,028.39

* Includes Export Incentive, ECGC Premium etc.

14 Other Current Assets

Balance with Government authorities  15.07  12.91 

Advance to suppliers  223.33  136.76

Prepaid expenses  47.07  45.56

Total  285.47  195.23

15 Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax (Net)  163.65  190.78

Total  163.65 190.78

16 Equity Share Capital

AUTHORISED

16,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 5 each  800.00 800.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

14,769,000 Equity Shares of `5 each, fully paid-up  738.45 738.45

Total  738.45 738.45

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

(iii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,47,69,000  1,47,69,000 

Increase on account of share spilt  -    -

Bonus shares issued during the year  -   - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,47,69,000  1,47,69,000 

Particulars

(  in Lakhs)`

 

As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

Allotted shares on account of split in face value from 

10 per share to  5 per share.  -    -    -    49,23,000  - 

Bonus shares issued during the year  -    -    -    49,23,000 -

Bought back any shares issued  - - - - -

` `

(iv) For a period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,the company has: 

Particulars
stAs at 31  March

20172018201920202021

17    Other Equity

Capital Redemption Reserve  57.70 57.70

General Reserve  62,050.13 61,050.13

Retained Earnings  8,897.07 6,901.98

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

  - Fair value of Debt instruments through OCI  2,479.85 1,976.71

  - Fair value of Equity instruments through OCI  7,924.64 6,561.08

  - Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (240.28) (120.95)

Total  81,169.11  76,426.65 

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.

A.    Summary of Other Equity balance

(  in Lakhs)`

B. Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Capital Redemption Reserve: The  Company  has  recognised  Capital  Redemption  Reserve  on  buyback  of  equity  
shares  from  its General Reserve.  The Capital Redemption Reserve can be utilised for issue of bonus shares

(b) General Reserve: The  Company  has  transferred  a  portion  of  the  net  profit  of  the  Company  before  declaring  
dividend  to  general reserve.

(c) Retained  Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to 
general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. “

(d) Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: The fair value change of the debt instruments measured at 
fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in Debt instruments through Other Comprehensive Income. 
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes on the said instruments are reclassified to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

(e) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising 
on fair valuation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and subsequently not 
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(f) Re-measurements  of  Net  Defined  Benefit  Plans: Differences  between  the  interest  income  on  plan  assets  and  
the  return  actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or 
experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised  in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not 
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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18 Non Current Borrowings (Refer note no. 35)

Term Loans

Secured

From Banks - Vehicle Loan  4.05 9.51 

Unsecured

From SICOM Ltd. by way of deferral of sales tax liability  -    34.32

Total  4.05 43.83

19 Non Current Provisions

Provision for compensated absences 172.36 121.10

Provision for Gratuity 145.62 86.82

Total 317.98 207.92

20 Other Non Current Liabilities

Security Deposits 87.51 79.12

Total 87.51 79.12

21 Current Borrowings  (Refer note no. 35)

Secured 

From Bank

    Working Capital Loan  -    477.29

Total  -    477.29

22 Trade Payables 

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and small enterprises  56.73  48.24

Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and small enterprises  3,484.46  3,143.28

Total  3,541.19  3,191.52

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

 

73

(  in Lakhs)`

 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosure 

pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year;

(b) Interest accrued and due to any supplier at the end of accounting year;

(c) Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment 

(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 

adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006;

(e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting 

year;

Note : The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as“ Micro and Small 

enterprises” on the basis of information available with Company.

 28.15 21.01

1.28 0.98

0.98 0.19

 

Nil Nil

 

Nil Nil 
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23 Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt  38.04 64.75

Unpaid dividends  27.79 22.36

Capital Creditors  83.17 118.39

Total  149.00 205.50

24 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues  143.42 32.39

Deferral of Sales Tax Liability  7.76 - 

Total  151.18 32.39

25 Current Provisions

Provision for compensated absences  16.46 42.23

Provision for gratuity  199.99 80.74

Total  216.45 122.97 

74

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

(  in Lakhs)`

(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

26 Revenue From Operations

Sale of Products

Manufactured goods  14,961.58 14,439.85

Investment Income

Dividend  276.56 426.43

Interest  3,321.65 3,032.82

Net gain on sale / Fair valuation of investments through profit/(loss) *  (145.94) (143.61)

3,452.27 3,315.64

Other Operating Income

Export Incentives  14.96 23.60

Marketing Fees & Royalty Income  9.19 6.25

Insurance Claim  1.64 0.64

Scrap Sale  14.43 16.70

Others  4.68 2.51

44.90 49.70

Total  18,458.75  17,805.19

st* Includes fair value (loss) as at 31  March, 2021 amounting to ` (105.97 lakhs),   (Previous Year ` (520.71lakhs))

27 Other Income

Foreign Exchange Gain (Net)  11.44 26.05

Rent  7.67 7.28

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)  599.33 16.16

Total  618.44 49.49 
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32 Other Expenses

Packing materials consumed  373.29 349.42

Power and Fuel  974.17 1,012.70

Rent  41.56 36.99

Rates and taxes  29.86 53.45

Insurance (including transit insurance)  66.28 58.01

Freight and Forwarding  609.25 597.26

Repairs & Maintenance:

Plant & Machinery 129.79 178.86

Buildings 44.26 85.18

       Others 50.60 33.60

75

(  in Lakhs)`

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

Particulars Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

28 Cost of Materials Consumed 

Raw materials and Components

Opening Stock  471.30 669.97

Purchases  7,266.37 6,938.81

Less: Closing Stock  627.36 471.30

7,110.31 7,137.48

Stores and Spare parts consumed

Opening Stock  98.60 93.29

Purchases  228.40 206.04

Less: Closing Stock  95.76 98.60

231.24 200.73

Total  7,341.55 7,338.21

29 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress

Opening Stock :-

Work-in-progress  340.79 283.95

Finished goods  260.50 182.56

Total  601.29 466.51

Closing Stock :-

Work-in-progress  282.25 340.79

Finished goods  133.48 260.50

Total  415.73 601.29

Changes in inventories  185.56 (134.78)

30 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and incentives  2,953.76 3,060.27

Contributions to provident and other fund  162.50 158.11

Contributions to gratuity fund  50.47 33.95

Staff welfare expenses  92.41 102.64 

Total  3,259.14 3,354.97 

31 Finance Cost

Interest expense  14.41 14.36

Other borrowing costs  5.18 7.95

Total  19.59 22.31

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1
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(  in Lakhs)`
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Particulars Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

32 Other Expenses (contd..)

Job charges 1,066.92 1,027.81

Travelling & Conveyance 183.64 434.50

Sales Promotion Expenses 151.19 97.22

Postage,Printing & Stationery 25.50 47.84

Communication Expenses 24.52 23.40

Investment management and other expenses  200.80 283.00

Legal & Professional Expenses  441.54 409.12

Remuneration to Auditors:

Audit fees (including limited review fees)  9.00 7.50

Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses  0.73 0.65

Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  70.00 70.00

Charity and donations  321.20 312.24

Miscellaneous Expenses  91.21 173.44

Total  4,905.31  5,292.19 

33 Contingent Liabilities:

(a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :
-Disputed labour matter related to ex-workmen - amount unascertainable. 

(b) The Company’s litigations comprises of claims related to property disputes and proceedings pending with Tax and other 
Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, 
wherever required. The Company has also disclosed the pending matters under contingent liability wherever the amount 
of liability is not adequately measurable. However, the Company does not reasonably expect the outcome of these 
proceedings will have a material impact on its financial statements.(Also Refer Note 33(a)).

34 Commitments:

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advance, 
stunsecured considered good), as at 31  March 2021 for  100.26 lakhs  (net of advance of  37.92 lakhs); Previous Year 

(` 54.38 lakhs (net of advance of ̀  10.81 lakhs)).

st(b) In respect of investments made with private equity funds / debt funds, the Company is further committed to invest as at 31  
March 2021 for ̀  2868.00  lakhs; Previous Year (` 3361.86 lakhs).

35 (I) Secured Loans: 

st(a) Interest Rate on Working capital loans as at 31  March 2021 is Repo Rate 4.00% plus Spread 3.95% (Previous Year 
2.70% over MCLR 8.35% plus strategic premium 0.25% per annum along with MCLR 6 months 8.30% plus 0.70%). 

stFund base limit as per bank is utilised as at 31  March 2021 of ̀  Nil lakhs (Previous Year ̀  290.07) and Non Fund base 
stlimit as per bank is utilised as at 31  March 2021 of ` 633.56 lakhs (Previous Year ` 329.45.90 lakhs) are secured by 

Fixed Deposit of ̀  27.87 lakhs and lien over investment of ̀  1840.00 lakhs. (Previous Year secured by hypothecation 
of inventory and trade receivables of Company, charge on immovable properties of Bhandara unit and lien over 
investment of ̀  2300.00 lakhs). 

(b) Vehicle loan (repayable within two years) is secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles purchased their against and 
carry Interest in the range of 8.45% (Previous Year 8.45%).

(II) There is no default in repayment of principal and interest on secured and unsecured loans during the year.

` `

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



38 Research and Development Expenditure

Debited to respective expenses heads in the Statement of Profit & Loss  198.22 223.99 

39 Segment Reporting: 

Segment Revenue

Composite Products 15,006.48  14,489.55 

Investment 3,452.27  3,315.64 

Total 18,458.75  17,805.19 

Segment Expenses

Composite Products 14,387.95  14,356.06 

Investment 919.33  1,021.90 

Total 15,307.28  15,377.96 

Segment Results

Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Tax and Exceptional Items from each segment

Composite Products 618.53 133.49 

Investment  2,532.94  2,293.74 

Total 3,151.47  2,427.23 

Unallocated Expenses  1,270.97 1,422.93 

Interest Expenses 19.59 22.31 

Other Income  (618.44) (49.49)

Tax Expenses  380.19  (172.02)

Profit after taxation  2,099.16  1,203.50 

Segment Assets

Composite Products  9,280.72  9,249.27 

Investment 78,878.07  73,048.55 

Unallocated Assets 3,702.86 3,827.38 

Total 91,861.65 86,125.20 

Segment Liabilities

Composite Products 4,385.68 4,281.35 

Investment 4,326.61 3,588.09 

Unallocated Liabilities 1,241.80  1,090.65 

Total 9,954.09  8,960.09 

Other Information:

Capital Expenditure 392.27  668.87 

Depreciation & Amortisation 886.69 950.30 
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Particulars

37 Earnings Per Share

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 2,099.16 1,203.50 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 1,47,69,000 1,47,69,000 

Basic and Diluted EPS (Face value of  5 each)  14.21  8.15`

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

 (  in Lakhs except EPS) `

36 The accounts of Trade receivable and payable and Loans and Advances are subject to formal confirmations / reconciliation 
and adjustments, if any. The management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial 
statements due to the same.

Operating Segments: -  The chief operational decision maker (CODM) has identified 2  operating segments viz., Composite 
products and Investments.

Identification of Segments: The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business Segments 
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment 
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



Equity instruments 
Equity Shares 

- Quoted 

J.L.Morison (India) Ltd.  10 2,72,800  5,482.73 2,72,800  4,092.00 

ZF Steering Gear (I) Ltd. 10 100  0.38 100  0.23  

Total 5,483.11  4,092.23 

- Unquoted 

Rasoi Ltd.  200  18,065  4,706.47  18,065  5,403.78 

Prabhukripa Overseas Ltd. 10  2,31,053  35.63  2,31,053  53.44 

Regen Powertech Private Ltd. 10  48,300  -    48,300  -   

Total  4,742.10  5,457.22 

Total Equity Shares 10,225.21  9,549.45 

Equity PMS  (Quoted) # 

ASK IEP Equity PMS -  -    929.00  -    541.87 

Motilal Oswal NTDOP PMS  -    -    -   -  967.05 

ICICI Prudential PMS Wellness Portfolio  -    -   -  -    490.00 

Ambit Coffee Can PMS -  -    1,969.19  -    1,334.98 

Total Equity PMS   2,898.19  3,333.90 

Exchange Traded Fund - ETF (Quoted) 

ICICI Prudential Nifty ETF 10  12,68,504  1,988.63  5,12,605  465.96 

ICICI Prudential Nifty Next 50 ETF  10  35,00,000  1,219.40  -    -   

Total Exchange Traded Fund  3,208.03  465.96 

Investment in Joint Venture (49% stake) (refer note no. 50)

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Unquoted Equity Shares) 10 49,00,000 -  49,00,000  490.00 

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Unquoted Convertible Preference Shares) 10  49,00,000  -  49,00,000  490.00 

Total Investment in Joint Venture  -    980.00 

40   Non-Current Investments: (Non Trade and Fully paid up)

Particulars Face Value As on 31/03/2021
Nos. ` Nos. ``

(  in Lakhs)`

As on 31/03/2020
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Segment revenue and results

The expenses and incomes which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown as un-allocable expenditure 
(net of unallocated income).

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of property plant and 
equipment, trade receivables, cash and cash  equivalents, Investments and inventories. Segment liabilities primarily include 
trade payables and other liabilities. Common assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to  any of the segments are 
shown as a part of un-allocable assets / liabilities.

Geographical Information

The Company has all the manufacturing facilities which are located in india only hance there is no grographical segment 
applicable.

Information about major customers

Revenue from Composite Products to largest customers (greater than 10% of total sales) is 6210.02 Lakhs (Previous Year 
 5408.05 Lakhs)

`
`
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Investment carried at fair value through OCI
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Private Equity (Unquoted) * 

India Business Excellence Fund - I  -    -    431.00  -    582.75 

KKR India Debt Opportunities Fund II  1,000  29,688  212.24  54,263  405.29 

Multiples Private Equity Fund Scheme I  1,00,000  500  128.24  500  317.15 

TVS Shriram Growth Fund - 1B  1,000  50,000  228.42  50,000  278.01 

Zephyr Peacock India Fund - - - - -

India Business Excellence Fund - II   -    -    794.69  -    905.00 

Indiareit Apartment Strategy Fund  -    -    275.16  -    321.03 

Edelweiss Stressed & Troubled Assets Revival Fund - I  10,000  10,000  60.56  10,000  451.14 

Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP  -    -    1,242.48  -    1,374.71 

Avendus Absolute Return Fund   -    3,634.99  -    3,379.94 

IIFL Special Opportunities Fund 10 45,30,295  529.86  45,30,295  570.78 

IIFL Special Opportunities Fund - Series 4  10  49,13,991  545.09  49,13,991  539.81 

India Business Excellence Fund - III  -    -    1,197.56  -    690.90 

Vantage Equity Fund   100  9,93,542  1,140.69  9,93,542  562.54 

TVS Shriram Growth Fund - 3  1,000  21,500  255.25  16,500  165.00 

Avendus Future Leaders Fund I  1,00,000  600  600.00  600  600.00 

Total Private Equity  11,276.23  11,144.05 

Equity Mutual Funds (Unquoted) 

HDFC Small Cap Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 10  -    -    5,59,165  157.18 

Total Equity Mutual Funds  -    157.18 

* The Maturity of above funds range between 2 years to 8 years 

Total Equity Instruments  27,607.66  25,630.54 

Debentures and Bonds 

Bonds (Quoted) 

Secured- 

8.20% HUDCO Tax Free Bond-March 2027 1,000  97,310  1,139.57  97,310  1,119.08 

8.10% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -March 2022 1,000  -  -    30,000  313.65 

8.56% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -Sep 2028 10,00,000  1  12.28  1  11.99 

8.76% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -Jan 2034 1,000  1,00,000  1,362.01  1,00,000  1,305.10 

8.51% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -Oct 2028 1,000  50,000  614.39  50,000  599.10 

10.25% Hansdeep Industries & Trading Company Ltd Oct 2021 10,00,000  -    -    50  490.90 

8.26% IIFCL Tax Free Bonds  -Aug 2028  10,00,000  80  965.13  80  942.92 

8.19% IIFCL Tax Free Bonds  -Aug 2033 10,00,000  20  259.69  20  249.24 

8.66% IIFCL Tax Free Bonds -Jan 2034 1,000  50,000  674.32  50,000  647.99 

7.40% IIFCL  Tax Free Bonds -Jan 2033 1,000  50,000  609.34  50,000  583.85 

9.50% JM Financial Credit Solutions Ltd. - May 2021  10,00,000  -    -   13  128.91 

8.67% NHPC Tax Free Bonds -Nov 2033 1,000  48,315  654.04  48,315  625.45 

8.76% NHB Tax Free Bond -Jan 2034 5,000  50,000  3,413.90  50,000  3,262.74 

8.68% NHB Tax Free  Bonds -Mar 2029 5,000  6,384  399.63  6,384  388.78 

8.93% NHB Tax Free  Bonds Series 2A -Mar 2029  5,000  10,000  625.98  10,000  609.00 

8.30% PFC Tax Free Bonds -Feb 2027 1,000  7,120  83.50  7,120  82.15 

8.67% PFC Tax Free Bonds -Nov 2033 1,000  1,61,945  2,186.81  1,61,945  2,095.79 

7.93% REC Tax Free Bond -Mar 2022 1,000 - -  30,619  319.54 

8.46% REC Tax Free Bonds -Aug 2028 10,00,000  50  610.19  50  596.04 

7.37% NTPC Tax Free Bonds SR-3A - Oct 2035 1,000 9,369  117.59  -    -   

7.25% IRFC Tax Free Bonds SR-104 - Dec 2035 1,000  15,100  187.34  -    -   

9.25% Manappuram Finance Limited - Feb 2022 10,00,000  -    -    30  300.00 

9% Muthoot Finance Limited - Apr 2023 10,000  2,000  209.04  2,000  190.02 

8.55% Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Company Ltd Nov 2026 10,00,000   50  522.07  50  500.67 

8.65% Aditya Birla Finance Ltd Series C1 - Jun 2024 10,00,000  50  501.63  50  439.45 

Contd...

Particulars Face Value As on 31/03/2021 
Nos. ` Nos. ``

(  in Lakhs)`

As on 31/03/2020
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8.70% Aditya Birla Finance Ltd Series D1 - July 2029 10,00,000  50  520.45  50  398.55 

8.70% LIC Housing Finance Ltd-Mar 2029 10,00,000  100  1,101.80  -   - 

6.83% HDFC Ltd -Jan 2031 10,00,000  100  1,001.80  -    - 

6.92% Bajaj Finance Limited Sr-270 Dec-2030 10,00,000  50  496.65  -    -

Total  18,269.15  16,200.91 

Unsecured- 

9.90% IFCI Ltd Bonds Sr 58 -Nov 2032 25,000  -    -    840  210.00 

9.90% IFCI Ltd Bonds Sr 58 -Nov 2037 25,000  -    -    2,000  500.00 

9.75% IFCI Ltd. Sr.60- April 2028 10,00,000  50  500.00  50  500.00 

10.75% Tata Power Co. Ltd. -Aug 2072 10,00,000  25  256.27  25  256.13 

9.90% ING Vysya Bank Ltd Bond  -Dec 2022 10,00,000  50  548.95  50  528.10 

9.29% PFC  Bonds -Aug 2022 10,00,000  -  -    50  540.55   

8.85% HDFC Bank Limited BD Perpetual Bonds - Series 1 10,00,000  50  512.12  50  493.80 

7.74% SBI Perpetual Bonds Sr -1 10,00,000  150  1,498.13  - -

8.50% SBI Perpetual Bonds  Series II 10,00,000  50  511.08  - -

8.80% REC Ltd May-2029 10,00,000  100  1,104.33  - -

Total  4,930.88  3,028.58 

Total Bonds  23,200.03  19,229.48 

Debentures (Quoted) 

Secured- 

RV Investments Pvt. Ltd. SR B - Sept 2022  10,00,000  54  268.65  54  519.67 

10% ATS InfraBuild Pvt. Ltd. Jun 2022 10,00,000  30  300.00  30  300.00 

Total Debentures  568.65  819.67 

Total Debentures and Bonds  23,768.68  20,049.15 

Pass Through Certificates (Quoted) 

Secured- 

Liquid Gold Series I Oct 2020 Series A  10,00,000  54  501.27  -   - 

Total Pass Through Certificates   501.27  -

Preference Shares (Unquoted)

7.50% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Tranche S) 1,000  -    -    50,000.00  500.00 

7.15% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Tranche Z) 1,000  80,000  806.45  80,000.00  806.45 

7.10% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Series AA) 1,000  1,00,000  1,010.81  1,00,000.00  1,010.81 

7.50% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Tranche V) 1,000  67,000  696.55  67,000.00  696.55 

7.33% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Tranche Y) 1,000  50,000  496.20  50,000.00  496.20 

Total Preference Shares  3,010.01  3,510.01 

Government Securities (Quoted) 

Secured- 

9.20% GOI 30 -Sep 2030  5,00,00,000  1  588.75  1  590.21 

8.30% GOI 02 -July 2040  5,00,00,000  1  577.40  1  579.25 

8.83% GOI 12 -Dec 2041  5,00,00,000  2  1,229.60  2  1,220.55 

9.23% GOI 23 -Dec 2043 5,00,00,000  2  1,275.00  2  1,287.07 

Total Government securities  3,670.75  3,677.07 

 

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

REIT/InVIT - Quoted 

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust REIT 100  1,59,600  356.24  -   -   

Total REIT / InVIT 356.24  -   

Cont...

Particulars Face Value As on 31/03/2021 
Nos. ` Nos. ``

(` in Lakhs)

As on 31/03/2020
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Contd...

Particulars Face Value As on 31/03/2021
Nos. Nos.

As on 31/03/2020
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` ``

(` in Lakhs)

41

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1

Real Estate / Credit Funds*- Unquoted 

Peninsula Brookfield  India Real Estate Fund 1,00,000  705  88.79  705  181.82 

IIFL Income Opportunities Fund Series - Special Situations 10  46,64,616  63.29  46,64,616  205.30 

 India Realty Excellance Fund II LLP -  -    202.92  -    216.03 

 IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series -2  10  91,86,729  432.49  91,86,729  545.13 

 Annuities in Senior Secured Estate Transcations Asset - 1  100  58,368  58.26  63,673  63.35 

 ICICI Prudential PMS India Real Estate Securities Portfolio-Series XII -  -    120.35  -   139.23 

 Indostar Credit Fund  -  -    -    900  60.39 

 IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series -3 10  49,83,975  143.04  49,83,975  165.43 

 Investcorp Score Fund (Formerly known as IDFC Score Fund) 1,000  49,250  399.86  49,250  410.68 

 Annuities in Senior Secured Estate Transcations 2 Asset - 2 100  4,54,845  490.35  4,89,645  489.46 

 Edelweiss Real Estate Opportunities Fund 10,000  2,131  240.85  2,675  333.83 

 Edelweiss Credit Opportunities Fund 1,000  18,100  168.37  18,274  151.91 

 Avendus Structured Credit Fund - I 5,00,000  107  533.78  176  879.50 

 India Housing Fund 10  21,73,663  266.77  22,64,000  249.24 

 UTI Structured Debt Opportunities Fund I  -  -   710.65  -  967.16 

 Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Fund  10,000  5,375  596.58  3,750  375.00 

 India Realty Excellence Fund IV -  -    626.94  -  674.07 

 EISAF II Onshore Fund 10,000  10,647  1,197.28  3,327  416.02 

 BPEA Credit India Fund III Scheme F 100  1,00,000  100.00  -   -   

 Total Real Estate / Credit Funds *  6,440.57  6,523.55 

 Total  6,796.81  6,523.55 

 * The Maturity of above funds range between 2 years to 8 years 

 

Debentures (Quoted) 

 Secured- 

 IIFL Wealth Finance Limited Sr IFGD IV BR - Feb 2024  1,00,000  -    -    300  305.76 

 Total Debentures  -    305.76 

 Total Non Current Investments  65,355.18  59,696.08 

 Aggregate amount of quoted investment and market value thereof  39,886.27  31,924.07 

 Aggregate  amount of unquoted investments  25,468.91  27,772.01

 # The Company invests through Portfolio Managers who provide Portfolio Management Services which are in the nature of investment 

administrative management services and include the responsibility to manage, invest and operate the fund as per the agreement(s) 

entered with them.

Current Investments:

Investments carried at fair value through OCI

Debentures and Bonds

 Bonds (Quoted) 

 Secured- 

9.15% JM Financial Credit Solutions Ltd. -Dec 2020 10,00,000  -    -   87  860.44 

8.10% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -March 2022 1,000  30,000  311.00    -  -   

7.93% REC Tax Free Bond -March 2022 1,000  30,619  316.79  -  -   

 9.50% JM Financial Credit Solutions Ltd. - May 2021  10,00,000  13  130.56  -   -

9.25% Manappuram Finance Limited - Feb 2022 10,00,000  30  307.48  -  -  

Total  1,065.83  860.44 

 Debentures (Quoted) 

 Secured- 

 ECAP Equities Limited Sr- K0K705A BR NCD May 2021  1,00,000  300  393.68  -   -

 10.25% Hansdeep Industries & Trading Company Ltd Oct 2021  10,00,000  50  508.11  -   -

Total 901.79     -



(` in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2019  458.28  446.73  11.55 

Current service cost  28.93  -    28.93 

Interest expense/(income)  35.24  34.35  0.89 

Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss  64.17  34.35  29.82 

Net amountPresent  Value
of Obligation

Fair Value of 
plan assets

Particulars

Contd...

Particulars Face Value As on 31/03/2021

Nos. Nos.

As on 31/03/2020
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` ``

(` in Lakhs)

 -   Debentures (Unquoted)

17.75% Orris Infrastructure Pvt Ltd. Aug 2019 1,00,00,000  -    -    2.00  65.83 

18% Golden Sparrow Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd Jun 2019  10  -    -    250.00  18.73 

18.50% Manyata Developers Private Ltd  Jun 2020  10,00,000  -    -    20.00  91.97 

15% Shashwati Realty Pvt. Ltd May 2020  10,00,000  30  150.05  30.00  300.08 

Total  150.05  476.61 

Total Debentures and Bonds  2,117.67  1,337.05 

 Preference Shares (Unquoted) 

 8.15% L&T Finance Holding Limited Preference Shares 100  -    -    15,00,000  1,500.00 

 Total   -    1,500.00 

 

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

Debentures and Bonds

Debentures (Quoted) 

Secured- 

Avendus Finance Private Limited Sr A BR LOA Sep 21 MLD  10,00,000  50  596.40  -    -   

Total   596.40  -   

Total Debentures and Bonds  596.40  - 

Mutual Funds 

 Liquid Mutual Funds (Unquoted) *

AXIS Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth 1,000  54,160.674 589.22  -    -  

Total  589.22  -   

Total Mutual Funds  589.22  -   

Total Current Investments  3,303.29  2,837.05 

Aggregate amount of quoted investment and market value thereof  2,564.02  860.44 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  739.27  1,976.61 

* Liquid mutual fund has been shown as cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement.

42 Employee Benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 
12 % of basic salary and other allowances as per regulations. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed 
and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expenses recognised during the period  towards defined 
contribution plan is ̀ 142.36 lakhs (March 31, 2020 ̀  137.04 lakhs).

(b) Defined benefit plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity for employees who are in continuous 
services for  a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on termination/retirement is employees last 
drawn salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity is a 
funded plan and the Company make contributions to recognised funds in India. 

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



Present value of funded obligations  (789.34)  (594.53)

Fair value of plan assets  495.49  472.88 

Deficit of funded plan  (293.85)  (121.65)

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 

Financial assumption:

Discount rate 6.85% 6.83%

Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00%

Demographic assumption:

Mortality rate IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08)

Ultimate  Ultimate

Attrition rate 2% 2%

Retirement age 58 & 60 Years 58 & 60 Years

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows: (  in Lakhs)`

As at 
March 31, 2020

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2021
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(` in Lakhs)

Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in internet

 expense/(income)  4.20  -    4.20 

Net actuarial (gain)/loss  -   

Change in experience  61.44  -    61.44 

Change in demographic assumptions  -    -    -   

Change in financial assumptions  34.64  -    34.64 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  100.28  -    100.28 

Employer Contribution  -    20.00  (20.00)

Benefits payment  (28.20)  (28.20)  -   

As at March 31, 2020  594.53  472.88  121.65 

As at March 31, 2020  594.53  472.88  121.65 

Current service cost  36.31  -    36.31 

Interest expense/(income)  40.61  32.30  8.31 

 76.92  32.30  44.62 

Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss  76.92  32.30  44.62 

Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in internet 

expense/(income)  4.00  -    4.00 

Net actuarial (gain)/loss 

Change in experience  141.61  -    141.61 

Change in demographic assumptions  -    -    -   

Change in financial assumptions  (1.03)  -    (1.03)

Total amount recognised to comprehensive income  144.58  -    144.58 

Employer contribution  -    17.00  -17.00 

Benefits payment  (26.69)  (26.69)  -   

As at March 31, 2021  789.34  495.49  293.85 

Net amountPresent  Value
of Obligation

Fair Value of 
plan assets

Particulars

Contd...
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key 

assumptions are:

Discount rate

a) Discount rate - 100 basis points  54.70  45.20 

b) Discount rate + 100 basis points  (48.86)  (39.95)

Salary escalation rate

a) Rate - 100 basis points  (49.68)  (40.60)

a) Rate + 100 basis points  54.62  45.12

Contd.. (  in Lakhs)`

As at 
March 31, 2020

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2021

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions 
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key 
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method 
used to calculate the liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

As at 
March 31, 2020

Particulars As at 
 March 31, 2021

The major categories of plan asset are as follows:

Equities 0% 0%

Bonds 0% 0%

Gilts 0% 0%

Pooled assets with an insurance company 100% 100%

Other 0% 0%

100% 100%

Year 1  58.18  77.91 

Year 2  42.80  18.42 

Year 3  51.48  34.46 

Year 4  94.04  39.97 

Year 5  95.02  44.39 

Year 6-10  463.26  314.58 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9 years (Previous Year 2020: 9 years).

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2021 as follows:

84

Risk exposure:

Through its defined benefit plans, Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Investment risk:  The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using discount rate determined by reference to 
market yields at the end of reporting period on government bond yields.

Interest risk:- A decrease in the bond interest will increase in plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the 
return on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to best estimate of the mortality of 
plan participants both during and at the end of employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase 
the plan liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 
participants.As such an increase in salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

The Code on Social Security :

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has 
been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The 
Company will assess the impact of the Code and recognise the same when the Code becomes effective.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



stAs at 31  March, 2020

Investments  25,630.54  30,073.29  6,829.31  -    62,533.13  62,533.13 

Trade receivables  -    -    -    3,420.49  3,420.49  3,420.49 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    656.67  656.67  656.67 

Other Bank balances  -    -    -    52.64  52.64  52.64 

Loans  -    -    -    4,464.80  4,464.80  4,464.80 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    1,084.35  1,084.35  1,084.35 

Total  25,630.54  30,073.29  6,829.31  9,678.95  72,212.08  72,212.08 

stAs at 31  March, 2021

Investments  27,607.66  33,068.38  7,982.43  -    68,658.47  68,658.47 

Trade receivables -    -    -    3,783.55  3,783.55  3,783.55 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    144.52  144.52  144.52 

Other Bank balances  -    -    -    74.97  74.97  74.97 

Loans  -    -    -    4,490.02  4,490.02  4,490.02 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    1,410.93  1,410.93  1,410.93 

Total  27,607.66  33,068.38  7,982.43  9,903.99  78,562.46  78,562.46 

43 Financial instruments

The details of significant accounting policies, including criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which 
income and expenditure are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are 
disclosed in Note 40 and 41.

Financial assets and liabilities

The accounting classification  of each category  of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts are set out as below:

a. Financial assets

Instruments carried at fair value (  in Lakhs)`

FVOCI 
(Equity

 instruments)

FVOCI 
(Other 

instruments)

FVTPL Instruments 
carried at 
amortized 

cost

Total 
carrying 

value

Total fair 
value

Particulars
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As at 31st March, 2020

Borrowings  -    521.12  521.12  521.12 

Trade payables  -    3,191.52  3,191.52  3,191.52 

Other financial liabilities  -    205.50  205.50  205.50 

Total  -       3,918.14  3,918.14  3,918.14 

As at 31st March, 2021

Borrowings  -    4.05  4.05  4.05 

Trade payables - 3,541.19  3,541.19  3,541.19 

Other financial liabilities  -    149.00  149.00  149.00 

Total  -    3,694.24  3,694.24  3,694.24 

b.   Financial liabilities (  in Lakhs)`

At 
amortized 

cost

Total 
carrying 

amount (A+B)

Total fair 
value

Fair value
 through 

profit and loss

Particulars

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



Assets at fair value

Equities

Equity instruments  8,049.26  17,581.28  -    25,630.54 

Debt

Debentures and bonds  18,936.27  2,306.75  448.94  21,691.96 

Preference shares  -    -    5,010.01  5,010.01 

Government bonds  3,677.07  -    -    3,677.07 

Real estate and debt funds  -    6,523.55  -    6,523.55 

 30,662.61  26,411.57  5,458.95  62,533.13 

As at 31st March, 2021

Assets at fair value

Equities

Equity instruments  11,589.33  16,018.33  -    27,607.66 

Debt

Debentures and bonds  19,218.65  6,314.05  950.05  26,482.74 

Pass through certificates (PTC)  501.27  -    -    501.27 

Preference shares  -    -    3,010.01  3,010.01 

Government Bonds  3,670.75  -    -    3,670.75 

Real estate and debt funds  6,796.81  -    -    6,796.81 

Mutual fund  589.22  -    -    589.22 

 42,366.03  22,332.39  3,960.05  68,658.47 

c. Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hirerarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 
valuation techniques:

The categories used are as follows:

• Level 1: quoted prices for identical instruments in active market.

• Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly.

• Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The below table summarises the categories of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021, and March 31, 2020 
measured at fair value: 

stAs at 31  March, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TotalParticulars
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Trade receivables  3,783.55  3,783.55  3,420.49  3,420.49 

Cash and cash equivalents  144.52  144.52  656.67  656.67 

Other Bank balances  74.97  74.97  52.64  52.64 

Loans  4,490.02  4,490.02  4,464.80  4,464.80 

Other financial assets  1,410.93  1,410.93  1,084.35  1,084.35 

 9,903.99  9,903.99  9,678.95  9,678.95 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings  4.05  4.05  521.12  521.12 

Trade payables  3,541.19  3,541.19  3,191.52  3,191.52 

Other financial liabilities  149.00  149.00  205.50  205.50 

 3,694.24  3,694.24  3,918.14  3,918.14 

st As at  31 March, 2021 stAs at 1  April, 2020
Carrying 

value
Fair 

value
Fair 

value

Financial assets

Carrying 
value

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:- (  in Lakhs)`
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The Management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in term deposits, 

loans, other financial assets (except derivative financial instruments), trade payables, and other financial liabilities (except 

derivative financial instruments) is considered to be equal to the carrying amount of these items due to their short-term 

nature.

There were no significant changes in classification and no significant movements between the fair value hierarchy 

classifications of financial assets and financial liabilities during the period.

44   Income Taxes

(a)   Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

i) Current tax

Current year  284.75  126.18 

Tax provision of earlier years  -    -   

  Total current tax  284.75  126.18 

ii) Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary difference  95.44  (298.20)

   Total deferred income tax expense/(credit)  95.44  (298.20)

Total i) + ii)  380.19  (172.02)

Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

i) Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

     Tax on reliazed gain of equity instruments  251.51  (39.46)

Tax on remeasurements of net defined benefit plans  (25.26)  15.64 

Tax on equity instrument through other comprehensive income  560.19  354.37 

 786.44  330.55 

ii)  Income tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax on debt instrument through other comprehensive income  206.71  (239.58)

 206.71  (239.58)

Total i) + ii)  993.15  90.97 

(  in Lakhs)`

Year ended 
st 31 March, 2021

Year ended 
st 31 March, 2020

Particulars

A.   Components of Income Tax Expense

(b)

(  in Lakhs)`

Year ended 
st 31 March, 2021

Year ended 
st 31 March, 2020

Particulars

 A reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the 

Company and the effective income tax rate of the Company is as follows :

Profit before tax  2,479.35  1,031.48 

Enacted income tax rate in India 29.12% 29.12%

Expected income tax expense during the year at statutory rate  721.99  300.37 

Differences due to:

   Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  34.00  33.19 

Exempt Income  (214.64)  (242.33)

Impact of Minimum alternate tax  (24.84)  (139.46)

Tax Rate Difference etc.  (136.32)  (123.81)

Effective tax  expenses  380.19  (172.04)

B.  Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit for the year
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C.  The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

Movement during the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

On expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid  29.64  1.20  -    30.84 

On depreciation  (1,120.29)  (0.91)  -    (1,121.20)

On fair valuation of financial assets  (3,775.60)  151.63  114.78  (3,509.19)

 (4,866.25)  151.92  114.78  (4,599.55)

(  in Lakhs)`

As at 
st31  March, 

2019

Credit/
(charge) in 
statement 

of Profit 
and Loss

Credit/
charge) 
in Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

As at 
st31  March, 

2020

Movement during the year ended March 31, 2021

On expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid  30.84  7.87  -    38.71 

On depreciation  (1,121.20)  (159.01)  -    (1,280.21)

On fair valuation of financial assets  (3,509.19)  30.86  (766.90)  (4,245.23)

Total  (4,599.55)  (120.28)  (766.90)  (5,486.73)

As at 
st31  March, 

2020

Credit/
(charge) in 
statement 

of Profit 
and Loss

Credit/
charge) 
in Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

As at 
st31  March, 

2021

45 Risk Management

Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s 

financial risk management policy is set by the Managing Board. The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risk  

arising from the financial instruments: (a) Market risk; (b) Liquidity risk and (c) Credit risk.

Financial risk factors

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, deposits from dealers and  trade and other payables. The  

purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide to support its operations. The Company’s 

principal financial assets include investments, loans,  trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive 

directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to the following  risk  arising from the financial instruments: (a) Market risk; (b) Liquidity risk and (c) Credit 

risk (d) Covid-19.

Liquidity risk

Credit risk

Market Risk - Foreign exchange

Market Risk - Interest rate

Market Risk - Price risk

Borrowings and other 

liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents, 

trade  receivables, 

Investments, loans and other 

financial assets measured at 

fair /amortised cost.

Financial assets and 

liabilities denominated in INR

Long-term borrowings at 

variable rates

Investments in Equitites, 

Bonds, debentures, funds

Rolling cash flow forecasts

Ageing analysis/ Credit 

ratings / Assets Coverage

Cash flow forecasting 

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis; market 

fluctuations; credit rating

Availability of committed 

credit lines and borrowing 

facilities; working capital 

management

Diversification in verious 

class of assets, credit limits

Hedging Forex planning

Interest rate swaps

Continous monitoring, 
Diversificaton

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
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(a) Liquidity risk

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or  another financial asset. Liquidity risk management implies maintain sufficient cash including availability of  
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations as and when due.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its short tem 
and long term liabilities as and when due. Anticipated future cash flows,undrawan committed credit facilities are expected to be 
sufficient to meet the liquidity requirements of the Company.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities as at the end of the reporting period:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Secured working capital credit facility from Banks  595.95  113.20 

(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars

(` in Lakhs)(ii) The following is the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities:

As at 31st March, 2020

Non-derivative liabilities

Borrowings  521.12  521.12  -    503.32  8.29  9.51 

Trade payables  3,191.52  3,191.52  -    930.39  2,261.13  -   

Other financial liabilities  205.51  205.51  -    205.51  -    -   
stAs at 31  March, 2021

Non-derivative liabilities

Borrowings  4.05  4.05  -    -    -    4.05 

Trade payables  3,541.19  3,541.19  -    1,854.49  1,686.70  -   

Other financial liabilities  149.00  149.00  -    117.75  31.25  -  

Carrying 
amount

Total Payable 
on 

demand

Less than 
1 month

1-6 months more than 
12 months

Particulars

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,  currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and 
payables. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency 
exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. The Company's treasury 
team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk 
management.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk can only arise on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional 
currency in which they are measured. The Company's functional and presentation currency is INR.  The Company does 
have transactions in currency other than fuctional currency i.e. in US Dollar (USD) for purchase of raw material from 
overseas supplier. However, those are not very significant considering the nature and size of the operations of the 
Company .

Trade payable  2.18  0.29 

Trade receivables  3.75  2.08 

Net Exposure - [Receivable/(Payable)]  1.57  1.79 

(` in Lakhs)

 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

USD USD

Foreign Currency Exposure

Particulars

The company's exposure to the foreign currency risk is not significant considering the nature and size of the operations.
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(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company's Long term borrowings have fixed rate of interest and carried at amortized costs and short 
term borrowings have variable rate of interest. The Company also has significant investments in Bonds i.e. Government 
securities; Debentures; Preference shares and Debt funds.  These investments are subject to the Market risk - Interest rate 
risk.

Exposure to Interest rate risk - Financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020Particulars

Total borrowings  595.95  113.20 

% of borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest and 

short term in nature 0.00% 421.63%

Hence, the Company is not significantly exposed to the interest rate risk  as working capital facility are, as per contractual 
terms, primarily of short term in nature.

Exposure to Interest rate risk - Financial assets - Investments in Government Bonds, Bonds, Debentures, Debt funds 
and Preference Shares

Market price risk for  government bonds, debentures, Preference shares and other bonds is  movement in the interest rate and 
impact thereof on the yield. The Company's major part of investments is in Bonds/Debentures, which exposes Company to a 
price risk and consequently impact on the profitability and value of instruments

Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease in the interest rate over the value of bonds/debentures. The 
analysis is based on the assumption  that the Interest rate  has increased by 100 bps or decrease by 100bps with all other 
variables held constant.

Equity instruments  27,607.66 40.21% 25,630.54 40.99%

Debentures and bonds  26,482.74 38.57%  21,691.96 34.69%

Pass through certificates (PTC)  501.27 0.73%  -   0.00%

Preference Shares  3,010.01 4.38%  5,010.01 8.01%

Government Bonds  3,670.75 5.35%  3,677.07 5.88%

Real estate and debt funds  6,796.81 9.90%  6,523.55 10.43%

Mutual fund  589.22 0.86%  -   0.00%

Total  68,658.47 100.00%  62,533.13 100.00%

 For the year ended 
st 31 March, 2021 

 For the year ended 
st 31 March, 2020

Impact on profit before tax

Increase of 100 bps -Gain/(loss)  (728.40)  (1,845.13)

Decrease of 100 bps-Gain/(loss)  728.40  1,845.13 

(iii)  Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either 

at fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from its investments , the 

Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company in 

accordance with the guidelines provided by the Board of directors of the Company.

(  in Lakhs)`

 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
 Amount  %   Amount  %  

Nature of Investments

Exposure

Investments in Equity Instruments and Equity mutual funds (including investment through Private Equity funds)

The Company's quoted equity instruments are subject to the market price risk arising from the fluctuation in the market price of 
those instruments.  This risk arises from instruments which are classified as Fair value through P&L or Fair value through OCI. 
The Company's investment in equity instruments mainly consists of Investments in certain of its group companies wherein the 
price fluctuations, based on the historical trends, are not very significant.
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Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of Increase/decrease of the BSE index on the Company's equity and Gain/Loss for the 
period. The analysis is based on the assumption  that the index has increased by 5% or decrease by 5 % with ll other variables 
held constant and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index.

Impact on total comprehensive income

BSE Sensex - Increase 5% -Gain/(loss)  1,380.38  1,281.53 

BSE Sensex - Decrease 5% -Gain/(loss)  (1,380.38)  (1,281.53)

(` in Lakhs)

 For the year ended 
 March 31, 2021

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, 
the Company periodically assess financial reliability of counter party, taking into account the financial condition, current 
economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. The Company considers the 
probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risks on an 
on-going basis throughout each reporting period.

To assess whether there is a significant change increase in credit risk the Company compares the risks of default occurring on 
the assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of  initial recognition. It considers the reasonable and 
supportive forward looking information such as:

(i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.
(ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty.
(iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its 

obligations
(iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of same counterparty

(I)  Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Not Due  2,472.86  1,762.07 

0-90 days  940.67  1,568.65 

90-180 Days  234.00  64.71 

> 180 Days  136.03  25.06 

Total  3,783.55  3,420.49 

(` in Lakhs)

Commodity Risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of raw materials proactively managed through forward booking, 
inventory management and proactive vendor development practices.

(d) Covid - 19 Risk

In view of the recent surge in Covid-19 cases, many states reintroduced some restrictions which have temporarily disrupted  
the operations at its manufacturing plants. The Company is in compliance with the various guidelines issued / relaxations 
provided by the Government /respective authorities from time to time, presently working at its normal capacity similar to the pre 
COVID levels with adequate precautions for safety and wellbeing of its employees. The management apart from considering 
the internal and external information upto the date of approval of these financial statements expects to recover the carrying 
amount of the assets including financial investments. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to 
future economic conditions.
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46 Capital risk management

(a) The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :

♦ safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which includes 
capital and other strategic investments. The Company’s intention is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a 
focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth 
of its business.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio being a ratio of net debt as a percentage of total capital.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020Particulars

Total equity  81,907.56  77,165.10 

Net Debt  (140.47)  (135.55)

Total Capital (Borrowings and Equity)  81,767.09  77,029.55 

Gearing Ratio -0.17% -0.18%

(  in Lakhs)`

(i) Net debt represents total borrowings (non-current & current) as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. 

(ii) Equity comprises of  all components incuding other comprehensive income.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(b)   Dividend (  in Lakhs)`

In addition to the above dividend, since year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of ` 2 per 
stfully paid equity share (31  March, 2021 – ̀  2). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing 

annual general meeting.

Particulars

Equity Shares
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 of  2.00 
per shares (March 31, 2019 -  2.00) per fully paid share  295.38  295.38 

`
`

47 Related party disclosure with whom transactions have been entered during the year in the ordinary course of the 
business :

(A) Relationships:

(i) Joint ventures in which the entity is a joint venturer:
Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.

(ii)  Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Whole Time Directors
Mr. Raghu Mody,  Executive Chairman
Mr. P. K. Choudhary, Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mr. Sunil Jindal, Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
Mr. Vikram Soni, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

(iii) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel / Directors: 
Mrs. Shashi Mody (Daughter-in-law of Mr. Raghu Mody, Executive Chairman)
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(iv) Income

Marketing Fees and Royalty

  - Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  8.56 6.25

Interest Income

  - Pallawi Resources Limited 175.00 175.35

  - Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  Nil 22.88 

(v) Purchase of Investment - Rasoi Ltd. Equity Shares

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  Nil  495.00

(vi) Dividend Received

J L Morison (India) Ltd. 2.73 2.73 

(vii)Salaries and other employee benefits to Whole Time Directors and KMP

Mr. Raghu Mody *  144.57  156.29

Mr. P.K. Choudhary  84.18  90.78

Mr. Sunil Jindal  23.32  23.82

Mr. Vikram Soni  10.82  10.31

(B) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (A) above, in ordinary course of business:

(i) Inter Corporate Deposits Given

Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  Nil  500.00

(ii) Inter Corporate Deposits Refund Received

Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  Nil  500.00

(iii) Rent Paid (Including GST)

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  17.13  15.58

Pallawi Resources Limited  4.67  4.25

Mr. Varunn Mody  19.82  19.46

(` in Lakhs)

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars
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(iv) Non Executive Directors:
Mr. Ashok B Vadiya, Independent Director
Mr. Deepak Sethi, Independent Director
Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia, Additional Director (appointed w.e.f.13th Feb. 2020)
Mr. Chakrapani Misra, Independent Director (resigned w.e.f. 28th Feb. 2020)
Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agrawal, Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 13th Feb. 2020)
Mrs. Sakshi Mody, Non Executive Director (resigned w.e.f. 14th Feb. 2020)

(v) Other Related Parties:
Rasoi Ltd., *
Leaders Healthcare Ltd. *
J L Morison (India) Ltd.
Pallawi  Resources Ltd.
Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd.  
Mr. Varunn Mody, (Husband of Smt. Sakshi Mody, Non Executive Director)
 * Entities belonging to promoter/promoter group holding 10% or more shareholding in the company.

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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(B) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (A) above, in ordinary course of business:
(` in Lakhs)

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars

STNOTES OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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(C) Balances outstanding with related parties referred in (A) above, in ordinary course of business: (` in Lakhs)

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars

(I) Receivable:

 - Inter Corporate Deposits:

   Pallawi Resources Limited (secured) 1,750.00  1,750.00 

 - Others Receivable:

   Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  53.30  25.26

   Pallawi Resources Limited 42.13  41.31

   Mr. Varunn Mody  6.60  6.60

(ii) Payable:

  - Commission to independent directors 

Mr. Ashok B Vadiya 1.93  1.90 

Mr. K. S. Brar 1.93 1.90 

Mr. Deepak Sethi 1.93  1.90 

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agarwal  1.93  Nil

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia 1.93 Nil 

 

 - Others

    Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd. Nil 0.57 

(iii) Investment in: (at cost)

J L Morison (India) Ltd. 515.49 515.49

Rasoi Limited  1,351.36  1,351.36

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Refer Note i) below) 980.00  980.00 

Note:
i) No amount pertaining to related parties has been provided for as doubtful debts except diminution in value of investment in Compo Advics 

(India) Pvt. Ltd. of  980 lakhs (Previous year  Nil). Also no amount has been written off/back.
ii) The related parties are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 

` `

(viii)Salaries and other employee benefits to relatives of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Shashi Mody 29.02 29.48 

(ix) Directors sitting fees and commission to independent  and non executive directors 

Mr. Ashok B Vadiya 3.20 3.70

Mr. K. S. Brar 3.20 3.50

Mr. Deepak Sethi 2.80 3.00

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agarwal 2.40 Nil

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia 2.20 Nil

Mr. Chakrapani Misra  Nil 0.80

Mrs. Sakshi Mody Nil 0.50

(x) Other Transactions

Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd. (Purchase of Air Ticket) 3.33 63.55

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Sale of Raw Material(Net))  60.60 28.46 

Mr. Varunn Mody (Salaries)  78.07 84.29

Note: * Previous year Includes ` 44.76 Lakhs being excess managerial remuneration paid for which necessary shareholders 
approval was obtained.
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48 (a) Loans and Advances in nature of loans.

Loans where there is no interest or at an interest rate below that specified in the Companies Act, 2013. 

Amount Outstanding end of the year

Employees (as per general rules of the Company)  7.77  3.07

Maximum amount Outstanding During the Year

Employees (as per general rules of the Company)  7.77  6.12 

 (b) Details of Short Term Inter Corporate Deposits: #
(  in Lakhs)`

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars

Gillanders Arbuthnot & Co. Ltd 500.00 900.00 

Globe Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 130.00 150.00 

India Glycols Limited 1,100.00 1,650.00 

Pallawi Resources Limited 1,750.00 Nil 

Total 3,480.00 2,700.00 

(c) Details of Long Term Inter Corporate Deposits: #

Pallawi Resources Limited  Nil  1,750.00 

#Inter corporate deposits (ICD) given for general corporate purpose of the borrowing company on interest in the range of 

10% to 13% (Previous Year 10% to 13%). 

49 Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising 

from financing activities.

Particulars

 Long Term Borowing*  194.25  (85.67)  -    108.58  (66.50)  -    42.08 

 Short Term Borowing  159.45  317.84  -    477.29  (477.29)  -    -    

* Including current maturity of long term borowing. 

As At 
March 
2019

Cash 
Flow

Non-
Cash 

Changes

As At 
March
 2020

As At 
March 
2021

Cash 
Flow

Non-
Cash 

Changes

(  in Lakhs)`

50 The Company has made an investment of  980 lakhs (Previous Year  980 lakhs) in Compo Advics India Private Limited, a Joint 
Venture Company which has accumulated losses of  1,187.61 lakhs (Previous Year 1,023.19 lakhs), being Companys' Share i.e. 
49%. In view of the accumulated losses, there is full diminution in the value of Company’s investments in the Joint Venture company 
and hence full value of investment of 980 Lakhs has been marked down to Zero and has been adjusted with Other 
Comprehensive Income. However, considering the investment is of long term and strategic in nature no amount pertaining to this 
investment has been written off.

51 Previous years’ figures have been regrouped/reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current years’ classification.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 51 which form an integral part of the financial statements. 

` `
`

` 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai   
thDate: 26  May 2021

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 

   

 
Raghu Mody               P.K. Choudhary

 
      Chairman      Managing Director 

 

Chief Financial Officer

 

  Vikram Soni                  Sunil Jindal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(DIN 00053329) (DIN 00535670)

Membership No. A36705
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Hindustan Composites Limited

Opinion

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Composites Limited and its Joint Venture (the 
Holding Company and its Joint Venture together referred to as “the Group”), which comprises of Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year than ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

stGroup as at 31  March 2021, its consolidated profits, consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of theconsolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to note no 38 of the consolidated financial statements with regard to Management’s assessment of realisability 
of assets including financial Investments due to recent surge in Covid -19 pandemic outbreak. The management apart from considering 
the internal and external information up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements expects to recover the 
carrying amount of these assets, including financial investments. Considering the continuing uncertainties, the management will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and does not anticipate any material financial or 
operational issues in the short term as well as on a long-term basis. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

96

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s response

Valuation and Impairment of unquoted equity instruments /Debt 
Investments:

We focused on the valuation of unquoted Equity/Debt Instruments 
due to the materiality of the investments and the nature of their 
valuation which involve the use of judgmental assumptions. As 
disclosed in Note no 3  and 8, as at 31 March 2021 the Group has 
unquoted equity /debt Investments of Rs. 26,208.17 Lakhs. These 
Investments are classified and measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed and tested the design and the operating 
effectiveness of the key controls that management has 
established to support the review and approval of the model 
design, key model inputs and valuation.

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation method 
used by management by verifying the key inputs used in 
determining the assumptions as also corroborating the 
information.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board report,  Corporate 
Governance report and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the consolidated financial statement and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of 
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance (including consolidated other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the 
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Groupand for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the reporting process of 
the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of theconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope pf our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) 
too evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of a joint venture in India included in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial 
statements reflect Group’s share of loss of Rs.126.80 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021. These financial statements have been 
audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this joint venture and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on the report of the other 
auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and records.

(c) The Consolidated Balance sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss (including consolidated other comprehensive 
income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are inagreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Joint Venture incorporated in India, none of the directors of the 
Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure “A”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Sec 197(16) of 
the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial position in its consolidated financial 
statements. [Refer Note No.33]
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ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Holding Company.

Place : Mumbai
thDate : 26  May, 2021

For Bagaria & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 113447W/W-100019

Vinay Somani
PartnerMembership No: 143503

UDIN:21143503AAAAIT3682

Annexure A

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF HINDUSTAN COMPOSITES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hindustan Composites Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its Joint Venture.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and a joint venture incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 
and a joint venture incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Group's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements and (4) also provide us  reasonable assurance by the internal auditors through their internal 
audit reports given to the Group from time to time.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Group has broadly, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place : Mumbai
thDate :  26  May, 2021

For Bagaria & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 113447W/W-100019

Vinay Somani
PartnerMembership No: 143503

UDIN:21143503AAAAIT3682
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STCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31  MARCH, 2021
Particulars

 

  
 

 

 
 

Note No.

(  in Lakhs)`

 As at  
st31  March, 2021

I ASSETS

Non-current assets

  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1  11,590.47  12,226.49 

  (b) Other Intangible assets 2 18.82 16.99 

  (c) Intangible assets under deveploment 2.1  16.42  16.16

  (d) Financial assets

       (i) Investments 3  65,355.18  58,716.08 

  (ii) Loans 4  -    1,750.00 

       (iii) Other financial assets 5  56.68  55.96 

  (e) Other non-current assets 6  37.92  10.81 

Total non-current assets  77,075.49  72,792.49 

Current assets

  (a) Inventories 7  1,186.44  1,256.65 

  (b) Financial assets

        (i) Investments 8  3,303.29  2,837.05 

        (ii) Trade receivables 9  3,730.25  3,395.23 

        (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10  144.52  656.67 

        (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 11  74.97  52.64 

        (v) Loans 12  4,490.02  2,714.80 

        (vi) Other financial assets 13  1,354.25  1,028.39 

  (c)  Other current assets 14  285.47  195.23 

  (d)  Current tax assets (Net) 15  163.65  190.78 

Total current assets  14,732.86  12,327.44 

Total Assets  91,808.35  85,119.93 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

  (a) Equity Share capital 16  738.45  738.45 

  (b) Other Equity 17  80,961.50  75,365.84 

Total equity  81,699.95   76,104.29 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

          Borrowings 18  4.05  43.83 

  (b) Provisions 19  317.98  207.92 

  (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 44  5,486.73  4,599.55 

  (d) Other non current liabilities 20  87.51  79.12 

Total non-current liabilities  5,896.27  4,930.42 

Current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

        (i) Borrowings 21  -    477.29 

        (ii) Trade payables 22

        - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  56.73  48.24 

        - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  3,638.77  3,198.83 

        (iii) Other financial liabilities 23  149.00  205.50 

  (b) Other current liabilities 24  151.18  32.39 

  (c) Provisions 25  216.45  122.97 

Total current liabilities  4,212.13  4,085.22 

Total Equity and Liabilities  91,808.35  85,119.93 

Significant accounting policies A   

See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 40)
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I Revenue from operations 26  18,458.75  17,805.19 

II Other income 27  618.44  49.49 

III Total Income ( I + II)  19,077.19  17,854.68 

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 28  7,341.55  7,338.21 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29  185.56  (134.78)

Employee benefits expense 30  3,259.14  3,354.97 

Finance costs 31  19.59  22.31 

Depreciation and amortization expense 1 & 2  886.69  950.30 

Other expenses 32  4,905.31  5,292.19 

Total Expenses  16,597.84  16,823.20 

V Profit before tax ( III - IV)  2,479.35  1,031.48 

VI Share of (loss) of joint venture  (126.80)  (156.09)

VII  Profit before tax (V - VI)  2,352.55  875.39 

VIII Tax Expense: 44

Current tax  284.75  126.18 

Deferred tax  95.44  (298.20)

Total Tax Expense  380.19  (172.02)

IX Profit for the year  1,972.36  1,047.41 

X Other Comprehensive Income

A. (i)   Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 43  4,201.98  (881.28)

    (ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 44  (786.44)  330.55 

B. (i)  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 43  709.85  822.72 

    (ii)  Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 44  (206.71)  (239.58)

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX + X)  5,891.04  1,079.82 

Earnings per equity share of  5 each (Basic and Diluted) 35  13.35  7.09 

Significant accounting policies A

See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 40)
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A Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax  2,352.55  875.39 

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation  886.69  950.30 

Net gain on sale / fair valuation of investments through profit and loss  (1,676.93)  (1,357.32)

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  (599.33)  (16.16)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (144.58)  (100.28)

Interest expenses  19.60  22.31 

Operating profit before working capital changes  838.00  374.24 

Adjustment for

(Increase)Decrease in Trade and other receivable  (425.43)  302.52 

(Increase)Decrease in Inventories  70.21  (26.88)

(Decrease)Increase in Trade and other payables  893.90  (284.38)

Cash generated from operations  1,376.68  365.50 

Direct taxes paid (net)  (459.02)  (109.42)

Net cash generated from operating activities  917.66  256.08 

B Cash generated from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant, equipment and Intangible assets  (392.37)  (685.04)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  739.00  27.42 

Acquisition of investments (net)  (3,008.51)  (1,576.80)

(Increase)/decrease in inter- corporate deposits  (335.46)  600.00 

Income from Investment (net)  3,015.55  2,106.91 

Net cash flow (used in) from investing activities  18.21  472.49 

C Cash generated from financing activities

Proceeds/(repayment) from long-term borrowings (net)  (66.50)  (85.67)

Proceeds/(repayment) from short-term borrowings (net)  (477.29)  317.84 

Dividend paid (including corporate dividend tax)  (295.38)  (356.24)

Interest paid  (19.60)  (22.43)

Cash generated from financing activities  (858.77)  (146.50)

D Net Increase/ Decrease in cash and cash equivalent ( A+B+C)  77.10  582.07 

Cash and Cash equivalents

At the beginning of the year  656.67  74.60 

At the end of the year  733.77  656.67 

Note :  The Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include investment in Liquid Mutual fund of  589.22 lakhs (Previous Year  Nil)

Significant accounting policies A

See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 40)
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stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  738.45 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  738.45 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  738.45 

stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  57.70  60,050.13  5,753.53  1,393.57  7,423.62  (36.30)  74,642.25 

Profit for the year  -    -    1,047.41  -    -    -    1,047.41 

Other comprehensive income for
the year (Net)  -    -    -   583.14  (466.09)  (84.64)  32.41 

Amount transferred in respect of 
realised gain (Net)  -    -    396.45  -    (396.45)  -   -

Dividend paid during the year  -    -    (295.38)  -    -    -     (295.38)

Corporate dividend tax paid  -    -    (60.85)  -    -    -    (60.85)

Transfer to General reserve  -    1,000.00  (1,000.00)  -    -    -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  57.70  61,050.13  5,841.16  1,976.71  6,561.08  (120.94)  75,365.85 

Profit for the year  -    -    1,972.36  -    -    -     1,972.36 

Other comprehensive income for 
the year (Net)  -    -    -    503.14  3,534.87  (119.33)  3,918.68 

Amount transferred in respect of 
realised gain (Net)  -    -    1,191.31  -    (1,191.31)  -    -   

Dividend paid during the year  -    -    (295.38)  -    -    -     (295.38)

Transfer to General reserve  -    1,000.00  (1,000.00)  -    -    -     -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  57.70  62,050.13  7,709.45  2,479.85  8,904.64  (240.27)  80,961.50 

Refer note 17 for nature and purpose of the reserves.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED ST
31  MARCH, 2021

(  in Lakhs)`

Amount

Reserves and surplus Items of other 
comprehensive income 

Total 
Capital 

redemption 
reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Debt 
instruments

Equity 
Instruments

Others - 
Acturial 

gain/ (loss)

Particulars

Particulars

 

(  in Lakhs)`
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES 
FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

CORPORATE OVERVIEW:

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial 
statements of Hindustan Composites Limited is a public limited 
company and its joint venture, namely Compo Advics (India) Pvt. 
Ltd., (collectively referred to as "the Group") for the year ended 
31 March 2021. The groups share in the Joint Venture is 49%.

Hindustan Composites Limited ("the Group") is a public limited 
Group domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provision 
of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange 
(NSE) of India.

The registered office of the Group is located at Peninsula 
thBusiness Park, A Tower, 8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower 

Parel, Mumbai 400 013.

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and 
marketing of fibre based friction material, consisting of Brake 
Liners, Roll Lining, Brake Block, Clutch Facing, Disc Brakes 
Pads etc and investment of its surplus fund.

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read 
with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
standards) Rules, 2015 and amendment rules issued 
there after.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and 
Historical cost convention except for the following 
material items that have been measured at fair value as 
required by the relevant Ind AS:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured 
at Fair value 

ii) Defined benefit employee plan 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or 
non current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products 
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months 
for the purpose of current or non-current classification of 
assets and liabilities.

b) Uses of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements requires the 
Management to make, judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 

period. The recognition, measurement, classification or 
disclosure of an item or information in the financial 
statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements are continuously 
evaluated by the Group and are based on historical 
experience and various other assumptions and factors 
(including expectations of future events) that the Group 
believes to be reasonable under the existing 
circumstances. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is 
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of 
estimation uncertainty

The Group is required to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 
period of the revision and future period, if the revision 
affects current and future periods.

(a) Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of 
property plant and equipment and intangible 
assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
are depreciated / amortised over their estimated 
useful lives, after taking into account its estimated 
residual value. Management reviews the estimated 
useful lives and residual values of the assets 
annually in order to determine the amount of 
depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any 
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values 
are based on the Group’s historical experience with 
similar assets and take into account anticipated 
technological changes. The depreciation / 
amortisation for future periods is revised if there are 
significant changes from previous estimates. 
Depreciation on the fixed assets added / disposed 
off/ discarded during the year is provided on pro-rata 
basis with reference to the month of addition / 
disposal / discarding.

(b) Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period 
when it becomes probable that there will be a future 
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or 
events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing 
of recognition requires application of judgement to 
existing facts and circumstances which may be 
subject to change. The amounts are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability.
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(c) Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent 
liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 
against the Group. Potential liabilities that are 
possible but not probable of crystallising or are very 
difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent 
liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes 
but are not recognized in the financial statements.

(d) Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The present value of the defined benefit obligations 
depends on a number of factors that are determined 
on an actuarial basis. The assumptions used in 
determining the net interest cost/(income) for 
defined benefit plans include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of defined benefit obligations.

c) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
financial statements of the Group as at 31 March 2021.

Investment in joint venture:

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties 
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to 
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is 
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an 
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the 
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint 
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial 
statements using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate 
or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated 
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to 
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income of the  associate or joint venture. 
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a 
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that 
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term 
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net 
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group 
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. 
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that 
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations 
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint 
venture. 

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is 
accounted for using the equity method from the date on 
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint 
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate 
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the 
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of 
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is 
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the 
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the 
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after 
reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital 
reserve in the period in which the investment is 
acquired.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the 
Group determines whether there is any objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the net 
investment in an associate or a joint venture and that 
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably 
estimated. If there exists such an objective evidence of 
impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment 
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an 
associate or a joint venture.

Distributions received from an associate or a joint venture 
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Unrealised 
gains on transactions between the group and its 
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent 
of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses 
are also eliminated unless the transactions provides 
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using 
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group 
uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions 
and events in similar circumstances, appropriate 
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial 
statements in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s 
accounting policies.

d) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, 
plant and equipment are measured at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Costs include freight, import duties, non-refundable 
purchase taxes and other expenses directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the asset. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they 
are incurred.

The cost of property, plant and equipment which are not 
ready for their intended use before such date, are 
disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

The Group assesses at each Balance Sheet date 
whether there is any indication that any asset may be 
impaired. If any, such indication exists, the carrying value 
of such asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and 
the impairment loss is charged to profit and loss account. 
If at the balance Sheet date there is any deduction that a 
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, 
then such loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that 
effect. 
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Intangible assets:

Technical Know How and Computer software are stated 
at cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairments, 
if any.

Depreciation/ amortisation methods, estimated useful 
lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a Straight Line Method, over 
the estimated useful lives of assets. Leasehold land is 
amortised over period of lease.  Leasehold 
improvements are amortised over the period of lease or 
estimated useful lives which ever is lower.  

The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment 
over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule 
II of the Companies Act, 2013 and management believe 
that useful lives of assets are same as those prescribed 
in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Group amortizes computer software with a useful life 
using the straight-line method over the period of 3 years 
from the date of acquisition.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

e) As a lessee

Operating Lease

The Group, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset 
and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an 
identified asset and the Group has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to 
direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-
of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial 
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made on or before the commencement date 
plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use 
assets is subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the 
lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated 
using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-
of-use asset. The Group measures the lease liability at 
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that 
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses 
incremental borrowing rate. For short-term and low value 
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and 
deposits which are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value and have an original maturity of three 
months or less, including money market deposits, 
commercial paper and investments. Bank overdrafts are 

shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the 
balance sheet.

g) Inventories: 

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores 
and spares and  Finished Goods are stated 'at cost or net 
realisable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all 
cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition.  The Goods and Service Tax 
(GST) in respect of closing inventory of finished goods is 
included as part of finished goods.  Cost formula used is   
'Weighted Average cost'.  Due allowance is estimated 
and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever 
necessary, based on the past experience of the Group.

h) Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. Financial assets other than trade 
receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair 
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair 
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair 
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the 
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive 
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of 
both (a) the entity’s business model for managing the 
financial assets and (b) the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets are subsequently  measured at 
amortised cost, if these financial assets are  held 
within a business module whose  objective is to hold  
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified date to cash flows that are  solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

(ii) Measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these 
financial assets are held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows that give rise on specified 
dates to solely  payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding and by selling 
financial assets.

(iii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL):

Financial assets other than equity instrument are 
measured at FVTPL  unless it is measured at 
amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. 
Such financial assets are measured at fair value with 
all changes in fair value, including interest income 
and dividend income if any, recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Equity instruments:

The Group subsequently measures all equity 
investments at fair value. Where the Group's 
management has elected to present fair value gains and 
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive 
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair 
value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in 
the Statement of  Profit and Loss as other income when 
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment 

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the 
expected credit losses associated with its financial 
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt 
instruments. The impairment methodology applied 
depends on whether there has been a signifi cant 
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the 
simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to 
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 
The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash flows 
from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of 
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing 
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at 
fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities 
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are 
subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition A financial liability is derecognised when 
the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments such as future contracts 
are initially recognised at fair value on the date a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured at their fair value with changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
period when they arise.

i) Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, 
derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.F

air value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either:

ü In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ü In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liabilityThe 
principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their  best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. The 
Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

ü Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities 

ü Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

ü Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
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and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.

j)  Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at  net of transaction 
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds 
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method.

k) Borrowing costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.

l) Provisions and contingent liabilities:

Provisions for legal claims, volume discounts and returns 
are recognised when the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses. The carrying amounts of provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimate.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the 
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a 
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of 
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the 
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of 
management's best estimate of the expenditure required 
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 
period. The discount rate used to determine the present 
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due 
to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 
probably not require an outflow of resources or an 
obligation for which the future outcome cannot be 
ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a 
possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of 
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure 
is made.

m) Revenue recognition : 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed 
as revenue are  net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, 
value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of 
third parties. The Group recognises revenue when the 

amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the 
entity.

Sale of goods -

Timing of recognition: 

Sales are recognised when substantial risk and rewards 
of ownership are transferred to customer. In case of 
domestic sales take place when goods are dispatched or 
delivery is handed over to customer’s logistics.  In case of 
export sales take place when goods are shipped on-
board, based on bill of lading.

Interest income: 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when 
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Group and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably.

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to 
receive the payment has been established.

n) Employee Benefits:

The Group provides following post-employment plans:

(I) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity and pension &

(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

a) Defined-benefit plan:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet 
in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plan 
is the present value of defined benefit obligations at 
the end of the reporting period less fair value of the 
plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is 
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected 
unit credit method.

The Group recognises the following changes in the 
net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss:

(a) Service costs comprising current service 
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 
curtailment and non-routine settlements; and

 (b) Net interest expense or income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and fair value of the plan assets. This cost is 
included in employee benefit expenses in the 
consolidated statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and 
losses arising from experience adjustment and 
changes in actuarial assumptions, the effect of asset 
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability) ceiling are recognised in the 
period in which they occur directly in Other 
comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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b) Defined-contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the 
Group pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds 
and does not have any legal or informal obligation to 
pay additional sums. These comprise of contributions 
to the employees’ provident fund with the 
government, superannuation fund and certain state 
plans like Employees’ State Insurance and 
Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Group’s 
payments to the defined contribution plans are 
recognised as expenses during the period in which 
the employees perform the services that the payment 
covers.

c) Other employee benefit

Compensated absences which are not expected to 
occur within twelve months after the end of the period 
in which the employee renders the related services 
are recognised as a liability at the present value of the 
obligation as at the Balance sheet date based on an 
actuarial valuation.

o) Foreign Currency Transaction:

The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupee (INR), which is Group's functional and 
presentation currency. Foreign exchange differences 
regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are 
presented in the statement of profit and loss, within 
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and 
losses are presented.At the end of each reporting period, 
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined.

p) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and 
the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during 
the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss except when they relate to 
items that are recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in such case, the current and 
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to 
be payable on the taxable income for the year as 
determined in accordance with the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the Balance 
Sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable 
temporary differences arising between the tax base of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except 
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is 
not a business combination and affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 
transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 
it is probable that either future taxable profits or reversal 

of deferred tax liabilities will be available, against which 
the deductible temporary differences and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be 
reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the 
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax 
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is 
a legally enforceable right to off set current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as 
an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Group will pay normal income-tax 
during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT 
credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the 
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 
profit and loss. The Group reviews the same at each 
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount 
of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer 
convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay 
normal income-tax during the specified period.

q) Segment Reporting:

The Group has identified its Managing Director as the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker. Operating segments 
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to managing director of the Group. The 
Managing Director evaluates the Group’s performance 
and allocates resources as a whole. 

r) Research and Development: 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Product 
development costs are expensed as incurred unless 
technical and commercial feasibility of the project is 
demonstrated, further economic benefits are probable, 
the Group has an intention and ability to complete and 
use or sell the product and the costs can be measured 
reliably.

s) Earnings Per Share:

Basic EPS is arrived at based on net profit or (loss) after 
taxation available to equity shareholders to the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year. The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as 
basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential 
dilutive equity shares unless impact is anti-dilutive.

t) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) through its notification, amended Schedule III of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments in Division I, 
II and III of Schedule III are applicable from April 1, 2021.

110

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



111

 1
  
P

ro
p

e
rt

y,
 P

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 

 P
a
rt

ic
u

la
rs

  
L

a
n

d
  

 
B

u
il

d
in

g
s
  

 
P

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 

F
ix

tu
re

s
  

V
e

h
ic

le
s

  
O

ff
ic

e
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

 
T
o

ta
l 

 F
re

e
h

o
ld

 
 L

e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

 

G
ro

s
s
 C

a
rr

y
in

g
 A

m
o

u
n

t 
:

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
1
9

 2
8
2
.1

1
 

 1
.5

6
 

 9
,3

8
6
.1

4
 

 4
,5

5
9
.1

2
 

 6
0

7
.3

4
 

 3
7

7
.7

1
 

 1
5

0
.2

5
 

 1
5

,3
6

4
.2

3
 

A
d
d
iti

o
n
s

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 2
1
0
.1

2
 

 3
2
2
.2

8
 

 4
5

.0
3

 
 5

5
.0

6
 

 1
9

.5
8

 
 6

5
2

.0
7

 

A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
ts

 /
 D

is
p
o
sa

ls
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 1
6
4
.5

1
 

 0
.1

5
 

 5
9

.0
1

 
 5

.5
9

 
 2

2
9

.2
6

 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
2
0

 2
8
2
.1

1
 

 1
.5

6
 

 9
,5

9
6
.2

6
 

 4
,7

1
6
.8

9
 

 6
5

2
.2

2
 

 3
7

3
.7

6
 

 1
6

4
.2

4
 

 1
5

,7
8

7
.0

4
 

A
d
d
iti

o
n
s

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 9
.6

9
 

 3
2
1
.2

7
 

 2
9

.1
8

 
 5

.7
2

 
 2

0
.8

6
 

 3
8

6
.7

2
 

A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
ts

 /
 D

is
p
o
sa

ls
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 1

2
8
.7

5
 

 1
3
8
.0

3
 

 3
.9

2
 

 -
  

 
 2

.1
9

 
 2

7
2

.8
9

 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
2
1

 2
8
2
.1

1
 

 1
.5

6
 

 9
,4

7
7
.2

0
 

 4
,9

0
0
.1

3
 

 6
7

7
.4

8
 

 3
7

9
.4

8
 

 1
8

2
.9

1
 

 1
5

,9
0

0
.8

7
 

A
c
c
u

m
u

la
te

d
 D

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 :

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
1
9

 -
  

 
 0

.0
8
 

 6
7
5
.0

1
 

 1
,6

4
9
.9

2
 

 2
5

7
.3

8
 

 1
5

9
.8

9
 

 8
9

.1
8

 
 2

,8
3

1
.4

6
 

D
e
p
re

ci
a
tio

n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r

 -
  

 
 0

.0
2
 

 1
7
8
.1

7
 

 6
2
9
.2

1
 

 7
2

.0
6

 
 4

8
.6

1
 

 1
8

.9
5

 
 9

4
7

.0
2

 

A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
ts

 /
 D

is
p
o
sa

ls
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 -

  
 

 1
5
7
.1

0
 

 0
.1

5
 

 5
5

.0
9

 
 5

.5
9

 
 2

1
7

.9
3

 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
2
0

 -
  

 
 0

.1
0
 

 8
5
3
.1

8
 

 2
,1

2
2
.0

3
 

 3
2

9
.2

9
 

 1
5

3
.4

1
 

 1
0

2
.5

4
 

 3
,5

6
0

.5
5

 

D
e
p
re

ci
a
tio

n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r

 -
  

 
 0

.0
2
 

 1
7
8
.7

6
 

 5
6
2
.3

0
 

 7
3

.0
4

 
 4

7
.1

1
 

 2
1

.8
0

 
 8

8
3

.0
3

 

A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
ts

 /
 D

is
p
o
sa

ls
 -

  
 

 -
  

 
 1

7
.7

4
 

 1
11

.3
9
 

 2
.1

8
 

 -
  

 
 1

.8
7

 
 1

3
3

.1
8

 

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
2
1

 -
  

 
 0

.1
2
 

 1
,0

1
4
.2

0
 

 2
,5

7
2
.9

4
 

 4
0

0
.1

5
 

 2
0

0
.5

2
 

 1
2

2
.4

7
 

 4
,3

1
0

.4
0

 

N
e
t 

C
a
rr

y
in

g
 A

m
o

u
n

t 
:

A
s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
2
0

 2
8
2
.1

1
 

 1
.4

6
 

 8
,7

4
3
.0

8
 

 2
,5

9
4
.8

6
 

 3
2

2
.9

3
 

 2
2

0
.3

5
 

 6
1

.7
0

 
 1

2
,2

2
6

.4
9

 

A
s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
, 
2
0
2
1

 2
8
2
.1

1
 

 1
.4

4
 

 8
,4

6
3
.0

0
 

 2
,3

2
7
.1

9
 

 2
7

7
.3

3
 

 1
7

8
.9

6
 

 6
0

.4
4

 
 1

1
,5

9
0

.4
7

 

N
o
te

s:

(I
) 

L
e
a
se

h
o
ld

 L
a
n
d
 fo

r t
h
e
 c

o
st

 o
f ̀

  0
.8

0
 la

kh
s 

is
 v

a
lid

 ti
ll 

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
7
9
 a

n
d
 fo

r ̀
 0

.7
6
 la

kh
s 

is
 v

a
lid

 ti
ll 

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
8
1

.

(i
i)
 

B
u
ild

in
g
s 

in
cl

u
d
e
 e

ig
h
t f

la
ts

, t
h
e
 ti

tle
s 

o
f w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 e

vi
d
e
n
ce

d
 b

y 
fu

lly
 p

a
id

 s
h
a
re

s 
in

 r
e
sp

e
ct

iv
e
 C

o
-o

p
e
ra

tiv
e

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 S
o

ci
e

tie
s.

 

(i
ii)

 
In

cl
u
d
e

s 
a
 v

e
h
ic

le
 h

a
vi

n
g
 c

a
rr

yi
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f ̀
  3

3
.7

7
 la

kh
s 

(p
re

vi
o
u
s 

ye
a
r ̀

  4
0
.8

8
 la

kh
s)

 a
cq

u
ir
e
d
 o

n
 h

ir
e
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
 b

a
si

s.

(i
v)

 
R

e
fe

r 
N

o
te

 N
o
. 3

4
(a

) 
fo

r C
a
p
ita

l C
o
m

m
itm

e
n
t a

n
d
 N

o
te

 N
o
. 3

5
(I

) f
o
r a

ss
e
ts

 g
iv

e
n
 a

s 
se

cu
ri
ty

.

N
O

T
E

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
T
A

N
D

A
L

O
N

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 3
1
S

T
 M

A
R

C
H

, 
2
0
2
1

(R
e

fe
r 

N
o

te
 i

ii
)

(
 i

n
 L

a
k

h
s

) 
 

`

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



STNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

2.1 Intangible assets under devlopment

Computer Software  16.42  16.16

3 Non Current Investments

Equities

Equity instruments

Investment in Joint venture  980.00  980.00

Less: Share of accumulated loss  (980.00)  (980.00)

Interest in Joint venture  -  -

Other Equity instruments  27,607.66  24,650.54

Debt

Debentures and bonds  23,768.68  20,354.91

Pass through certificates (PTC)  501.27  -

Preference shares  3,010.01  3,510.01

Government securities  3,670.75  3,677.07

Real estate and debt funds  6,796.81  6,523.55

Total  65,355.18  58,716.08

As at 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars

Gross Carrying Amount :
stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  9.28  9.28 

Additions  16.80  16.80 

Adjustments / Disposals  -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  26.08  26.08 

Additions  5.55  5.55 

Adjustments / Disposals  0.06  0.06 
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  31.57  31.57 

stBalance as at 31  March, 2019  5.88  5.88 

Depreciation charge for the year  3.21  3.21 

Adjustments / Disposals  -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  9.09  9.09 

Depreciation charge for the year  3.66  3.66 

Adjustments / Disposals  -    -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  12.75  12.75 

Net Carrying Amount :
stBalance as at 31  March, 2020  16.99  16.99 
stBalance as at 31  March, 2021  18.82  18.82 

Particulars

 2     Intangible assets  

(  in Lakhs)`

Computer 
Software  

Total 

As at 
st31  March, 2020

(  in Lakhs)`
B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
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4      Non Current Loans

(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

STNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021
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Secured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits to related party *  -    1,750.00

Total  -    1,750.00

* Secured against mortgage of a property valued of ` 35.52 crore valued by an International Property Consultant

5 Non Current Other Financial Assets

Electricity deposits  19.34  19.37

Rent deposits  8.38  7.18

Other deposits*  27.46  27.31

Fixed Deposit with Bank  1.50  1.50

Margin money deposits with bank  -    0.60

Total  56.68  55.96

* Includes water deposits, telephone deposits, gas deposits, MIDC and other deposits etc.

6 Other Non Current Assets

Capital advance  37.92  10.81

Total  37.92  10.81

7 Inventories * (Refer note no. A (g) for accounting policy on inventory)

(As taken, valued and certified by the management)  

Raw materials  627.35  471.30

Raw materials - Goods in transit 47.60 85.46 

Work-in-progress 282.25  340.79

Finished goods 133.48 260.50

Stores and spares 95.76 98.60

Total  1,186.44  1,256.65

8 Current Investments

Debt

Debentures and bonds 2,714.07 1,337.05

Preference shares  -    1,500.00

Mutual funds  589.22  -

Total  3,303.29  2,837.05

9 Trade Receivables 

Unsecured, considered good

Other Trade Receivables 3,730.25 3,395.23

Total 3,730.25 3,395.23

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks 141.91 651.02

Cash on hand 2.61 5.65

Total 144.52 656.67 



(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020
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11    Other Bank Balances

st As at 31 March, 2021

%No. of Shares No. of Shares 

Particulars

%

stAs at 31  March, 2020

(  in Lakhs)`

Rasoi Ltd.  61,51,722 41.65%  61,51,722 41.65%

Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  24,75,582 16.76%  24,75,582 16.76%

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  11,07,702 7.50%  11,07,702 7.50%

114

Other Balances

In Dividend Accounts 27.79 22.36

In Margin money 47.18 30.28

Total 74.97 52.64

12 Current Loans

Secured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits 130.00 150.00

Unsecured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits 1,600.00 2,550.00

Inter corporate deposits to related party * 1750.00 -

Deposit with LIC Housing Finance Ltd. 1,000.00 -

Loans and advances to employees 10.02 14.80

Total 4,490.02  2,714.80

* Secured against mortgage of a property valued of ` 35.52 crore valued by an International Property Consultant

13 Other Current Financial Assets

Interest accrued on investments 867.64 741.49

Interest accrued on inter corporate / other deposits 66.04  126.60

Receivable on sale of current investments 379.33  73.86

Earnest Money Deposits 20.50  65.21

Other receivables* 20.74  21.23

Total 1,354.25  1,028.39

* Includes Export Incentive, ECGC Premium etc.

14 Other Current Assets

Balance with Government authorities 15.07  12.91

Advance to suppliers 223.33  136.76

Prepaid expenses 47.07  45.56

Total  285.47  195.23

15 Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax (Net) 163.65  190.78

Total 163.65  190.78

16 Equity Share Capital

AUTHORISED

16,000,000 Equity Shares of ` 5 each  800.00  800.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

14,769,000 Equity Shares of ` 5 each, fully paid-up 738.45  738.45

Total  738.45  738.45

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



Balance at the beginning of the year  1,47,69,000  1,47,69,000 

Increase on account of share spilt  -    - 

Bonus shares issued during the year  -    - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,47,69,000  1,47,69,000 

Allotted shares on account of split in face value from 10 

per share to  5 per share.  -    -    -    49,23,000  -

Bonus shares issued during the year  -    -    -    49,23,000 -

Bought back any shares issued  - - - - -

`

`

(iii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars

(  in Lakhs)`

 

As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

(iv) For a period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,the company has: 

Particulars
st

As at 31  March

20172018201920202021
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17    Other Equity

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.

A.    Summary of Other Equity balance

(  in Lakhs)`

Capital Redemption Reserve  57.70  57.70

General Reserve 62,050.13  61,050.13

Retained Earnings 7,709.45  5,841.16

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

  - Fair value of Debt instruments through OCI  2,479.85  1,976.71

  - Fair value of Equity instruments through OCI  8,904.64  6,561.08

  - Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (240.27)  (120.94)

Total  80,961.50  75,365.84

B. Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Capital Redemption Reserve: The  Company  has  recognised  Capital  Redemption  Reserve  on  buyback  of  

equity  shares  from  its General Reserve.  The Capital Redemption Reserve can be utilised for issue of bonus shares.

(b) General Reserve: The  Company  has  transferred  a  portion  of  the  net  profit  of  the  Company  before  declaring  

dividend  to  general reserve.

(c) Retained  Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to 

general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

(d) Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: The fair value change of the debt instruments 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in Debt instruments through Other 

Comprehensive Income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes on the said instruments are 

reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of   5 each (Previous Year  5 each). Each holder of 

equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the 

remaining assets of the Company after payments to secured and unsecured creditors, in proportion to their shareholding. 

` `

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



Term Loans

Secured

From Banks - Vehicle Loan  4.05  9.51

Unsecured

From SICOM Ltd. by way of deferral of sales tax liability  -    34.32

Total  4.05  43.83

19 Non Current Provisions

Provision for compensated absences 172.36 121.10

Provision for Gratuity  145.62 86.82

Total 317.98 207.92

20 Other Non Current Liabilities

Security Deposits 87.51  79.12

Total 87.51 79.12

21 Current Borrowings

Secured 

From Bank

    Working Capital Loan  -    477.29

Total -    477.29

22 Trade Payables 

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and small enterprises  56.73  48.24

Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and small enterprises  3,638.77  3,198.83

Total  3,695.50  3,247.07

18   Non Current Borrowings

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

(  in Lakhs)`
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(e) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses 

arising on fair valuation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and 

subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(f) Re-measurements  of  Net  Defined  Benefit  Plans: Differences  between  the  interest  income  on  plan  assets  

and  the  return  actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial 

assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised  in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and 

subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
(‘MSMED Act’). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows :

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year;

(b) Interest accrued and due to any supplier at the end of accounting year;

(c) Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment 

(which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 

adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006;

(e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting 

year;

(f) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under 

section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

23 Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt 38.04 64.75

Unpaid dividends  27.79 22.36

Capital Creditors 83.17 118.39

Total  149.00 205.50

24 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues 143.42 32.39

Deferral of Sales Tax Liability  7.76 -

Total  151.18 32.39

25 Current Provisions

Provision for compensated absences  16.46 42.23

Provision for gratuity  199.99 80.74

Total  216.45 122.97

 28.15  21.01

1.28  0.98

 0.98 0.19 

 Nil  Nil 

 Nil Nil

 

 Nil Nil 

Note : The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as“ Micro and Small 

enterprises” on the basis of information available with Company.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



(  in Lakhs)`
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Particulars

26    Revenue From Operations

Sale of Products

Manufactured goods 14,961.58  14,439.85 

Investment Income

Dividend 276.56  426.43 

Interest 3,321.65 3,032.82 

Net gain on sale / Fair valuation of investments through profit and loss * (145.94) (143.61)

3,452.27  3,315.64 

Other Operating Income

Export Incentives 14.96  23.60 

Marketing Fees & Royalty Income  9.19  6.25 

Insurance Claim  1.64  0.64 

Scrap Sale 14.43  16.70 

Others  4.68  2.51 

 44.90  49.70 

Total 18,458.75  17,805.19 
st * Includes fair value (loss) as at 31 March, 2021 amounting to ` (105.97 lakhs),   (Previous Year ` (520.71lakhs))

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

 

27    Other Income

Foreign Exchange Gain (Net)  11.44  26.05

Rent  7.67  7.28

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)  599.33  16.16

Total  618.44  49.49

28   Cost Of Materials Consumed 

Raw materials and Components

Opening Stock 471.30  669.97

Purchases  7,266.37  6,938.81

Less: Closing Stock  627.36  471.30

 7,110.31  7,137.48 

Stores and Spare parts consumed

Opening Stock  98.60  93.29

Purchases  228.40  206.04

Less: Closing Stock  95.76  98.60

 231.24  200.73

Total  7,341.55  7,338.21

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



(` in Lakhs)
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Particulars Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

29    Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Opening Stock :-

Work-in-progress 340.79 283.95

Finished goods 260.50 182.56

Total 601.29  466.51

Closing Stock :-

Work-in-progress 282.25  340.79 

Finished goods 133.48  260.50

Total 415.73  601.29

Changes in inventories 185.56  (134.78)

30 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and incentives 2,953.76  3,060.27

Contributions to provident and other fund 162.50  158.11

Contributions to gratuity fund 50.47  33.95

Staff welfare expenses 92.41  102.64

Total 3,259.14  3,354.97

31 Finance Cost

Interest expense 14.41  14.36

Other borrowing costs 5.18  7.95

Total 19.59  22.31

32 Other Expenses

Packing materials consumed  373.29  349.42

Power and Fuel 974.17  1,012.70

Rent 41.56  36.99

Rates and taxes  29.86  53.45 

Insurance (including transit insurance) 66.28  58.01

Freight and Forwarding 609.25  597.26

Repairs & Maintenance:

Plant & Machinery  129.79  178.86

Buildings 44.26  85.18

      Others 50.60  33.60

Job charges 1,066.92  1,027.81

Travelling & Conveyance 183.64  434.50

Sales Promotion Expenses 151.19  97.22

Postage,Printing & Stationery 25.50  47.84

Communication Expenses 24.52  23.40

Investment management and other expenses  200.80  283.00

Legal & Professional Expenses 441.54  409.12

Remuneration to Auditors:

Audit fees (including limited review fees) 9.00  7.50

Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.73  0.65

Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  70.00  70.00

Charity and donations 321.20  312.24

Miscellaneous Expenses 91.21  173.44

Total 4,905.31  5,292.19

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1



33 Contingent Liabilities:

(a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

- Disputed labour matter related to ex-workmen - amount unascertainable. 

(b) The Company’s litigations comprises of claims related to property disputes and proceedings pending with Tax and other 

Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, 

wherever required. The Company has also disclosed the pending matters under contingent liability wherever the amount 

of liability is not adequately measurable. However, the Company does not reasonably expect the outcome of these 

proceedings will have a material impact on its financial statements.(Also Refer Note 33(a)).

34 Commitments:

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advance, 
stunsecured considered good), as at 31  March 2021 for ` 100.26 lakhs  (net of advance of ` 37.92 lakhs); Previous Year 

(` 54.38 lakhs (net of advance of ̀  10.18 lakhs)).

(b) In respect of investments made with private equity funds / debt funds, the Company is further committed to invest as at 
st31  March 2021 for ̀  2868.00  lakhs; Previous Year (` 3361.86 lakhs).
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Particulars

35 Earnings Per Share

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account  1,972.36  1,047.41 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding  1,47,69,000  1,47,69,000 

Basic and Diluted EPS (Face value of  5 each)  13.35  7.09 `

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

 (  in Lakhs except EPS) `

36 Related Party Disclosure :

(A) Relationships:

(i) Joint ventures in which the entity is a joint venturer:

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.

(ii)  Key Management Personnel (KMP):

Whole Time Directors
Mr. Raghu Mody,  Executive Chairman
Mr. P. K. Choudhary, Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mr. Sunil Jindal, Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
Mr. Vikram Soni, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

(iii) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel / Directors: 
Mrs. Shashi Mody (Daughter-in-law of Mr. Raghu Mody, Executive Chairman)

(iv) Non Executive Directors:
Mr. Ashok B Vadiya, Independent Director
Mr. K. S. Brar, Independent Director
Mr. Deepak Sethi, Independent Director

thMr. Lalit Kumar Bararia, Additional Director (appointed w.e.f.13  Feb. 2020)
thMr. Chakrapani Brajesh Misra, Independent Director (resigned w.e.f. 28  Feb. 2020)

thMrs. Preeti Vimal Agrawal, Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 13  Feb. 2020)
thMrs. Sakshi Mody, Non Executive Director (resigned w.e.f. 14  Feb. 2020)

(v) Other Related Parties:
Rasoi Ltd., *
Leaders Healthcare Ltd. *
J L Morison (India) Ltd.
Pallawi  Resources Ltd.
Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd. 
Mr. Varunn Mody, (Husband of Smt. Sakshi Mody, Non Executive Director)

 * Entities belonging to promoter/promoter group holding 10% or more shareholding in the company.

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1
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(B) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (A) above, in ordinary course of business:

(` in Lakhs)

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars

(i) Inter Corporate Deposits Given

Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  Nil  500.00

(ii) Inter Corporate Deposits Refund Received

Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  Nil  500.00

(iii) Rent Paid (Including GST)

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  17.13  15.58

Pallawi Resources Limited 4.67  4.25

Mr. Varunn Mody  19.82  19.46

(iv) Income

Marketing Fees and Royalty

  - Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.   8.56  6.25

Interest Income

  - Pallawi Resources Limited  175.00  175.35

  - Leaders Healthcare Ltd.  Nil  22.88

(v) Purchase of Investment - Rasoi Ltd. Equity Shares

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  Nil  495.00

(vi) Dividend Received

J L Morison (India) Ltd.  2.73  2.73

(vii)Salaries and other employee benefits to Whole Time Directors and KMP

Mr. Raghu Mody *  144.57  156.29

Mr. P.K. Choudhary  84.18  90.78

Mr. Sunil Jindal  23.32  23.82

Mr. Vikram Soni  10.82  10.31

(viii)Salaries and other employee benefits to relatives of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Shashi Mody  29.02  29.48

(ix) Directors sitting fees and commission to independent  and non executive directors 

Mr. Ashok B Vadiya  3.20  3.70

Mr. K. S. Brar  3.20  3.50

Mr. Deepak Sethi  2.80  3.00

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agarwal 2.40  Nil

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia  2.20  Nil

Mr. Chakrapani Misra  Nil  0.80

Mrs. Sakshi Mody  Nil  0.50

(x) Other Transactions

Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd. (Purchase of Air Ticket)  3.33  63.55

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Sale of Raw Material(Net))  60.60  28.46

Mr. Varunn Mody (Salaries)  78.07  84.29 

Note: * Previous year Includes  44.76 Lakhs being excess managerial remuneration paid for which necessary 
shareholders approval was obtained.

`

A N N U A L   R E P O R T   2 0 2 0 - 2 0 2 1
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(C) Balances outstanding with related parties referred in (A) above, in ordinary course of business:

(` in Lakhs)

Year ended 
st31  March, 2020

Year ended 
st31  March, 2021

Particulars

(I) Receivable:

 - Inter Corporate Deposits:

   Pallawi Resources Limited (secured)  1,750.00  1,750.00

 - Others Receivable:

   Pallawi Resources Limited  42.13  41.31

   Mr. Varunn Mody  6.60  6.60

(ii) Payable:

  - Commission to independent directors 

Mr. Ashok B Vadiya  1.93  1.90

Mr. K. S. Brar  1.93  1.90

Mr. Deepak Sethi  1.93  1.90

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agarwal  1.93  Nil 

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia  1.93  Nil 

  

- Others

    Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd.  Nil  0.57

    Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  154.32  55.57

(iii) Investment in:

J L Morison (India) Ltd. (at cost)  515.49  515.49

Rasoi Limited (at cost)  1,351.36  856.36

37 Investment in other entities:

Details and financial information of material joint venture

Name of associate Principal activity Place of incorporation and 
principal place of business

Proportion of ownership interest / 
voting rights held by the Group

As at
st31  March, 2021

As at
st31  March, 2020

Compo Advics (India) 
Pvt. Ltd.  Brake Pads Principal place of business - 

Bhalgaon Dist. Aurangabad

Manufacturing of Disc Place of incorporation - Mumbai,  49.00% 49.00%

The above joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. 

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's material joint venture is set out below. The summarised 

financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with 

Ind AS adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes.

STNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2021

Note:
i) No amount pertaining to related parties has been provided for as doubtful debts. Also no amount has been written off/back
ii) The related parties are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 
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Particulars As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Net Assets, i.e., 
total assets 
minus total
 liabilities

Net Assets, i.e., 
total assets 
minus total
 liabilities

Non-current assets 49%  537.85 49%  586.74 

Current assets

Cash & Cash equivalents  6.97  5.60 

Others  203.76  207.36 

Total Assets [A] 49%  748.58 49%  799.70 

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Current financial liabilities  887.48  826.94 

Others  31.11  15.96 

Total Liabilities [B] 49%  918.59 49%  842.90 

Net Assets [A-B] 49%  (170.01) 49%  (43.20)

(  in Lakhs)`

Particulars As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Share in 
profit or loss  
Year ended 

Share in 
profit or loss  
Year ended 

Revenue 49%  453.29 49%  332.52 

(Loss) for the year  (127.20)  (154.13)

Other comprehensive income for the year  0.40  (1.95)

Total comprehensive income for the year 49%  (126.80) 49%  (156.08)

Dividends received from the associate during the

year  -    -   -    -   

The above profit/(loss) for the year include the followings:

Particulars As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Share in 
profit or loss  
Year ended 

Share in 
profit or loss  
Year ended 

Depreication and amortisation 49%  53.79 49%  53.83 

Interest income  -    -   

Interest expenses 49%  48.13 49%  48.50 

Income tax expenses  -    -  

Particulars As at 
st31  March, 2021

As at 
st31  March, 2020
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Net assets of the joint venture  (170.01)  (43.20)

Add/(Less) Consolidation Adjustments

Impact of gain on downstream transactions  (170.01)  (43.20)

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in 49.00% 49.00%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Joint 
ventrue  -    -   

Obligation towards Joint venture  154.32  55.56 

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in recognised in the 

consolidated financial statements:
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38 In view of the recent surge in Covid-19 cases, many states reintroduced some restrictions which have temporarily disrupted  the 

operations at its manufacturing plants.  The Group is in compliance with the various guidelines issued / relaxations provided by the 

Government /respective authorities from time to time, presently working at its normal capacity similar to the pre COVID levels with 

adequate precautions for safety and wellbeing of its employees. The management apart from considering the internal and external 

information upto the date of approval of these financial statements expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets including 

financial investments. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

39 The group have one Joint venture with no significant material transactions. Notes to accounts as required in accordance Schedule 

III and Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rules 2015 being similar to that disclosed holding company in their standalone 

financial statements, are not been appended hereto.

40 Previous years’ figures have been regrouped/reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current years’ classification. 
Signatures to Notes 1 to 40 which form an integral part of the financial statements. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai   
thDate: 26  May, 2021

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 

   

 
Raghu Mody               P.K. Choudhary

 
      Chairman      Managing Director 

 

Chief Financial Officer

 

  Vikram Soni                  Sunil Jindal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(DIN 00053329) (DIN 00535670)
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Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Not Applicable as the Company does not have any subsidiaries

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to the provision of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Joint Ventures

Sr. Name of Joint Ventures Compo Advics (India) Private Limited

No.

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31-03-21

2 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
sti) No. of shares held as on 31  March, 2021 4,900,000

stii) No. of compulsory convertible preference shares held as on 31  March 2021 4,900,000

iii)  Amount of Investment in Joint Venture 980

iv) Extend of Holding % 49%

3 Description of how there is significant influence Holding 49% voting powers and as

 per Joint Venture Agreement

4 Reason why the joint venture is not consolidated N.A.

5 Net Worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet  (170.01) 

6 Profit / Loss for the year

i)  Considered in Consolidation  (126.80)

ii) Not Considered in Consolidation (Unaudited) Nil

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: None

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the financial year: None 

(  in Lakhs)`

  
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai    
  

thDate: 26  May, 2021
 

 

 

   

 
Raghu Mody               P.K. Choudhary

 
      Chairman      Managing Director 

 

Chief Financial Officer

 

  Vikram Soni                  Sunil Jindal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(DIN 00053329) (DIN 00535670)
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of Hindustan Composites Limited



CIN: L29120MH1964PLC012955 

Peninsula Business Park, “A” Tower, 8th  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013.  

Tel.: 022 6688 0100, Fax: 022 6688 0105, E-mail: hcl@hindcompo.com, Website: www.hindcompo.com

 

As per the provisions of Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, the 

Company needs to update its ‘Register of Members’ to incorporate certain new details, as required under the said provisions. Further, 

as per the “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” initiated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its Circular No. 

17/2011 dated 21/04/2011, the Company proposes to send all the notices, documents including Annual Report in electronic form to its 

members.

We, therefore request you to furnish the following details for updation of Register of Members and enable the Company to send all 

communication to you through electronic mode:

Kindly submit the above details duly filled in and signed at the appropriate place to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the 

Company viz. “LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED, C-101, 247 PARK, LBS MARG, VIKHROLI (WEST), MUMBAI - 400083.” 

Member(s) are requested to submit photocopy of PAN card and Aadhar Card duly self-attested along with this form.

The E-mail ID provided shall be updated subject to successful verification of your signature. The members may receive Annual Reports 

in physical form free of cost by post by making request for the same.

Thanking you,

Hindustan Composites Limited 

 FOR KIND ATTENTION OF SHAREHOLDERS 

 
Dear Shareholders, 

 Place: ____________ 
Date: ____________ _________________________ 

Signature of the Member 

 

For Hindustan Composites Limited 

 

Vikram Soni

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Folio No.

Name of the Member

Name of Joint holders, if any

Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s Name

Address (Registered Office Address in case the 
Member is a Body Corporate)

E-mail Id

PAN

CIN/Registration No.

UIN (Aadhar Number)

Occupation

Residential Status

Nationality

In case member is a minor,

(i) Name of Guardian

(ii) Date of birth of minor
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Hindustan Composites Limited
CIN: L29120MH1964PLC012955

thPeninsula Business Park, “A” Tower, 8  Floor, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400013. 

Tel.: 022 6688 0100, Fax: 022 6688 0105, 
E-mail: hcl@hindcompo.com, Website: www.hindcompo.com

For SHARES HELD IN THE ELECTRONIC MODE 
please inform respective DPs

For SHARES HELD IN THE PHYSICAL MODE 
please complete the form and mail to

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
UNIT: HINDUSTAN COMPOSITES LIMITED
C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), 
Mumbai – 400 083
Email Id: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Dear Sir(s),

Sub: Payment of Dividend through NECS

I hereby consent to have the amount of dividend on my Equity Shares credited through National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS). 

The particulars are:

1. Folio No. /Client ID. No./DP ID. No. _________________________________________________________________________

(Folio No. given in equity share certificate(s)/customer ID No. given by your DP’s)

2. Shareholders Name: Shri/Smt./Kum./M/s. ___________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

3. Shareholders Address : __________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

4. Telephone No. _______________________________________5. Mobile No.________________________________________

6.   Particulars of the Bank:

• Bank Name:_______________________________________________________________________________________

• Branch Name and Address:____________________________________________________________________________

• Mention the 9 digit code number issued by the bank and Branch appearing on the MICR cheque issue by the 

bank:____________________________________________________________________________________________

• Account Type (please √ )  Savings

       Current  

       Cash Credit 

• Account Number (as appearing on the cheque Book):_______________________________________________________

• IFSC Code Number:________________________________________________________________________________

7.   Date from which the mandate should be effective: _____________________________________________________________

I hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed or not effected at all for 

reasons of incomplete or incorrect information, I would not hold the company /Registrars & Share Transfers Agents of the Company 

responsible. I also undertake to advise any change in the particulars of my account to facilitate updation of records for purpose of 

credit of dividend amount through NECS Facility.

__________________________________
Signature of the first/sole shareholder

Note: 1) Please attach the photocopy of a Cheque or a cancelled bank cheque issued by your bank for verifying the accuracy of the 

code number.

2) The Form can be downloaded from the Companys' website: www.hindcompo.com

NECS MANDATE FORM



th
Recognition of Corona Warriors at a virtual award function on 10  Oct, 2020 

stVaccination drive organized at corporate office on 1  June, 2021

Participation of Paithan workmen in Skill development program under 

Pradhan Mantari Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY)
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